
CITY COUNCIL 
Alma Hernandez, Mayor 
Princess Washington, Mayor Pro Tem 
Michael J Hudson, Member 
Jenalee Dawson, Member 
Amit Pal, Member

CITY COUNCIL MEETING

 

A G E N D A
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SUISUN CITY COUNCIL,

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL ACTING AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY,

AND HOUSING AUTHORITY
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 21, 2023

6:30 PM
 

Suisun City Council Chambers - 701 Civic Center Boulevard - Suisun City, California
 
 
NOTICE
The following Council/Successor Agency/Housing Authority meeting may include teleconference participation by:
Council/Board Members Michael Hudson, Jenalee Dawson, Amit Pal, Mayor Pro Tem Princess Washington, and Mayor
Alma Hernandez, in accordance with subdivisions (b), (e), or (f) of Section 54953 of the Government Code, as applicable.

FACE MASKS ARE RECOMMENDED FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC WHILE IN CITY FACILITIES IF NOT
FULLY VACCINATED. IF YOU DO NOT HAVE A FACE MASK, ONE WILL BE PROVIDED FOR YOU.

 
THE CITY COUNCIL HAS RESUMED IN-PERSON MEETINGS IN ADDITION TO ZOOM. A LIMITED NUMBER OF
SEATS ARE AVAILABLE, TO RESERVE A SEAT PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY CLERK AT clerk@suisun.com OR 707

421-7302.
 

ZOOM MEETING INFORMATION:
WEBSITE: https://zoom.us/join
MEETING ID: 849 6639 2028

CALL IN PHONE NUMBER: (707) 438-1720
 

REMOTE PUBLIC COMMENT IS AVAILABLE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING BY EMAILING
CLERK@SUISUN.COM (PRIOR TO 6 PM), VIA WEBSITE, OR ZOOM CALL IN PHONE NUMBER (707) 438-1720

 
(If attending the meeting via phone press *9 to raise your hand and *6 to unmute/mute for public comment.)

 
(Next Ord. No. – 799)

 (Next City Council Res. No. 2023 – 17)
Next Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency Res. No. SA2022 - 01)

 (Next Housing Authority Res. No. HA2022 – 02)
 
 

 

1



 1 City Manager Update – (Folsom: gfolsom@suisun.com).

 2 Resignation and Presentation of Award to Council Member Hudson for Serving as a Suisun
City Council Member - (Hernandez: ahernandez@suisun.com). 
 

 3 Presentation of Proclamation Proclaiming the Month of February 2023 as "Black History
Month" in the City of Suisun City - (Hernandez: ahernandez@suisun.com).
 

 4 Mayoral Appointments of Commissions and Committees – (Hernandez:
ahernandez@suisun.com). 

 5 Council/Board Member Updates.   

 City Council
 

 6 Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2023-___: Authorizing the City Manager to Enter into a
Construction Contract on the City’s Behalf with Marina Landscape, Inc. for the State Route
12 Landscape Improvements Project - (Vue: nvue@suisun.com). 
 

 7 Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2023-___:  Authorizing the City Manager to Execute
Amendment Number Two (2) of the Agreement with the State of California for Maintenance
of State Highways in the City of Suisun City - (Vue: nvue@suisun.com).
 

 8 Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2023-___:  Accepting the Asphalt Rubber Cape Seal and
Traffic Calming Project as Complete, and Authorizing the City Manager to Record the
Notice of Completion for the Project - (Vue: nvue@suisun.com). 
 

ROLL CALL
Council /Board Members
Pledge of Allegiance
Invocation
 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST NOTIFICATION
(Any items on this agenda that might be a conflict of interest to any Councilmembers / Boardmembers should be
identified at this time.)
 
REPORTS (Informational items only.)
 

 
PRESENTATION/APPOINTMENTS
(Presentations, Awards, Proclamations, Appointments).
 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT
(Request by citizens to discuss any matter under our jurisdiction other than an item posted on this agenda per California
Government Code §54954.3. Comments are limited to no more than 3 minutes unless allowable by the Mayor/Chair.
Speaker cards are available on the table near the entry of the meeting room and should be given to the City Clerk. By
law, no prolonged discussion or action may be taken on any item raised during the public comment period, although
informational answers to questions may be given and matters may be referred for placement on a future agenda.)
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS
 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR
Consent calendar items requiring little or no discussion may be acted upon with one motion.
 

2



  
Joint City Council / Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency / Housing Authority
 

 9 Council/Agency/Authority Approval of the Minutes of the Regular and/or Special Meetings
of the Suisun City Council, Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency, and Housing
Authority held on October 27, 2022, November 15, 2022, and February 7, 2023 – (Skinner:
clerk@suisun.com).
 

 Joint City Council / Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency
 

 10 Council/Agency Approval of January 2023 Payroll Warrants in the Amount of $764,340.52
and Council/Agency Approval of the January 2023 Accounts Payable Warrants in the
Amount of $1,036,919.36 - (Finance).

  
City Council
 

 11 HEARING:
Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2023-___:  Placing Liens for Unpaid Waste Collection
Service Charges on Certain Lands Situated in the City of Suisun City, County of Solano,
State of California - (Deol: ldeol@suisun.com).
 

 12 Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2023-___: Adopting the 3rd Amendment to the Annual
Appropriation Resolution No. 2022-90 to Appropriate Mid-Year Budget Adjustments for
Additional Costs in Various Accounts Organization Wide - (Deol: ldeol@suisun.com). 
 

 13 Provide direction to City Manager and City Attorney relating to filling the councilmember
vacancy pursuant to one of the following, or at the Council’s discretion: - (City Attorney)
 

a. Return at the March 7, 2023 City Council meeting with the appropriate documentation
to call a special election for November 7, 2023.

b. Return at the March 7, 2023 City Council meeting with the appropriate documentation
for adoption of application and interview procedures relating to the filling a vacancy on
the City Council.

c. Return at the March 7, 2023 City Council meeting with the appropriate documentation
to adopt procedures to consider and appoint an individual from the applicants to Mayor
Hernandez’s vacated seat.

d. Return at the March 7, 2023 City Council meeting with the appropriate documentation
to appoint a specific individual of the City Council’s choosing.

e. Provide the City Attorney with other direction.

 14 Non-Discussion Items 

 
PUBLIC HEARING  NONE
 
GENERAL BUSINESS

 
REPORTS: (Informational items only)
 

 
ADJOURNMENT
 

3



Public Access To Agenda Documents
A complete packet of information containing staff reports and exhibits related to each item for the open session of
this meeting, and provided to the City Council, are available for public review at least 72 hours prior to a Council
/Agency/Authority Meeting at Suisun City Hall 701 Civic Center Blvd., Suisun City. Agenda related writings or
documents provided to a majority of the Council/Board/Commissioners less than 72 hours prior to a
Council/Agency/Authority meeting related to an agenda item for the open session of this meeting will be made
available for public inspection during normal business hours. An agenda packet is also located at the entrance to
the Council Chambers during the meeting for public review. The city may charge photocopying charges for
requested copies of such documents. To the extent feasible, the agenda packet is available for online public
viewing on the City’s website: www.suisun.com/government/city-council/city-council
 
The City Council/Agency/Authority hopes to conclude its public business by 10:00 p.m. No new items will be
taken up after 10:00 p.m., unless so moved by a majority of the City Council,  and any items remaining will be
agendized for the next meeting. The agendas have been prepared with the hope that all items scheduled will be
discussed within the time allowed.
 
Accommodations 
If you require an accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (707) 421-7302 or
clerk@suisun.com. The City’s reasonable accommodation policy is available for review on the City’s website at
www.suisun.com/government/city-council/, you may request an electronic copy or have a copy mailed to you.
Please note that for accommodations that are not readily available, you must make your request as soon as you can
prior to the time of the meeting.
 
Decorum
All participants are expected to conduct themselves with mutual respect. Conduct that disrupts meetings will be
addressed in accordance with Section 54957.95 of the Government Code.
 
Ordinances
Ordinances are city laws contained in the Suisun City Municipal Code. Enacting a new city law or changing an
existing one is a two-step process. Government Code 36934 provides, except when, after reading the title, further
reading is waived by regular motion adopted by majority vote all ordinances shall be read in full either at the time
of introduction or passage; provided, however, that a reading of the title or ordinance shall not be required if the
title is included on the published agenda and a copy of the full ordinance is made available to the public online and
in print at the meeting prior to the introduction or passage.
 
Certification Of Posting
Agendas are posted at least 72 hours in advance of regular meetings at Suisun City Hall, 701 Civic Center
Boulevard, Suisun City, CA. Agendas may be posted at other Suisun City locations including:
 

Suisun City Fire Station, 621 Pintail Drive, Suisun City, CA;
Suisun City Senior Center, 318 Merganser Drive, Suisun City, CA;
Joe Nelson Center, 611 Village Drive, Suisun City, CA;
Harbor Master Office, 800 Kellogg Street, Suisun City, CA.

 
I, Donna Pock, Deputy City Clerk for the City of Suisun City, declare under penalty of perjury that the above
agenda was posted and available for review, in compliance with the Brown Act. 

4



AGENDA ITEM NO. 6
                  AGENDA TRANSMITTAL

 
MEETING DATE: February 21, 2023
 
CITY AGENDA ITEM: Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2023-___: Authorizing the City
Manager to Enter into a Construction Contract on the City’s Behalf with Marina Landscape, Inc. for the
State Route 12 Landscape Improvements Project.
 
FISCAL IMPACT: The construction of the State Route 12 Landscape Improvements Project (Project)
would have no fiscal impact on the General Fund.  The Project was awarded Caltrans’ portion of the
Clean California grant funding in the amount of $2.15M for construction.  
 
STRATEGIC PLAN: Provide Good Governance and Enhance the Environment.  
 
BACKGROUND: This Project was brought to Council on November 2, 2021, as a Discussion and
Direction item.  On February 1, 2022, this item was brought back to Council for approval to execute the
agreement with the Solano Transportation Authority (STA) to administer the design contract for the
preparation of plans, specifications, and cost estimate (PS&E, and also known as construction bid
documents).  On July 19, 2022, the results of the outreach survey and the 90% design were presented to
the public and the City Council.
 
The initial plan was reviewed at the July 19th Council meeting.  The direction at that meeting was for
City staff and the design consultant to bring back to the City Council alternative improvement options,
along with their associated costs and maintenance effort.  On August 3, 2022, staff brought back to
Council alternative improvement options.  Council directed staff to move forward with options that
consist of the work scope detailed below.  Since that time, the construction bid documents have been
completed based on the direction provided at the Council meeting.
 
STAFF REPORT: The construction bid documents for the Project were advertised in the Daily
Republic newspaper on the following days: a) October 21, 2022, b) October 28, 2022, and c) November
4, 2022. 

Bids were due on November 16, 2022, at 2:00 PM. Three (3) bids were received and read aloud
immediately following the submittal deadline.  Prior to the bid opening, it was announced to the
contractors that the contract award will be based on a budget of $1,954,000.  That dollar amount leaves
enough in the construction budget for a 10% contingency.  It was also clarified in the construction bid
documents and at the bid opening that in the event that bids received for the base bid plus all four
additive alternates exceed the City’s construction budget, as many additive alternates will be included in
the award as possible in the order in which they appear in the construction bid documents.

The bid submitted by Marina Landscape, Inc. represents the lowest bid received for the Project and was
determined by staff to be a responsive bid.  The three bids received for the Project are as shown in
Attachment No. 3, which provides bids for the base project and for the four additive alternates.

The base bid project generally includes landscaping the triangular area at the eastbound State Route 12
on ramp and off ramp at Civic Center Boulevard; landscaping the medians with oleanders between

5



Marina Boulevard and Walters Road; repairing damaged chain link fence panels from Marina
Boulevard to Walters Road; installing paved maintenance vehicle pullouts for irrigating the new plants;
irrigation; water pollution control; traffic control; and 2-year maintenance by the contractor.
 
In addition to the base bid project, there are four (4) additive alternate items, which are as follows:
 

Add Alt. #1 – Replacing existing fence with wood/wire mesh fence on the north side of State
Route 12 between Marina Boulevard and Village Drive.
Add Alt. #2 – Painting guardrails at McCoy Creek crossing.
Add Alt. #3 – Replacing existing fence with decorative wood/wire mesh fence on the north side
of State Route 12 between Village Drive and Sunset Avenue.
Add Alt. #4 – Landscaping on the north side of State Route 12 between Marina Boulevard and
Village Drive, between curb and soundwall.  

 
Marina Landscape, Inc. is the lowest responsible and responsive bidder.
 
The grant allocation of $2.15M for construction will be enough to cover the construction contract for
this Project without any need for City funds. Therefore, staff recommends awarding the construction
contract in the amount of $1,478,594.50 to Marina Landscape, Inc. for the base bid ($1,134,454.50) and
for the four (4) additive alternative bid items ($344,140.00). This represents a remaining balance of
$671,405.50 in the construction budget.  Caltrans has approved the utilization of this remaining balance
to provide additional improvements on this project.
 
Staff also recommends including a contingency in the amount of the remaining balance of $671,405.50
towards in-house inspections, in-house construction management, addressing unforeseen items, and
additional improvements that could include replacing existing fences with wood/wire mesh or vinyl
cladded chain link fence; power washing and/or painting the soundwall at the State Route 12 on ramp at
Civic Center Boulevard; and placing decomposed granite (or rocked blanket) and/or landscaping within
undeveloped strips on either the north side or south side of State Route 12.
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution No. 2023-___:  Authorizing the City Manager to
Enter into a Construction Contract on the City’s Behalf with Marina Landscape, Inc. for the State Route
12 Landscape Improvements Project.
 
DOCUMENTS ATTACHED:

1. Resolution No. 2023-__: Authorizing the City Manager to Enter into a Construction Contract on
the City’s Behalf with Marina Landscape, Inc. for the State Route 12 Landscape Improvements
Project.

2. Project Location Map.
3. Bids Received.

 

PREPARED BY: Nick Lozano, Sr. Associate Engineer
REVIEWED BY: Nouae Vue, Public Works Director 
APPROVED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1 Resolution 2023-___ Enter into a Construction Contract for the State Route 12 Landscape
Improvements Project.pdf

6

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1796403/1__Resolution_2023-____Enter_into_a_Construction_Contract_for_the_State_Route_12_Landscape_Improvements_Project.pdf


2 Project Location Map.pdf
3 Bids Received.pdf

7

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1796404/2__Project_Location_Map.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1797594/3__Bids_Received.pdf


 

01107.0006/783598.3  

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023- 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A CONSTRUCTION 

CONTRACT ON THE CITY’S BEHALF WITH MARINA LANDSCAPE, INC. FOR 
THE STATE ROUTE 12 LANDSCAPE IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 

 
 WHEREAS, the City’s State Route 12 Landscape Improvements Project (Project) has 
been awarded Caltrans’s portion of the Clean California grant in the amount of $2.15M for 
construction; and 
 WHEREAS, the grant allocation covers construction of the Project, including City staff 
charges and other associated construction costs; and 
 WHEREAS, the base project will include landscaping the triangular area at the 
eastbound State Route 12 on ramp and off ramp at Civic Center Boulevard; landscaping the 
medians with oleanders between Marina Boulevard and Walters Road; repairing damaged chain 
link fence panels from Marina Boulevard to Walters Road; installing paved maintenance vehicle 
pullouts for irrigating the new plants; irrigation; water pollution control; traffic control; and 2-
year maintenance by the contractor; and 
 WHEREAS, the four (4) additive alternates include replacing existing fence with 
wood/wire mesh fence on the north side of State Route 12 between Marina Boulevard and 
Village Drive; painting guardrails at McCoy Creek crossing; replacing existing fence with 
decorative wood/wire mesh fence on the north side of State Route 12 between Village Drive and 
Sunset Avenue; landscaping on the north side of State Route 12 between Marina Boulevard and 
Village Drive, between curb and soundwall; and  
 WHEREAS, the construction bid documents for the Project were advertised on October 
21, 2022, October 28, 2022, and November 4, 2022; and 
 WHEREAS, the City received three (3) bids for the Project on November 16, 2022, by 
2:00 pm, at which time the bids were opened and read aloud; and 
 WHEREAS, it was also announced to the contractors at the bid opening that the contract 
award will be based on a budget of $1,954,000; and  
 WHEREAS, the City Public Works Department has reviewed the three bids, and 
determined that Marina Landscape, Inc. provided the lowest responsive bid of $1,478,594.50 
for the base project and the four additive alternates.  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Suisun 
City authorizes the City Manager to enter into a construction contract on behalf of the City with 
Marina Landscape, Inc. for the State Route 12 Landscape Improvements Project in the amount 
of $1,478,594.50, including a contingency in the amount of the remaining balance of 
$671,405.50 in the construction budget towards in-house inspections, in-house construction 
management, addressing unforeseen items, and additional improvements, and to take any and 
all necessary and appropriate actions to implement this contract. 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Suisun City duly held on Tuesday, the 21st day of February 2023, by the following vote: 
 

  

8



 

Resolution No. 2023- 
Adopted February 21, 2023 
Page 2 of 2 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

AYES: Councilmembers:    
NOES: Councilmembers:    
ABSENT: Councilmembers:    
ABSTAIN: Councilmembers:    

 WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 21st day of February 2023.  
 
 

   
 Anita Skinner 
 City Clerk 

9



L
o
ca

ti
o

n
 M

ap
 

S
ta

te
 R

o
u
te

 1
2
 L

an
d
sc

ap
e 

Im
p
ro

v
em

en
ts

 P
ro

je
ct

 

  

 

P
R

O
JE

C
T 

LO
C

A
TI

O
N

 

10



S
ta

te
 R

o
u

te
 1

2
 L

a
n

d
sc

a
p

e 
Im

p
ro

v
em

en
ts

 P
ro

je
ct

 

B
id

s 
R

ec
ei

v
ed

 o
n
 N

o
v
em

b
er

 1
6
, 
2
0
2
2

 

C
o
m

p
a
n

y
 

B
a
se

 B
id

 

A
d

d
it

iv
e 

A
lt

er
n

a
te

 

#
1
 

A
d

d
it

iv
e 

A
lt

er
n

a
te

 #
2

 

A
d

d
it

iv
e 

A
lt

er
n

a
te

 #
3

 

A
d

d
it

iv
e 

A
lt

er
n

a
te

 #
4

 
T

O
T

A
L

 

E
n

g
in

ee
r’

s 
E

st
im

a
te

 
$
1
,7

1
7
,0

7
9
.0

0
 

$
2
0
5
,2

0
0
.0

0
 

$
1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
 

$
1
3
9
,2

0
0
.0

0
 

$
2
2
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
 

$
2
,2

9
1
,4

7
9
.0

0
 

M
ar

in
a 

L
an

d
sc

ap
e,

 I
n
c.

 
$
1
,1

3
4
,4

5
4
.5

0
 

$
1
2
3
,1

2
0
.0

0
 

$
8
,5

0
0
.0

0
 

$
8
3
,5

2
0
.0

0
 

$
1
2
9
,0

0
0
.0

0
 

$
1
,4

7
8
,5

9
4
.5

0
 

W
A

B
O

 L
an

d
sc

ap
e 

&
 C

o
n
st

ru
ct

io
n
, 
In

c.
 

$
1
,5

6
1
,1

8
5
.0

0
 

$
1
2
1
,4

1
0
.0

0
 

$
7
,1

0
0
.0

0
 

$
8
2
,3

6
0
.0

0
 

$
1
4
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
 

1
,9

1
7
,0

5
5
.0

0
 

O
d
y
ss

ey
 C

o
m

p
an

ie
s 

$
1
,8

5
0
,2

5
4
.7

4
 

$
1
0
6
,6

8
6
.9

0
 

$
1
3
,5

0
0
.0

0
 

$
6
3
,6

8
4
.0

0
 

$
1
1
2
,0

1
5
.0

0
 

$
2
,1

4
6
,1

4
0
.6

4
 

11



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

12



AGENDA ITEM NO. 7
                  AGENDA TRANSMITTAL

 
MEETING DATE: February 21, 2023
 
CITY AGENDA ITEM: Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2023-___:  Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute Amendment Number Two (2) of the Agreement with the State of California for
Maintenance of State Highways in the City of Suisun City.
 
FISCAL IMPACT: There is no impact to the General Fund.  Maintenance of Highway 12 (State Route
12) is primarily funded by Caltrans’ annual financial contribution.  The original Agreement with
Caltrans was formalized in 1997 and provided the City with $14,000 per year for maintenance of
Highway 12.  Subsequently, Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement increased the amount the City
received per year by an additional $14,000 for a total contribution from Caltrans of $28,000 per year
commencing January 1, 2020.  Amendment No. 2 adds the maintenance of the new improvements to be
completed as part of the State Route 12 Landscape Improvements Project, and is required to be
executed in order for the City to secure a Caltrans encroachment permit to enable construction of the
State Route 12 Landscape Improvements Project to begin.
 
STRATEGIC PLAN: Provide Good Governance and Enhance the Environment.  
 
BACKGROUND: The Agreement for Maintenance of State Highways in the City of Suisun City
(Agreement), as provided for in Section 130 of the Streets and Highways Code, was executed by Suisun
City and by Caltrans in 1997.  Through this Agreement, the City is responsible for maintenance of the
3.5 miles of Highway 12 that fall within City limits.  Maintenance tasks include: weed control;
pruning/thinning removing/replacing plants, shrubs and trees; irrigation; and litter pickup.  The
Agreement included a financial contribution by the State to the City of $28,000 per year. 
 
STAFF REPORT: Tonight, on February 21, 2023, staff’s recommendation to award the State Route 12
Landscape Improvements construction contract is being brought in front of the City Council. The City
and the contractor will be required to secure a Caltrans encroachment permit to commence construction
activities on Highway 12.  The City has already applied for the Caltrans encroachment permit, which
Caltrans has approved and will issue upon the execution of Amendment No. 2 of the maintenance
agreement.  Amendment No. 2 adds the maintenance of the improvements proposed to be constructed
on the State Route 12 Landscape Improvements Project.
 
Moreover, City staff has made Caltrans aware of its desire to increase the frequency and level of
maintenance service on Highway 12.  Discussions between City staff and the Caltrans staff will
continue in the following weeks and may result in Amendment No. 3 to the maintenance agreement to
increase Caltrans’ annual financial contribution for the City’s maintenance of Highway 12.
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2023-
___:  Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Amendment Number Two (2) of the Agreement with
the State of California for Maintenance of State Highways in the City of Suisun City.
 
DOCUMENTS ATTACHED:

13



1. Resolution No. 2023-__:  Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Amendment Number Two (2)
of the Agreement with the State of California for Maintenance of State Highways in the City of
Suisun City.

2. Amendment Number 2 Agreement of Maintenance of State Highways in the City of Suisun City
3. Amendment Number 1 Agreement of Maintenance of State Highways in the City of Suisun City
4. Agreement for Maintenance of State Highways in the City of Suisun City dated July 1, 1997

 

PREPARED BY: Nick Lozano, Sr. Associate Engineer
REVIEWED BY: Nouae Vue, Public Works Director 
APPROVED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1 Resolution 2023-___ Execute Amendment Number Two of the Agreement with the State of California
for Maintenance of State Highways in the City of Suisun City.pdf
2 Amendment No. 2 Agreement Maintenance of State Highways in the City of Suisun City.pdf
3 Amendment No. 1 Agreement of Maintenance of State Highways in the City of Suisun City.pdf
4 Agreement for Maintenance of State Highways in the City of Suisun City Dated July 1, 1997.pdf

14

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1796703/1__Resolution_2023-____Execute_Amendment_Number_Two_of_the_Agreement_with_the_State_of_California_for_Maintenance_of_State_Highways_in_the_City_of_Suisun_City.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1796704/2__Amendment_No._2_Agreement_Maintenance_of_State_Highways_in_the_City_of_Suisun_City.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1796705/3__Amendment_No._1_Agreement_of_Maintenance_of_State_Highways_in_the_City_of_Suisun_City.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1797602/4__Agreement_for_Maintenance_of_State_Highways_in_the_City_of_Suisun_City_Dated_July_1__1997.pdf


 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023- 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AMENDMENT NUMBER 

TWO (2) OF THE AGREEMENT WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA FOR 
MAINTENANCEE OF STATE HIGHWAYS IN THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

 
WHEREAS, an Agreement for Maintenance of California State Highways in the City 

of Suisun City, hereinafter referred to as “AGREEMENT”, as provided for in Section 130 of 
the Streets and Highways Code, was executed by the City on October 14, 1997, and by the State 
on November 7, 1997; and 

WHEREAS, the AGREEMENT by its terms provides that it may be modified or 
amended at any time upon mutual consent of both parties; and 

WHEREAS, Amendment Number 1 to the AGREEMENT increased the State’s annual 
financial contribution for the City’s maintenance of Highway 12 (State Route 12), commencing 
on January 1, 2020; and 

WHEREAS, the City has recently received Clean California grant funding in the 
amount of $2.15M for construction of the proposed improvements on the State Route 12 
Landscape Improvements Project; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to continue to perform specific maintenance functions 
delegated to the City on Highway 12 within the City limits of the City of Suisun City in Solano 
County, including the new improvements to be constructed as part of the State Route 12 
Landscape Improvements Project; and 

WHEREAS, this Amendment Number 2 to the AGREEMENT delegates to the City 
the maintenance of the proposed improvements on the State Route 12 Landscape Improvements 
Project; and  

WHEREAS, in order to secure a Caltrans encroachment permit to enable construction 
on the State Route 12 Landscape Improvements Project to commence, this Amendment Number 
2 will first need to be executed by the City and the State; and  

WHEREAS, the parties hereto now desire that AGREEMENT be amended. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of 
Suisun City authorizes the City Manager to execute Amendment Number 2 of the Agreement 
for Maintenance of State Highways in the City of Suisun City. 

  
 
 
 
 

 

15



 

Resolution No. 2019- 
Adopted ___________ 
Page 2 of 2 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of said City Council of the City of 
Suisun City duly held on Tuesday, the 21st day of February 2023, by the following vote: 
 
AYES: Councilmembers:    
NOES: Councilmembers:    
ABSENT: Councilmembers:    
ABSTAIN: Councilmembers:    
 
 WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 21st day of February 2023. 
 
   
 Anita Skinner 
 City Clerk 
 

16



AMENDMENT No. 2  
TO AGREEMENT FOR MAINTENANCE 
OF STATE HIGHWAYS IN THE CITY OF 

SUISUN CITY 

This AMENDMENT Number 2 to the Maintenance Agreement hereafter referred to as 
“AMENDMENT No. 2”, is effective on          , and is entered into by and 
between the State of California, acting by and through the Department of Transportation, hereinafter 
referred to as “STATE”, and the City of Suisun City, hereinafter referred to as “CITY”. CITY and 
STATE together are hereafter referred to as “PARTIES”. 

WITNESSETH: 
WHEREAS, an Agreement for Maintenance of State Highways in the City of Suisun City, 
herein after referred to as “AGREEMENT”, was executed by CITY on October 14, 1997 and 
by STATE on November 7, 1997; and  

WHEREAS, AGREEMENT by its terms provides that it may be modified or amended at any 
time upon mutual consent of the PARTIES; and 

WHEREAS, the AGREEMENT was amended by the parties on December 11, 2019, with an 
effective date of January 1, 2020 (Amendment No. 1); and 

WHEREAS, the PARTIES mutually desire to identify the maintenance responsibilities of 
CITY for newly constructed and/or revised improvements within STATE's right of way by 
Encroachment Permit _______________ ; and 

WHEREAS, the PARTIES hereto now desire to amend the AGREEMENT as provided herein. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the PARTIES agree to amend AGREEMENT as follows: 

1. EXHIBIT A of AGREEMENT is hereby modified to read as shown on the attached
"Effective September 14, 2022, Amendment No. 2" EXHIBIT A, numbered page 1 of 3,
which shall be substituted for EXHIBIT A, numbered page 1 of 3 (as modified by
Amendment No. 1) and shall cancel and supersede such like numbered page, becoming a
part of AGREEMENT for all purposes.

2. EXHIBIT A of AGREEMENT is hereby modified to read as shown on the attached
"Effective September 14, 2022, Amendment No. 2" EXHIBIT A, numbered page 2 of 3,
which shall be substituted for the like named page exhibit in AGREEMENT and shall
cancel and supersede such like numbered page, becoming a part of AGREEMENT for all
purposes.

17

nlozano
Typewritten Text
Attachment No. 2



3. The attached EXHIBIT A-1, labeled "LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE", shall be added
to the end of EXHIBIT A in AGREEMENT and shall become a part of AGREEEMENT
for all purposes.

4. AMENDMENT No. 2 is hereby deemed to be included and made a part of AGREEMENT
and shall remain in full force and effect until amended or terminated. In all other respects,
AGREEMENT shall remain in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the PARTIES hereto have set their hands and seals the day and year 
first above written. 

CITY OF SUISUN CITY STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

By:  

    City Manager 

By:   
LEAH BUDU,
Deputy District Director  
Maintenance Division, District 04 

Attest:   
City Clerk 

Approved as to form:  

City Attorney 

18



City of Suisun City 
EXHIBIT A 

DELEGATION OF MAINTENANCE 

Effective September 14, 2022, 
Amendment No. 2

The specific maintenance function indicated below is hereby delegated to the CITY. This delegation of maintenance 
function set forth herein does not include the control and maintenance areas and functions which rest with the CITY 
under the terms of executed Freeway Agreements and/or Freeway Maintenance Agreements. 

Route No. Length 
Miles Description of Routing 

Maximum Annual 
  Program Authorized 
Delegated Expenditure 

12(a) 0.72 
Expressway: from west city limits  HM2C 
approximately 360 feet west of the  
Webster Street Undercrossing to the end of  
the expressway approximately 100 feet west 
of Marina Boulevard, a length of 0.72 mile for 
this section. 

Total Authorized Route 12(a)  

$ 14,000.00 

_________ 
 $14,000.00 

12(b) 2.48 Rio Vista Road: from end of expressway 
approximately 100 feet west of Marina Boulevard 
to east city limits approximately 640 feet east of 
Lawler Ranch Parkway/Walter Road, a length of 
2.48 miles for this section. 

Total Authorized Route 12(b) 

      12(c) 2.64 Rio Vista Road (see EXHIBIT A-1):  

o From West city limits, approximately 360
feet west of Webster St UC, to Webster St.
undercrossing, a length of 0.07 miles for
this section; and

o From 250 feet west of Rio Vista Rd/Civic
Center Blvd to 225 feet east Rio Vista
Rd/Civic Center Blvd. a length of 0.09
miles for this section; and

o From end of expressway  approximately
100 feet west of Marina Boulevard to east
city limits approximately 640 feet east of
Lawler Ranch Parkway/Walter Road, a
length of 2.48 miles for this section.

HM2C $14,000.00 

 _________ 
 $14,000.00 

HM2E  $0.00 

Total Authorized Route 12(c) 

Total Authorized Expenditure: 

 $0.00 

$28,000.00 

Page 1 of 3 
19



Page 2 of 3 

Effective September 14, 2022 
Amendment No. 2  

EXHIBIT A 

MAINTENANCE PROGRAM FUNCTIONS: 

HM2C SLOPES/DRAINAGE/VEGETATION 

This provides for cleaning, maintaining, and repairing culverts, ditches, 
drains, structures, fences, curbs, sidewalks and other appurtenances 
between the roadbed and the outer highway right-of-way boundary line (the 
roadside area between the face of curb and the right-of-way line, or where 
there is no curb, the roadside area between the edge of pavement and the 
right-of-way line). It also includes weed and brush control by chemical, 
biological or mechanical methods, trimming and removal of trees and pest 
control. Theꞏ scope of work for CITY under this program function shall only 
include the following: 

1. Nonlandscaped Weed Control
2. Nonlandscaped Tree/Bush/Vegetation
3. Litter Pickup

In accordance with Cooperative Agreement No. 10-885, STATE shall maintain 
the wetlands mitigation area located between Marina Boulevard and Grizzly 
Island Road. 

HM2E LANDSCAPING 

This provides for watering, fertilizing, removal of shrubs, and control of 
weeds in planted areas, as shown on EXHIBIT A-1. It also includes 
trimming, removal, and spraying of trees, replacement of plants, shrubs, and 
trees, and pest control in planted areas, as shown on EXHIBIT A-1. The 
following tasks are included: 

1. Weed Control
2. Pruning/Thinning/Removing/Replacing
3. Irrigation
4. Litter/debris removal.
5. Miscellaneous

CITY, at CITY expense, is solely responsible for all permitted improvements, 
including but not limited to plants (shrubs and trees), mulch, maintenance vehicle 
pullout (including structural adequacy), decomposed granite paving (including 
structural adequacy), fences, and basin type I as shown/delineated on 
EXHIBIT A-1.  

In accordance with Cooperative Agreement No. 10-885, CITY shall also maintain 
the closed storm drain system in the median. 

20



21

nlozano
Typewritten Text
Attachment No. 3



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



AGREEMENT FOR MAINTENANCE OF STATE HIGHWAYS 

IN THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

f.f 
J / This AGREEMENT is made effective this bav of 4 � , 193.J.,

by and between the State of California, acting by and through the�partment of 
Transportation, hereinafter referred to as "STATE", and the City of Suisun City, 
hereinafter referred to as "CITY". 

I. The parties desire to provide that CITY perform particular maintenance
functions on the State highways within the CITY as authorized in Section
130 of the Streets and Highways Code.

II. This Agreement shall supersede any previous Agreement for Maintenance of
State Highways in the City of Suisun City and/or amendments thereto with
the CITY.

Ill. The CITY shall perform such maintenance work as is specifically delegated to 
it, on the identified State highway routes, or portions thereof, all as 
hereinafter described under Exhibit A hereof or as said Exhibit may be 
subsequently modified with the consent of the parties hereto acting by and 
through their authorized representatives. 

IV. The degree or extent of maintenance work to be performed, and the
standards therefore, shall be in accordance with the provisions of Section 27
of the Streets and Highways Code and the then current edition of the State
Maintenance Manual (a copy of which has been provided to the CITY}, or as
may be prescribed from time to time by the District Director. "District
Director", as used herein, means the District Director of the Department of
Transportation assigned to the territory in which CITY is located; or an
authorized representative.

The ST A TE reserves the option to inspect at random all areas of State
highways maintained by the CITY. However, such random inspection does
not preempt the CITY's maintenance responsibilities as specified in this
Agreement. \

An encroachment permit will be required for third parties when maintenance
work is re-delegated. Such re-delegated work shall be performed at the same
levels of service as specified herein and will be subject to the same random
inspections as provided for work performed directly by CITY forces.

V. The functions and levels of maintenance service delegated to the CITY in the
attached Exhibit A, "Delegation of Maintenance", has been considered in
setting authorized total dollar amounts. The CITY may perform additional

33

nlozano
Typewritten Text
Attachment No. 4



VI. 

work if desired, but the STATE will not reimburse the CITY for any work in 

excess of the authorized dollar limits established herein. 

A. The STATE will reimburse the CITY for the actual cost of all routine

maintenance work performed by the CITY as delegated under Exhibit A

to this Agreement. It is agreed that during any fiscal year, the

maximum expenditure on any route shall not exceed the amount

shown in Exhibit A to this Agreement unless such expenditure is

revised by an amended Agreement or otherwise adjusted or modified

as hereinafter provided for.

The cost of operating and maintaining lighting at the intersection of

any State highway route and any CITY street/road shall be shared as

shown in Exhibit A.

B. The expenditure per route for routine maintenance work, as referred to

above, may be increased or decreased, redistributed between routes,

or additional expenditures for specific projects may be made, when

such adjustment of expenditures for routine maintenance or such

specific work is authorized in writing by the District Director or his

authorized representative and accepted by CITY in writing as an

amendment to Exhibit A.

C. Additional expenditures, or an adjustment of expenditures, once

authorized shall apply during the fiscal year designated therein and

shall not be deemed to permanently modify or change the basic

maximum expenditure per route as hereinafter specified. An

adjustment of any said maximum expenditure, either an increase or

decrease, shall not affect other terms of the Agreement.

VII. A new Exhibit A, "DELEGATION OF MAINTENANCE", will be provided

annually by the ST A TE for the ensuing fiscal year, if necessary, to ensure an

equitable annual cost allocation.

VIII. A. The CITY will submit bills in a consistent periodic sequence (monthly, 

quarterly, semiannually, or annually). Bills less than $500 shall not be 

submitted more than once each quarter. Bills must be submitted 

promptly following the close of STATE's fiscal year on each June 30 

and should be coded according to the Caltrans HM Program Code as 

outlined in this Agreement. Bills submitted for periods prior to the last 

fiscal year will be deemed waived and will not be honored, 

B. Maintenance services provided by contract or on a unit-rate basis with

overhead costs included shall not have these above-mentioned charges

2 

34



added again. An actual handling charge by the CITY for the direct 
cost of processing this type of bill will be allowed. 

IX. Nothing in the provisions of this Agreement is intended to create duties or
obligations to or rights in third parties not parties to this contract or to affect
the legal liability of either party to the contract by imposing any standard of
care respecting the maintenance of State highways different from the
standard of care imposed by law.

X. It is understood and agreed that neither the STATE nor any officer or
employee thereof is responsible for any damage or liability occurri_ng by
reason of anything done or omitted to be done by the CITY under or in
connection with any work, authority or jurisdiction delegated to the CITY
under this Agreement. It is understood and agreed that pursuant to 
Government Code Section 895.4 CITY shall defend, indemnify and save
harmless the State of California, all officers and employees from all claims,
suits or actions of every name, kind and description brought for or in account
of injuries to or death of any person or damage to property resulting from
anything done or omitted to be done by the CITY under or in connection
with any work, authority or jurisdiction delegated to the CITY under this
agreement.

XI. It is understood and agreed that neither the CITY nor any officer or employee
thereof is responsible for any damage or liability occurring by reason of
anything done or omitted to be done by the ST A TE under or in connection
with any work, authority or jurisdiction delegated to the ST A TE under this
Agreement. It is understood and agreed that pursuant to Government Code
Section 895 .4 STATE shall defend, indemnify and save harmless the CITY,
all officers and employees from all claims, suits or actions of every name,
kind and description brought for or in account of injuries to or death of any
person or damage to property resulting from anything done or omitted to be
done by the ST A TE under or in connection with any work, authority or
jurisdiction delegated to the STATE under this agreement.

XII. STATE costs and expenses assumed under the terms of this Agreeme\}t are
conditioned upon the passage of the annual State of California Budget by the
Legislature, the allocation of tunding by the Californi_a Transportation·
Commission as appropriate, and the encumbrance of funding to the District
Office of ST A TE to pay the billings by CITY.

XIII. This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect until amended by the
mutual consent of the parties thereto or terminated by either party upon
thirty (30) days notice to the other parties.

3 

35



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands and seals the 
day and year first above written. 

CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

��, /o//f/77 
CAMRAN NAJMI Oat� 
City Manager 

Attest: 

City Clerk Date 

Approved as to form: 

City Attorney Date 

'\ 

4 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

JAMES W. VAN LOBEN SELS 
Director of Transportation 

By 

GLENN E. BEHM 
District Division Chief 
Maintenance 

Date 

36



EXHIBIT A 

Effective� 1 /; / q J
�, 

DELEGATION OF MAINTENANCE 

The specific maintenance function indicated below is hereby delegated to the 
CITY. This delegation of maintenance function set forth herein does not include the 
areas and functions of which the control and maintenance rest with the CITY under 
the terms of Freeway Agreements and/or Freeway Maintenance Agreements. 

Route 
No. 

12(a} 

12{b} 

Length 
Miles Description of Routing 

0. 7 2 Expressway: from west city limits
approximately 360 feet west of the 
Webster Street Undercrossing to the 
end of the expressway approximately 
100 feet west of Marina Boulevard, a 
length of 0.72 mile for this section. 

Program 
Delegated 

HM2C $ 

Maximum 
Annual 

Authorized 
Expenditure 

7,000.00 

Total Authorized Route 12(a} $ 7,000.00 

2.48 Rio Vista Road: from end of HM2C $ 7,000.00 
expressway approximately 100 feet 
west of Marina Boulevard to east city 

HM2E $ 0.00 

limits approximately 640 feet east of 
Lawler Ranch Parkway/Walters Road, 
a length of 2.48 miles for this 
section. 

Total Authorized Route 12(b} $ 7,000.00 

TOTAL AUTHORIZED AMOUNT $ 14,000.00 

Page 1 of 3 

37



Effective: J / / / 17
I I 

EXHIBIT A 

MAINTNENANCE PROGRAM FUNCTIONS: 

HM2C 

HM2E 

SLOPES/DRAINAGE/VEGETATION 

This provides for cleaning, maintaining, and repairing culverts, ditches, 
drains, structures, fences, curbs, sidewalks and other appurtenances 
between the roadbed and the outer highway right-of-way boundary line 
(the roadside area between the face of curb and the right-of-way line, or 
where there is no curb, the roadside area between the edge of pavement 
and the right-of-way line). It also includes weed and brush control by 
chemical, biological or mechanical methods, trimming and removal of 
trees and pest control. The scope of work for CITY under this program 
function shall only include the following: 

1. Nonlandscaped Weed Control
2. Nonlandscaped Tree/Bush/Vegetation
3. Litter Pickup

In accordance with Cooperative Agreement No. 1 0-885, ST A TE shall 
maintain the Wetlands mitigation area located between Marina Boulevard 
and Grizzly Island Road. 

LANDSCAPING 

This provides for watering, fertilizing, removal of shrubs, and control of 
weeds in planted areas within the median. It also includes trimming, 
removal, and spraying of trees, replacement of plants, shrubs, and trees, 
and pest control in planted areas within the median; The following tasks 
are included: 

1. Weed Control
2. Pruning/Thinning/Removing/Replacing
3. Irrigation \ 4. Miscellaneous

In accordance with Cooperative Agreement No. 10-885, CITY shall also 
maintain the closed storm drain system in the median. 

Page 2 of 3 

38



HM4K 

Effective: 1 / I / 17
' 

EXHIBIT A 

ELECTRICAL 

This includes maintenance work performed on highway electrical facilities 
including flashing beacons, traffic signals, traffic-signal systems, safety 
lighting and sign lighting. It also includes the electrical energy for these 

items. 

Timing sequence of traffic signals shall be determined after consultation 
with the CITY; however, the decision of the District Director shall be final. 
For traffic signals delegated to the CITY, maintenance of the designed 
timing shall be the responsibility of the CITY. Timing records shall be 
kept in both CITY Maintenance and Traffic branches. 

COST SHARING OF ELECTRICAL FACILITIES 

The STATE will not pay for the maintenance, installation, repair, 
servicing, nor power for ordinary street lighting; however, lighting at 
intersections, which qualify as safety lighting under warrants 
approved/accepted by the ST A TE, will be -paid for when approved and 
specifically authorized by the District Director. Where such lighting has 
been specifically authorized, the maintenance and operating costs thereof 
shall be shared between the STATE and the CITY on a pro rata basis in 
the same ratio as the number of legs in the intersection under each 
jurisdiction bears to the total number of legs. 

The cost of maintaining traffic signals or other electrically operated traffic 
control devices now in place or those which may hereafter be installed at 
the intersection of any STATE highway route and any CITY street/road 
shall be shared between the STATE and the CITY on a pro rata basis in 
the same ratio as the number of legs in the intersection under each 
jurisdiction bears to the total number of legs. The same principle of cost 
distribution shall apply to freeway interchanges. The participation ratio 
shall be based on the ratio of the number of legs of the respective 
agencies to the total number of legs of the intersection. 

Page 3 of 3 

39



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

40



AGENDA ITEM NO. 8
                  AGENDA TRANSMITTAL

 
MEETING DATE: February 21, 2023
 
CITY AGENDA ITEM: Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2023-___:  Accepting the Asphalt
Rubber Cape Seal and Traffic Calming Project as Complete, and Authorizing the City Manager to
Record the Notice of Completion for the Project.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: There is no impact to the General Fund.  The pavement portion of the Asphalt
Rubber Cape Seal and Traffic Calming Project (Project) is funded with Senate Bill 1 (SB1) allocation
(available SB1 fund of $993,648 in FY 2021-22) and the traffic calming portion of the Project is funded
with Transportation Funds for Clean Air (TFCA) allocations ($80,920).  No local match is required
from either program.
 
STRATEGIC PLAN: Provide Good Governance, Ensure Public Safety, and Enhance the
Environment.  
 
BACKGROUND: On December 21, 2021, the City Council awarded the construction contract for the
Project to VSS International, Inc. (Contractor) in the amount of $736,436, including a 10% contingency
($73,644) for a maximum construction cost of $810,080. 
 
STAFF REPORT: The Contractor has completed the work under the construction contract.  Project
completed the following:
 

Digout repairs and asphalt rubber cape seal on Village Drive, as well as on Whispering Bay Lane
from Josiah Circle to Francisco Drive. This work also includes surface preparation streets,
removal, and replacement of curb ramps to meet accessibility requirements, protection of existing
utilities and pavement delineation.
Restriping the project street segments, including buffered bicycle lanes on Village Drive.
Traffic calming improvements (rectangular rapid flashing beacons, high visibility crosswalk,
concrete curb bulbout, and curb ramp upgrades) at the existing pedestrian/student crossing on
Whispering Bay Lane fronting Crystal Middle School. 

 
The City has received, reviewed and approved the Contractor’s final invoice for this contract.  The final
construction contract is $800,121.05, which is $9,958.95 less than the approved maximum construction
cost of $810,080.
 
VSS International, Inc. has completed the Project in an acceptable satisfactory manner, and it is now
appropriate to file the Notice of Completion (NOC) with the County for the work completed.  Staff
recommends accepting the project as complete and authorizing the City Manager to file and record the
NOC with the County, which will then start the one-year warranty period on the completed
improvements.
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2023-
___:  Accepting the Asphalt Rubber Cape Seal and Traffic Calming Project as Complete, and

41



Authorizing the City Manager to Record the Notice of Completion for the Project.  
 
DOCUMENTS ATTACHED:

1. Resolution No. 2023-__:  Accepting the Asphalt Rubber Cape Seal and Traffic Calming Project
as Complete, and Authorizing the City Manager to Record the Notice of Completion for the
Project.

2. Project Location Map.
3. Notice of Completion.
4. Photos.

 

PREPARED BY: Nick Lozano, Sr. Associate Engineer
REVIEWED BY: Nouae Vue, Public Works Director 
APPROVED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1 Resolution 2023-___ Accepting the Asphalt Rubber Cape Seal and Traffic Calming Project as
Complete, and Authorizing the City Manager to Record the Notice of Completion.pdf
2 Project Location Map - Asphalt Rubber Cape Seal and Traffic Calming Project.pdf
3 Notice of Completion.pdf
4 Photos - Asphalt Rubber Cape Seal and Traffic Calming Project.pdf

42

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1796779/1__Resolution_2023-____Accepting_the_Asphalt_Rubber_Cape_Seal_and_Traffic_Calming_Project_as_Complete__and_Authorizing_the_City_Manager_to_Record_the_Notice_of_Completion.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1796780/2__Project_Location_Map_-_Asphalt_Rubber_Cape_Seal_and_Traffic_Calming_Project.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1796781/3__Notice_of_Completion.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1796782/4__Photos_-_Asphalt_Rubber_Cape_Seal_and_Traffic_Calming_Project.pdf


 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023- 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 
ACCEPTING THE ASPHALT RUBBER CAPE SEAL AND TRAFFIC CALMING 

PROJECT AS COMPLETE, AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
RECORD THE NOTICE OF COMPLETION FOR THE PROJECT 

 
 WHEREAS, the City has received a Senate Bill 1 (SB1) allocation, specifically 
available SB1 fund of $993,648 in FY 2021-22, for the construction of the Asphalt Rubber Cape 
Seal and Traffic Calming Project (Project); and 
 WHEREAS, the City has also been awarded Transportation Funds for Clean Air 
(TFCA) allocation in the amount of $99,500 from the Solano Transportation Authority (STA), of 
which $80,920 is for the construction of traffic calming improvements on Whispering Bay Lane 
fronting Crystal Middle School; and 
 WHEREAS, on December 21, 2021, the City Council awarded the construction contract 
of $736,436, plus 10% for contingencies ($73,644), for the Project to VSS International, Inc.; 
and 
 WHEREAS, the construction contract includes performing digout repairs, asphalt rubber 
cape seal, and restriping on Village Drive as well as on Whispering Bay Lane from Josiah Circle 
to Francisco Drive, including buffered bicycle lanes on Village Drive and traffic calming 
improvements on Whispering Bay Lane fronting Crystal Middle School; and 
 WHEREAS, VSS International, Inc. has completed all work under the contract for the 
Project, submitted a final invoice for a total project cost of $800,121.05, and is ready to receive a 
Notice of Completion.  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Suisun 
City does hereby accept the improvements on the Asphalt Rubber Cape Seal and Traffic 
Calming Project as completed, and authorizes the City Manager to take such measures as 
necessary to execute and record the Notice of Completion. 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Suisun City duly held on Tuesday, the 21st day of February 2023, by the following vote: 
 
AYES: Councilmembers:    
NOES: Councilmembers:    
ABSENT: Councilmembers:    
ABSTAIN: Councilmembers:    

 WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 21th day of February 2023.  
 

   
 Anita Skinner 
 City Clerk 

 

43



L
o
ca

ti
o
n

 M
a
p

 

A
sp

h
al

t 
R

u
b
b
er

 C
ap

e 
S

ea
l 

an
d
 T

ra
ff

ic
 C

al
m

in
g
 P

ro
je

ct
 

V
il

la
g
e 

D
ri

v
e 

an
d
 W

h
is

p
er

in
g
 B

ay
 L

an
e 

P
R

O
JE

C
T 

LO
C

A
TI

O
N

 
V

ill
ag

e 
D

ri
ve

 

P
R

O
JE

C
T 

LO
C

A
TI

O
N

 
W

h
is

p
er

in
g 

B
ay

 L
an

e
 

44



1 

WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 
 
Name  Public Works Department   
 
Street   CITY OF SUISUN CITY 
Address  701 CIVIC CENTER BLVD. 
 
City &  SUISUN CITY, CA 94585 
State, Zip  
 

 

No Fee, per code 27283 
NOTICE OF COMPLETION 

 
A.P.N.    

Notice is hereby given that: 
1. The undersigned is owner of the interest or estate stated below in the property hereinafter described. 
2. The full name of the undersigned is  City of Suisun City       
3. The full address of the undersigned is  701 Civic Center Blvd.      

     Suisun City, CA 94585       
4. The nature of the title of the undersigned is: In fee.  N/A       

(If other than fee, strike “In fee” and insert, for example, “purchaser under contract of purchase,” or “lessee.”) 
 

5. The full names and full addresses of all persons, if any, who hold title with the undersigned as joint tenants or 
as tenants in common are: NONE 

NAMES     ADDRESSES 
               
               
               

6. The names of the predecessors in the interest of the undersigned, if the property was transferred subsequent to 
the commencement of the work of improvement herein referred to: NONE 

NAMES     ADDRESSES 
               
               

 (If no transfer made, insert “none.”) 
 

7. A work of improvement on the property hereinafter described was completed on:     February 21, 2023  
8. The name of the contractor, if any, for such work of improvement was               VSS International, Inc. 

              
(If no contractor for work of improvement as a whole, insert “none.”) 

 
9. The property on which said work of improvement was completed is in the City of        Suisun City , 

County of  Solano  , State of California, and is described as follows: 
         Asphalt Rubber Cape Seal and Traffic Calming Project      
              

 
10. The street address of said property is   Village Drive and Whispering Bay Lane (from Josiah Circle to                                 

Francisco Drive)                               
 
11. I declare under penalty of perjury the foregoing is true and correct. 

Signature of 
       owner named  
Dated:       in paragraph 2        
 
        By     Greg Folsom, City Manager  

SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECORDER’S USE 

 

45



P
h

o
to

s 

A
sp

h
al

t 
R

u
b
b
er

 C
ap

e 
S

ea
l 

an
d
 T

ra
ff

ic
 C

al
m

in
g
 P

ro
je

ct
 

V
il

la
g
e 

D
ri

v
e 

an
d
 W

h
is

p
er

in
g
 B

ay
 L

an
e 

P
ag

e 
1
 o

f 
3

 

V
il

la
g
e 

D
ri

v
e 

b
et

w
ee

n
 H

ig
h
w

ay
 1

2
 a

n
d
 C

o
ra

l 
L

an
e:

 

B
E

F
O

R
E

 

A
F

F
T

E
R

 

46



P
h

o
to

s 

A
sp

h
al

t 
R

u
b
b
er

 C
ap

e 
S

ea
l 

an
d
 T

ra
ff

ic
 C

al
m

in
g
 P

ro
je

ct
 

V
il

la
g
e 

D
ri

v
e 

an
d
 W

h
is

p
er

in
g
 B

ay
 L

an
e 

P
ag

e 
2
 o

f 
3

 

 

V
il

la
g
e 

D
ri

v
e 

b
et

w
ee

n
 P

in
ta

il
 D

ri
v
e 

an
d
 R

ai
lr

o
ad

 A
v
en

u
e:

 

B
E

F
O

R
E

 

 
 

A
F

F
T

E
R

 

 

47



P
h

o
to

s 

A
sp

h
al

t 
R

u
b
b
er

 C
ap

e 
S

ea
l 

an
d
 T

ra
ff

ic
 C

al
m

in
g
 P

ro
je

ct
 

V
il

la
g
e 

D
ri

v
e 

an
d
 W

h
is

p
er

in
g
 B

ay
 L

an
e 

P
ag

e 
3
 o

f 
3

 

 

W
h
is

p
er

in
g

 B
ay

 L
an

e 
fr

o
n
ti

n
g
 C

ry
st

al
 M

id
d
le

 S
ch

o
o
l:

 

B
E

F
O

R
E

 

  
 

 

A
F

F
T

E
R

 

  
 

48



AGENDA ITEM NO. 9
                  AGENDA TRANSMITTAL

 
MEETING DATE: February 21, 2023
 
CITY AGENDA ITEM: Council/Agency/Authority Approval of the Minutes of the Regular and/or
Special Meetings of the Suisun City Council, Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency, and
Housing Authority held on  held on October 27, 2022, November 15, 2022, and February 7, 2023.
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None
 
STRATEGIC PLAN: Provide Good Governance.
 
BACKGROUND: Pursuant to Government Code 40801, the City Clerk shall keep an accurate record
of the proceedings of the City Council meetings.  City Council minutes are prepared in a manner
consistent with the intent of the Government Code. Minutes provide a record of when and where the
meeting took place, type of meeting, and report any action taken, including the vote of each member of
the City Council. 
 
STAFF REPORT: The minutes of the City Council, Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency,
and Housing Authority meetings held on October 27, 2022, November 15, 2022, and February 7, 2023
are submitted for City Council review and approval.
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Council/Agency/Authority Approval of the Minutes of the Regular
and/or Special Meetings of the Suisun City Council, Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency,
and Housing Authority held on  held on October 27, 2022, November 15, 2022, and February 7, 2023.
 
DOCUMENTS ATTACHED:

1. Minutes - October 27, 2022 Special Closed Session Meeting
2. Minutes - November 15, 2022 Special Closed Session Meeting
3. Minutes - February 3, 2023 Special Closed Session Meeting
4. Minutes - February 3, 2023 Regular Council/Successor Agency/Housing Authority Meeting

 

PREPARED BY: Anita Skinner, City Clerk
REVIEWED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager
APPROVED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1 October 27 2022 Minutes Special City Council Meeting 530 pm.pdf
2 November 15 2022 Minutes Special Closed Session Meeting 530 pm.pdf
3 February 7 2023 Minutes Special Closed Session Meeting 530 pm.pdf
4 February 7 2023 Minutes Regular Meeting 630 pm.pdf

49

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1790511/1_October_27_2022_Minutes_Special_City_Council_Meeting_530_pm.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1790512/2__November_15_2022_Minutes_Special_Closed_Session_Meeting_530__pm.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1790513/3__February_7_2023_Minutes_Special_Closed_Session_Meeting_530__pm.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1790514/4__February_7_2023_Minutes_Regular_Meeting_630__pm.pdf


 

 DEPARTMENTS: AREA CODE (707)  
ADMINISTRATION 4 2 1 - 7 3 0 0    PLANNING 4 2 1 - 7 3 3 5    BUILDING 4 2 1 - 7 3 1 0    FINANCE 4 2 1 - 7 3 2 0  

FIRE 4 2 5 - 9 1 3 3    RECREATION & COMMUNITY SERVICES 4 2 1 - 7 2 0 0    POLICE 4 2 1 - 7 3 7 3    PUBLIC WORKS 4 2 1 - 7 3 4 0  
SUCCESSOR AGENCY 4 2 1 - 7 3 0 9  FAX 4 2 1 - 7 3 6 6  

 

CITY COUNCIL 
Mayor 
Alma Hernandez, Mayor Pro-Tem 
Jane Day 
Michael J. Hudson 
Wanda Williams 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

First and Third Tuesday 
Every Month 

 
 
 
 

MINUTES 
 

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE SUISUN CITY COUNCIL 
THURSDAY, OCTOBER 27, 2022 

5:30 P.M. VIA ZOOM 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS -- 701 CIVIC CENTER BOULEVARD -- SUISUN CITY, CALIFORNIA 
 

NOTICE 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953, subdivision (b), and in accordance with the provisions of SB 361 (2021), 
the following Council/Successor Agency/Housing Authority meeting includes teleconference participation by: 
Council/Board Members Jane Day, Michael Hudson, Wanda Williams, Mayor Pro Tem Alma Hernandez. 
Teleconference locations are on file at City Hall, 701 Civic Center Blvd., Suisun City, CA 94585. 
 
FACE MASKS ARE RECOMMENDED FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC WHILE IN CITY FACILITIES IF NOT 
FULLY VACCINATED.  IF YOU DO NOT HAVE A FACE MASK, ONE WILL BE PROVIDED FOR YOU.  
 

ZOOM MEETING INFORMATION:  
WEBSITE: https://zoom.us/join 

MEETING ID:   893 8364 2774 
CALL IN PHONE NUMBER: (707) 438-1720 

 
REMOTE PUBLIC COMMENT IS AVAILABLE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING  

BY EMAILING CLERK@SUISUN.COM (PRIOR TO 4pm) OR  
VIA WEBSITE OR PHONE APPLICATION, ZOOM 

 
(If attending the meeting via phone press *9 to raise your hand and *6 to unmute/mute for public comment.) 

 
ROLL CALL 
Vice Mayor Hernandez called the meeting to order at 5:32 pm with the following Council 
Members present: 
PRESENT:  Day, Hernandez, Hudson, Williams 
ABSENT:  None 
 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST NOTIFICATION   NONE 
(Any items on this agenda that might be a conflict of interest to any Councilmembers should be identified at this time.) 

 

50

https://zoom.us/join
mailto:CLERK@SUISUN.COM


October 27, 2022 City Council  Page 2 
 

  

PUBLIC COMMENT  NONE 
(Request by citizens to discuss any matter under our jurisdiction other than an item posted on this agenda per 
California Government Code §54954.3. Comments are limited to no more than 3 minutes unless allowable by the 
Mayor/Chair. Speaker cards are available on the table near the entry of the meeting room and should be given to the 
City Clerk. By law, no prolonged discussion or action may be taken on any item raised during the public comment 
period, although informational answers to questions may be given and matters may be referred for placement on a 
future agenda.) 

CLOSED SESSION  
Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54950 the Suisun City Council will hold a Closed 
Session for the purpose of: 
2. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION  

Name of case: Louisa Pickering and Michael Pickering (Plaintiffs) v. City of Suisun City 
(Defendants), et al - Case # FCS055707 
 

Council entered into Closed Session at 5:34pm. 
 

CONVENE OPEN SESSION 
There were no announcements following Closed Session. 
ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business the meeting was adjourned at  
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Anita Skinner, City Clerk 

51



 

 DEPARTMENTS: AREA CODE (707)  

ADMINISTRATION 4 2 1 - 7 3 0 0  ◼  PLANNING 4 2 1 - 7 3 3 5  ◼  BUILDING 4 2 1 - 7 3 1 0  ◼  FINANCE 4 2 1 - 7 3 2 0  

FIRE 4 2 5 - 9 1 3 3  ◼  RECREATION & COMMUNITY SERVICES 4 2 1 - 7 2 0 0  ◼  POLICE 4 2 1 - 7 3 7 3  ◼  PUBLIC WORKS 4 2 1 - 7 3 4 0  

SUCCESSOR AGENCY 4 2 1 - 7 3 0 9  FAX 4 2 1 - 7 3 6 6  

 

CITY COUNCIL 

Mayor 

Alma Hernandez, Mayor Pro-Tem 

Jane Day 

Michael J. Hudson 

Wanda Williams 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

First and Third Tuesday 

Every Month 
 

 

 

 

 
MINUTES 

 
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE SUISUN CITY COUNCIL 

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 15, 2022 

5:30 P.M. 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS -- 701 CIVIC CENTER BOULEVARD -- SUISUN CITY, CALIFORNIA 

 

NOTICE 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953, subdivision (b), and in accordance with the provisions of SB 361 (2021), 

the following Council/Successor Agency/Housing Authority meeting includes teleconference participation by: 

Council/Board Members Jane Day, Michael Hudson, Wanda Williams, Mayor Pro Tem Alma Hernandez. 

Teleconference locations are on file at City Hall, 701 Civic Center Blvd., Suisun City, CA 94585. 
 

FACE MASKS ARE RECOMMENDED FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC WHILE IN CITY FACILITIES IF NOT 

FULLY VACCINATED.  IF YOU DO NOT HAVE A FACE MASK, ONE WILL BE PROVIDED FOR YOU.  

 

THE CITY COUNCIL HAS RESUMED IN-PERSON MEETINGS IN ADDITION TO ZOOM. A LIMITED NUMBER 

OF SEATS ARE AVAILABLE, TO RESERVE A SEAT PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY CLERK AT clerk@suisun.com 

OR 707 421-7302.   

 

ZOOM MEETING INFORMATION:  

WEBSITE: https://zoom.us/join 

MEETING ID:   874 2632 4682 
CALL IN PHONE NUMBER: (707) 438-1720 

 

REMOTE PUBLIC COMMENT IS AVAILABLE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING  

BY EMAILING CLERK@SUISUN.COM (PRIOR TO 4pm) OR  

VIA WEBSITE OR PHONE APPLICATION, ZOOM 

 

(If attending the meeting via phone press *9 to raise your hand and *6 to unmute/mute for public comment.) 
 

ROLL CALL 

Vice Mayor Hernandez called the meeting to order at 5:34pm with the following Council Members 

present: 

PRESENT:  Day, Hernandez, Hudson 

ABSENT:  Williams 

 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST NOTIFICATION  None 
(Any items on this agenda that might be a conflict of interest to any Councilmembers should be identified at this time.) 

52

mailto:clerk@suisun.com
https://zoom.us/join
mailto:CLERK@SUISUN.COM


November 15, 2022 City Council  Page 2 

 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT  None 
(Request by citizens to discuss any matter under our jurisdiction other than an item posted on this agenda per 

California Government Code §54954.3. Comments are limited to no more than 3 minutes unless allowable by the 

Mayor/Chair. Speaker cards are available on the table near the entry of the meeting room and should be given to the 

City Clerk. By law, no prolonged discussion or action may be taken on any item raised during the public comment 

period, although informational answers to questions may be given and matters may be referred for placement on a 

future agenda.) 

CLOSED SESSION  

Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54950 the Suisun City Council will hold a Closed 

Session for the purpose of: 

City Council 

1. Conference with Legal Counsel - Existing Litigation 

Name of case: Louisa Pickering and Michael Pickering (Plaintiffs) v. City of Suisun City 

      (Defendants), et al - Case # FCS055707 

 

Council entered into Closed Session at 5:37pm. 

CONVENE OPEN SESSION 

Conference call with Legal Counsel.  Pickering terms not accepted by Council. 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business the meeting was adjourned at 6:00 pm. 

 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Anita Skinner, City Clerk 

53



CITY COUNCIL CITY COUNCIL MEETING   
Alma Hernandez, Mayor  
Princess Washington, Mayor Pro Tem  
Michael J Hudson, Member  
Jenalee Dawson, Member  
Amit Pal, Member 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES 
 

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE SUISUN CITY COUNCIL 
 

AND 
 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL ACTING AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE 
 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 
 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 7, 2023 
 

5:30 PM 
 
 

Suisun City Council Chambers - 701 Civic Center Boulevard - Suisun City, California  
 

 

NOTICE  
The following Council/Successor Agency/Housing Authority meeting may include teleconference participation by: 

Council/Board Members Michael Hudson, Jenalee Dawson, Amit Pal, Mayor Pro Tem Princess Washington, and Mayor 

Alma Hernandez, in accordance with subdivisions (b), (e), or (f) of Section 54953 of the Government Code, as applicable. 
 
 

FACE MASKS ARE RECOMMENDED FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC WHILE IN CITY FACILITIES IF NOT 

FULLY VACCINATED. IF YOU DO NOT HAVE A FACE MASK, ONE WILL BE PROVIDED FOR YOU. 

 
THE CITY COUNCIL HAS RESUMED IN-PERSON MEETINGS IN ADDITION TO ZOOM. A LIMITED NUMBER OF 

SEATS ARE AVAILABLE, TO RESERVE A SEAT PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY CLERK AT clerk@suisun.com OR 707 

421-7302. 
 

ZOOM MEETING INFORMATION:  
WEBSITE: https://zoom.us/join  
MEETING ID: 842 8982 8510  

CALL IN PHONE NUMBER: (707) 438-1720 

 
REMOTE PUBLIC COMMENT IS AVAILABLE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING BY EMAILING 

CLERK@SUISUN.COM (PRIOR TO 6 PM), VIA WEBSITE, OR ZOOM CALL IN PHONE NUMBER (707) 438-1720 

 
(If attending the meeting via phone press *9 to raise your hand and *6 to unmute/mute for public comment.) 

 

ROLL CALL  
Mayor Hernandez called the meeting to order at 5:31pm with the following Council Members present: 

PRESENT: Dawson, Hernandez, Hudson, Washington 

ABSENT:  Pal (arrived at 5:35pm) 

 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST NOTIFICATION  None  
(Any items on this agenda that might be a conflict of interest to any Councilmembers/Boardmembers should be identified at 

this time.) 

 
54



PUBLIC COMMENT  None 
 
(Request by citizens to discuss any matter under our jurisdiction other than an item posted on this agenda per California 

Government Code §54954.3. Comments are limited to no more than 3 minutes unless allowable by the Mayor/Chair. Speaker 

cards are available on the table near the entry of the meeting room and should be given to the City Clerk. By law, no 

prolonged discussion or action may be taken on any item raised during the public comment period, although informational 

answers to questions may be given and matters may be referred for placement on a future agenda.) 

 

CLOSED SESSION  

Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54950 the Suisun City Council and Suisun City 

Council Acting as Successor Agency will hold a Closed Session for the Purpose of: 
 

City Council 

 

1 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL--ANTICIPATED LITIGATION  
Discussion of potential significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Government Code 

Section 54956.9(d)(2) (1 potential case). 
 

2 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—EXISTING LITIGATION 

Name of Case: Giddens v. City of Suisun City Case No. 2:14-cv-00943 
 

3 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL-- EXISTING LITIGATION 

Name of Case: Moore v. City of Suisun City Case No. FCS058262 
 
Council entered into Closed Session at 5:35pm. 
 

CONVENE OPEN SESSION  
 

ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business the meeting was adjourned at 6:33pm. 
 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Anita Skinner, City Clerk 

55



CITY COUNCIL CITY COUNCIL MEETING   
Alma Hernandez, Mayor  
Princess Washington, Mayor Pro Tem  
Michael J Hudson, Member  
Jenalee Dawson, Member  
Amit Pal, Member 
 
 
 

MINUTES 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE SUISUN CITY COUNCIL, 
 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL ACTING AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE 
 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY, 
 

AND HOUSING AUTHORITY 
 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 7, 2023 
 

6:30 PM 
 
 

Suisun City Council Chambers - 701 Civic Center Boulevard - Suisun City, California  
 

 

NOTICE  
The following Council/Successor Agency/Housing Authority meeting may include teleconference participation by: 

Council/Board Members Michael Hudson, Jenalee Dawson, Amit Pal, Mayor Pro Tem Princess Washington, and Mayor 

Alma Hernandez, in accordance with subdivisions (b), (e), or (f) of Section 54953 of the Government Code, as applicable. 
 
 

FACE MASKS ARE RECOMMENDED FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLICWHILE IN CITY FACILITIES IF NOT 

FULLY VACCINATED. IF YOU DO NOT HAVE A FACE MASK, ONE WILL BE PROVIDED FOR YOU. 
 

THE CITY COUNCIL HAS RESUMED IN-PERSON MEETINGS IN ADDITION TO ZOOM. A LIMITED NUMBER OF 

SEATS ARE AVAILABLE, TO RESERVE A SEAT PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY CLERK AT clerk@suisun.com OR 707 

421-7302. 
 

ZOOM MEETING INFORMATION:  
WEBSITE: https://zoom.us/join 

MEETING ID: 860 6249 2012 

CALL IN PHONE NUMBER: (707) 438-1720 
 

REMOTE PUBLIC COMMENT IS AVAILABLE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING BY EMAILING 

CLERK@SUISUN.COM (PRIOR TO 6 PM), VIA WEBSITE, OR ZOOM CALL IN PHONE NUMBER (707) 438-1720 

 
(If attending the meeting via phone press *9 to raise your hand and *6 to unmute/mute for public comment.) 

 
(Next Ord. No. – 799)  

(Next City Council Res. No. 2023 – 10)  
Next Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency Res. No. SA2023 - 01)  

(Next Housing Authority Res. No. HA2023 – 01) 
 
City Attorney Gerli reported Item #2 from the 5:30pm Closed Session reached a settlement 
agreement and was unanimously approved by the Council. 

56



ROLL CALL 

Mayor Hernandez called the meeting to order at 6:44pm with the following Council Members present: 

PRESENT:  Dawson, Hernandez, Hudson, Pal, Washington 

ABSENT:  None 

 

Pledge of Allegiance was led by Vice Mayor Washington. 

Invocation was given by City Manager Greg Folsom. 
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST NOTIFICATION  None  
(Any items on this agenda that might be a conflict of interest to any Councilmembers / Boardmembers should be identified 

at this time.) 

 

REPORTS (Informational items only.) 

 

1 City Manager Update – (Folsom: gfolsom@suisun.com). 

• Monthly update out tomorrow and highlights 2022 achievements 

• Attended the Fire Department Badge pinning on 1/27/23 

• Attended the Marina Village topping out ceremony today where they put the top beam 

on the apartments 

• Attended the League of Womens Voters to educate kids on civics and how city council 

meetings work 

• Reminder that Monday, 2/20 is President’s Day and City Hall will be closed. 

 

2 Microtransit Presentation – (Solano Transportation Authority). 

Brandon Thompson gave the presentation.  He recognized Executive Director Daryl Halls,  

and Director of Programs Ron Grassi who were in attendance, and on-line Debbie and 

Lorraine.  A quarterly report will be given in April.  Microtransit reservation phone number is 

707-673-2129. 

 

Council Members commented and asked clarifying questions.  Mr. Thompson responded 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Donna LeBlanc thanked  Brandon for being receptive on her questions and seeing that children 

get to school safely. 

 

3   Public Safety Committee – (Folsom: gfolsom@suisun.com). 

 Terry West, Committee Chairperson presented the report. 

 Council thanked Mr. West for the presentation. 

 
 

PRESENTATION/APPOINTMENTS  
(Presentations, Awards, Proclamations, Appointments). 

 

4 Mayoral Appointments of Commissions and Committees – (Hernandez:  

ahernandez@suisun.com). 

Mosquito Abatement –  

Mayor Hernandez reappointed Marlon Osum. 

 

57

mailto:gfolsom@suisun.com
mailto:gfolsom@suisun.com
mailto:ahernandez@suisun.com


Motion by Mayor Hernandez to approve appointment and seconded by Council Member 

Hudson.  Motion passed by the following vote: 

AYES:  Dawson, Hernandez, Hudson, Pal, Washington 

NOES:  None 

ABSENT:  None 

 

Recreation, Parks, Marina and Arts Commission Appointments –  

Mayor Hernandez reappointed Eddrick Osborne and Aaron Sencil and appointed Essex Cook, 

Lilia Dardon, Jonathan Faria, John Harter and Donna LeBlanc. 

 

Motion by Mayor Hernandez to approve appointments and seconded by Vice Mayor 

Washington.  Motion passed by the following vote: 

 

AYES:  Dawson, Hernandez, Hudson, Pal, Washington 

NOES:  None 

ABSENT:  None 

 

Several appointees thanked council for the appointment to the Commission. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT  
(Request by citizens to discuss any matter under our jurisdiction other than an item posted on this agenda per California 

Government Code §54954.3. Comments are limited to no more than 3 minutes unless allowable by the Mayor/Chair. Speaker 

cards are available on the table near the entry of the meeting room and should be given to the City Clerk. By law, no 

prolonged discussion or action may be taken on any item raised during the public comment period, although informational 

answers to questions may be given and matters may be referred for placement on a future agenda.) 

 

James Berg addressed concerns on City Ordinance 790 regarding the Planning Commission terms of 

appointment. 

 

Shannon Hacker 

Clerk Skinner read email comment regarding RFP for 1240 Kellogg Street and asked when a formal 

response will be given and when will the item be on an agenda. 

 

Terry West commented February is Civil Grand Jury month; and gave a brief explanation of the grand 

jury. 

 
Mike Wright, Grand Jury member, supplied applications for members of the public. 
 
Jeremy Snyder, Police Officers Association President, voiced concerns about the department being short 
staffed and the city’s rise in crime as a result.  
 
George Gyunn commented he was glad members of the Grand Jury spoke; attended Board of Supervisors 
meeting today were they voted to require 4/5th votes to pass items and suggested the city consider doing 
the same on some items; consider getting a new auditor, comments regarding dredging. 
 
Steve Olry gave a salute to newly appointed volunteers; commented on city needing to focus on getting 
revenue; commented on ethics of personal matters being aired on Facebook and Next Door by some of 
the new council members. 
 

58



James Berg voiced concerns about the RFP process on 1240 Kellogg and possible discrimination; 
thanked Lito Santo for his help in moving the homeless person from Grizzly Island Road. 
 
Michael Anthony commended on 1240 Kellogg Street; requested copies of minutes but have not received 
them; property empty for 4 years, city is losing rent, property taxes and building is deteriorating rapidly. 
 
Michelle Chavez thanked Public Works for cleaning up Hwy 12 and Grizzly Island Rd; voiced concerns 
about safety and liability of individuals acting on their own in this matter. 
 
Donna LeBlanc commented the library will be closed for the upcoming Washington/Lincoln holidays; 
when will the Hwy 12 grant be brought back to council, plans must be completed before June, 2023 or 
we will lose the $2.1mil; asked for a follow-up Pete Dominguez memorial bench. 
 
Brian Ferraro congratulated new council members; Hwy 12 upgrade progress; thank you to Lito Santos; 
trash is destroying our habitat; asked about an update on tractor supply property. 
 
Joe Joyce congratulated newest Council member; glad Grizzley Island site was cleaned up; commented 
on the way the urgency was created, Next Door campaign to rid the person from Grizzl Island/Hwy 12 
comments were unfounded. 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS 

 

5 Council/Board Member Updates. 

 

Council Member Dawson reported that she and Council Member Hudson have been working together on 

the illegal trash and dumping ad hoc have been making headway on resolutions; a formal update later 

this month. 

 

Council Member Hudson commented they have been working on requirements for businesses to have 

dumpsters; public nuisance abatement; possible ways to collect fees; code updates to make them more 

enforceable; spoke with Debbie Ferguson, there may be some credits with ENG that may be available 

and is waiting for a response to help with solar lighting and solar cameras. 

 

Council Member Pal commented as a new member has been meeting staff and working with Mr. Folsom 

on some ideas that may be coming forward in the next month; attended the Fire Department badge 

pinning; attended Rotary meeting as guest of Vice Mayor Washington. 

 

Council Member Washington  welcomed the new members of the Fire Department; attended a 

celebration for Black History Month at Marina Lounge; accompanied the F-S Chamber of Commerce as 

they engaged local businesses and encouraged the use of the new Shop Where You Live app; thanked 

Public Work Department and happy birthday to Jim Herrod who spearheaded the clean up on Grizzly 

Island; thank you to the public for wanting to see our city be beautiful and your commentaries; Mr. 

Herrod plans a cleanup on Feb 14 and invites council to attend;  

 

Mayor Hernandez extend gratitude to council for their assistance in this matter; legalities involved as this 

was not city property; she along with Council Members Dawson, Washington attended new council 

member conference; past weekend City Hall was the site for a Solano Youth Coalition event; appointed 

to Capitol Corridor Joint Powers Authority; next week onboarded on LAFCO; member of the joint 

committee with FS Unified School District and met last week and reporting out for School Tripper there 

were 600 trips for students in the month of January, reported complaints concerning congestion around 

Dan O’Root; Super Summer Academy taking place at Dan O’Root, Crescent and Suisun Elementaries; 

59



BIT Bridge program taking place at Crystal Middle School beginning June 13th and special education 

summer programs.  Additional information can be found at www.fsusd.org. 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR  
Consent calendar items requiring little or no discussion may be acted upon with one motion. 

 

City Council 

 

6 Council Consideration and possible action to adopt Resolution No. 2023-11: A Resolution of 

the City Council of the City of Suisun City proclaiming a local emergency persists and 

authorizing the use of remote teleconference meeting procedures by the City’s legislative 

bodies, as authorized by government code section 54953(e) et seq., through no later than March 

8, 2023 - (Folsom: gfolsom@suisun.com). 
 

7 Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2023-12: Approving an Application for Funding and the 

Execution of a Grant Agreement and Any Amendments Thereto from the 2020 Community 

Development Block Grant Program Coronavirus Round 1 (CDBG-CV1) Notice of Funding 

Availability (NOFA) Dated June 5, 2020 – (Lofthus: klofthus@suisun.com). 

 

8 Council Adoption of Resolutions Amending the Citywide Classification and Compensation 

Plans as Follows: - (Penland: cpenland@suisun.com). 

a. Resolution No. 2023-13:  Retitling the Housing Manager Classification to Housing 

Programs Manager and Amending the Class Specification; and 

b. Resolution No. 2023-14:  Amending the Citywide Salary Schedule to Update the Job 

Title and Salary for the Housing Programs Manager Classification. 
 

9 Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2023 -15:  Amend the Community Services Officer  
Class Specifications – (Penland: cpenland@suisun.com). 

 

Joint City Council / Housing Authority 

 

10 Fiscal Year 2021-22 Year End Budget Amendments: - (Deol: ldeol@suisun.com).  
a. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2023-16:  Adopting the 9th Amendment to the 

Annual Appropriation Resolution No. 2021-57 to Appropriate Funding in Various 

Programs Citywide to Meet Actual Fiscal Year 2021-22 Obligations Pursuant to Audit 

Determinations. 

b. Housing Authority Board Adoption of Resolution No. HA 2023-01: Adopting the 1st 

Amendment to the Annual Appropriation Resolution No. HA 2021-01 to Appropriate 

Additional Funding to Meet Actual Fiscal Year 2021-22 Obligations Pursuant to Audit 

Determinations. 
 

Joint City Council / Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency / Housing Authority 

 

11 Council/Agency/Authority Approval of the Minutes of the Regular and/or Special Meetings of 

the Suisun City Council, Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency, and Housing 

Authority held on January 3, 2023, January 17, 2023, and January 24, 2023 – (Skinner: 

clerk@suisun.com). 

 

60

mailto:gfolsom@suisun.com
mailto:klofthus@suisun.com
mailto:cpenland@suisun.com
mailto:cpenland@suisun.com
mailto:ldeol@suisun.com
avca:d756df46-238a-4ed1-aefe-f55852f3a904@00:00:00
mailto:clerk@suisun.com


Item #8 

Dan Healy, SCMPEA President 

Clerk read email comment: SCMPEA represents the vacant Housing Manager position and opposes the 

reclassification of this position as implemented.  The city recommends a 24% salary increase; meanwhile 

other current employees are awaiting their reclassification process.  The city has demonstrated a priority 

to pay appropriately for this vacant position rather than paying appropriately for current staff.  Please 

take the step of delaying this reclassification until the currently staffed reclassifications are completed. 

 

Item 10 

Donna LeBlanc asked clarifying questions on Page 45 & 46 regarding the taking of funds from certain 

accounts to pay for budget shortfalls for 2021-22; asked what are “field supplies”, government permit 

taxes and SLESF. 

 

Finance Director Deol gave a brief response to her questions. 

 

Motion by Council Member Hudson to approve Consent Calendar and seconded by Council 

Member Dawson.  Motion passed by the following vote: 

AYES:  Dawson, Hernandez, Hudson, Pal, Washington 

NOES:  None 

ABSENT:  None 

 

PUBLIC HEARING NONE 

 

GENERAL BUSINESS 

 

12. Presentation and discussion on maintenance and beautification of City-wide medians. – (Vue: 
nvue@suisun.com). 
 

Public Works Director Vue presented the report. 

 

Council asked clarifying questions. 

Director Vue responded to council questions and concerns. 

 

Council discussion suggesting joint meeting with the Planning Commission. 

Special meeting to get public involved. 

Consensus for no external consultant to create a master plan. 

No consensus for removal of medians. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Donna LeBlanc commented liked getting public involved, maybe a survey; asked if standards change 

would it affect anything already in process; non-main medians to do concrete; major two arteries 

(Sunset/Walters) maintain with drought tolerant plants. 
 

REPORTS: (Informational items only) 

 

13 Non-Discussion Items 

 

61

mailto:nvue@suisun.com).


ADJOURNMENT      

There being no further business the meeting was adjourned at 8:51pm. 

 

 

__________________________ 

Anita Skinner, City Clerk 

 

62



AGENDA ITEM NO. 11
                  AGENDA TRANSMITTAL

 
MEETING DATE: February 21, 2023
 
CITY AGENDA ITEM: HEARING:
Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2023-___:  Placing Liens for Unpaid Waste Collection Service
Charges on Certain Lands Situated in the City of Suisun City, County of Solano, State of California.

 
FISCAL IMPACT: Republic Services, Inc. is requesting that the City Council place liens on 256
delinquent solid waste accounts representing approximately $100,905.87 in uncollected solid waste
collection service charges.  The City’s General Fund will receive twenty dollars per lien and 1.0 percent
of the total levy amount to be used as the recording fee and to offset the administrative costs associated
with the lien and levy process.  Through the lien and levy process, the City will collect on outstanding
franchise fees totaling 13.0 percent of the uncollected solid waste service charges when the money
actually is received.
 
STRATEGIC PLAN: Provide Good Governance, Ensure Fiscal Solvency.
 
BACKGROUND: Republic Services, Inc. provides solid waste collection service for properties located
in the City of Suisun City.  The Suisun City Code (SCC) Section 8.08.015 requires subscribers to pay
the collection charge directly to Republic Services, Inc.  In the event that a customer does not pay the
collection charges, Republic Services, Inc. must prepare delinquent notices to notify each customer that
the account is delinquent and could be subject to a lien/levy process whereby charges would be
recorded against the property.  

Republic Services, Inc. began actively pursuing collection of delinquent accounts in December 2001.
 Republic Services, Inc. will request hearings three times per year in order for the Suisun City Council
to consider enforcing the lien/levy process for delinquent waste charges
 
STAFF REPORT: Republic Services, Inc. customers were compared with the owners of record to the
parcel information database obtained from Solano County property records.  Notification letters were
mailed to all known property owners advising them of the lien and levy process.  The letters informed
the property owners that they could present their reasons for disputing the waste collection charges by
either attending the hearing, or by sending letters to the Council prior to the hearing.  

Republic Services, Inc. is asking that the City enforce SCC Section 8.08.170 by placing a special
assessment/levying a lien on the properties that have delinquent charges.  Republic Services, Inc. will
verify accounts for payments prior to recording the special assessments
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the City Council:

1. Conduct a Hearing on the proposed liens; and 
2. Adopt Resolution No. 2023-___: Placing Liens for Unpaid Waste Collection Service Charges on

Certain Lands Situated in the City of Suisun City, County of Solano, State of California.
 

63



DOCUMENTS ATTACHED:
1. Resolution No. 2023-___:  Placing Liens for Unpaid Waste Collection Service Charges on

Certain Lands Situated in the City of Suisun City, County of Solano, State of California.
2. Exhibit A provides a listing of delinquent accounts, as compiled by Republic Services, Inc., and it

will be updated and made available to the City Council in advance of the meeting.
 

PREPARED BY: Lakhwinder Deol, Finance Director
REVIEWED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager
APPROVED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1 Resolution 2023-___ Placing Liens for Unpaid Waste Collection Service Charges.pdf
2 Exhibit A Preliminary Lien List 2-14-23.pdf

64

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1792031/1__Resolution_2023-_____Placing_Liens_for_Unpaid_Waste_Collection_Service_Charges.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1797620/2__Exhibit_A_Preliminary_Lien_List_2-14-23.pdf


 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023- 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

PLACING LIENS FOR UNPAID WASTE COLLECTION SERVICE CHARGES  

ON CERTAIN LANDS SITUATED IN THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY,  

COUNTY OF SOLANO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Suisun City Code (SCC) Section 8.08.015 owners of all 

occupied premises must subscribe to and pay for weekly waste collection service; and 

 WHEREAS, the premises located in the City of Suisun City, County of Solano, State 

of California, and described in Exhibit A attached hereto and by this reference incorporated 

herein, were provided with waste collection service as required by the SCMC Section 

8.08.015; and 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of SCC Section 8.08.015, all required notices 

were directed to owners of said properties and said owners failed to make payment for waste 

collection services as required; and 

 WHEREAS, as a result thereof, the City of Suisun City has incurred charges for 

delinquent waste collection charges and administrative costs, which amounts remain unpaid. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Suisun 

City that pursuant to SCC Section 8.08.170, the City Council does hereby lien said premises, in 

the amounts applicable to each specific premise as identified in Exhibit A attached hereto and 

incorporated herein by this reference. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Exhibit A may be amended to delete any 

enumerated waste collection service charges and administrative costs paid before liens 

authorized hereby are forwarded to the County Recorder of Solano County, California. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk is hereby directed to record this 

Resolution, together with Exhibit A as may be amended, with the Office of the County Recorder 

of Solano County, California. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager of the City of Suisun City is 

authorized to take such further actions as are necessary or appropriate to implement this 

Resolution and is also authorized to execute any other document(s) that may be necessary or 

appropriate to process or release said liens. 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Suisun City held on Tuesday the 21st day of February 2023 by the following vote: 

AYES: Councilmembers:    

NOES: Councilmembers:    

ABSENT: Councilmembers:    

ABSTAIN: Councilmembers:    

 WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 21st day of February 2023.  

 
   

 Anita Skinner 

 City Clerk 

65



PA
RC

EL
O
w
ne

rs
Na

m
e

Bi
lli
ng

Ad
dr
es
s

Bi
lli
ng

Ad
dr
es
s

Nu
m
be

r
Se
rv
ice

Ad
dr
es
s

Th
ru

Ch
ar
ge
s

Ch
ar
ge

So
la
no

Co
un

ty
Lie

n
Re

le
as
e
Fe
e

To
ta
l

17
41

82
10

W
IL
LI
AM

S
JA
M
ES

M
/W

IL
LI
AM

S
JA
M
ES

R
50

1
AC

AP
UL

CO
CT

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

50
1

AC
AP

UL
CO

CO
UR

T
22

/0
9

54
9.
30

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

59
4.
30

32
10

14
4

M
AK

IN
JO
HN

/M
AK

IN
SO

LE
IL

70
6
A
AL
M
O
ND

ST
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

70
6

AL
M
O
ND

ST
RE

ET
22

/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

17
32

14
11

RE
Y
M
IC
HA

EL
JT

13
19

AM
AD

O
R
W
Y

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

13
19

AM
AD

O
R
W
AY

22
/0
9

31
7.
92

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

36
2.
92

37
35

21
4

M
YL
ES

DE
IR
DR

E
L&

BR
YA

N
JT

13
05

AM
BE

R
DR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

13
05

AM
BE

R
DR

IV
E

22
/1
1

33
7.
14

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

38
2.
14

17
43

81
09

EV
AN

S
FR
ED

DI
E
J&

TE
RE

SA
JT

17
60

AN
DR

EW
S
CR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

17
60

AN
DR

EW
S
CI
RC

LE
22

/0
9

31
7.
92

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

36
2.
92

17
43

82
12

GO
M
EZ

AD
RI
AN

V
17

77
AN

DR
EW

S
CR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

17
77

AN
DR

EW
S
CI
RC

LE
22

/0
9

15
2.
38

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

19
7.
38

17
34

61
09

M
AR

TI
NE

Z
DA

VI
D
JT

10
11

AR
M
SB
Y
W
Y

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

10
11

AR
M
SB
Y
W
AY

22
/1
2

34
6.
15

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

39
1.
15

37
23

41
1

TH
O
M
PS
O
N
W
AY

NE
LJ
R
JT

51
0
AV

AL
O
N
W
AY

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

51
0

AV
AL
O
N
W
AY

22
/0
9

61
2.
32

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

65
7.
32

17
33

54
13

SA
LI
NA

S
JO
SE
PH

M
&
F
JJ
T

10
31

BA
RR

O
W
S
DR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

10
31

BA
RR

O
W
S
DR

IV
E

22
/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

17
35

02
04

PR
AT

ER
NI
CO

LE
/R
EY
ES

M
IS
TY

94
7
BE

EC
HW

O
O
D
CI
R

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

94
7

BE
EC

HW
O
O
D
CI
R

22
/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

17
35

03
08

AY
M
AR

PA
TR

IC
K
M

94
2
BE

EC
HW

O
O
D
CI
R

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

94
2

BE
EC

HW
O
O
D
CI
R

22
/1
2

34
6.
15

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

39
1.
15

17
42

33
08

PE
PP

ER
S
M
IC
HA

EL
&
BR

AN
DI

LJ
T

53
4
BE

LL
A
VI
ST
A
DR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

53
4

BE
LL
A
VI
ST
A
DR

22
/0
9

31
7.
92

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

36
2.
92

17
43

05
16

CO
LO

NY
ST
AR

W
O
O
D
HO

M
ES

86
65

E
HA

TF
O
RD

DR
.#
20

0
SC
O
TT
SD

AL
E
AZ

85
25

5
80

1
BE

LL
A
VI
ST
A
DR

22
/1
1

17
1.
67

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

21
6.
67

17
42

92
05

HI
GH

FI
LL

KE
VI
N
S
&
E
A
JT

15
10

BE
LL
A
VI
ST
A
DR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

15
10

BE
LL
A
VI
ST
A
DR

22
/1
1

22
0.
55

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

26
5.
55

32
08

10
3

FE
NN

IE
DA

NA
52

21
LO

NG
VI
EW

LA
NE

GR
EE
NW

O
O
D
CA

95
63

5
24

1
BE

NT
O
N
CO

UR
T

22
/1
1

18
1.
68

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

22
6.
68

17
33

75
14

JO
HN

ST
O
N
M
IC
HA

EL
/A
GU

IL
AR

JO
HN

ST
O
N
M

81
7
BE

RI
NG

W
Y

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

81
7

BE
RI
NG

W
AY

22
/1
2

34
6.
15

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

39
1.
15

32
39

13
7

LU
CA

S
LI
NE

TT
E

12
7
BI
RC

HW
O
O
D
CT

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

12
7

BI
RC

HW
O
O
D
CT

22
/1
1

34
4.
17

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

38
9.
17

17
34

96
02

FI
NL

EY
M
AU

RI
CE

/F
IN
LE
Y
RA

M
O
NA

12
03

BI
TT
ER

N
W
Y

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

12
03

BI
TT
ER

N
W
AY

22
/1
2

34
1.
84

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

38
6.
84

17
33

74
13

M
CC

LI
NT

O
N
RO

O
SE
VE

LT
JR

JT
10

05
BL
AC

KS
PU

R
CT

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

10
05

BL
AC

KS
PU

R
CO

UR
T

22
/0
9

41
8.
33

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

46
3.
33

17
33

74
05

CA
ST
AN

O
N
LI
NA

PO
BO

X
15

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

81
1

BL
AC

KS
PU

R
DR

IV
E

22
/0
9

31
7.
92

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

36
2.
92

17
30

29
01

M
AR

IA
O
TE
RO

82
3
BL
O
SS
O
M

AV
E

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

82
3

BL
O
SS
O
M

AV
EN

UE
22

/1
0

31
4.
00

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

35
9.
00

17
30

46
07

BO
RL
EK

M
IC
HA

EL
R
&
CH

AR
IT
Y
A

81
3
BL
O
SS
O
M

AV
E

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

81
3

BL
O
SS
O
M

AV
EN

UE
22

/0
9

31
7.
92

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

36
2.
92

17
30

92
04

HU
EY

W
IL
LI
E
JT

50
7
BL
UE

W
IN
G
DR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

50
7

BL
UE

W
IN
G
DR

IV
E

22
/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

17
31

41
16

GA
VG

AV
IA
N
BO

GH
O
S
&
W
IL
M
A
JT

52
2
BL
UE

W
IN
G
DR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

52
2

BL
UE

W
IN
G
DR

22
/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

17
34

93
19

O
LI
VE

R
JO
YC

E
V

10
02

BL
UE

JA
Y
DR

.
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

10
02

BL
UE

JA
Y
DR

22
/1
1

33
7.
14

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

38
2.
14

17
34

94
18

GW
EN

W
O
O
D

10
21

BL
UE

JA
Y
DR

.
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

10
21

BL
UE

JA
Y
DR

22
/0
9

33
7.
51

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

38
2.
51

32
47

22
0

VU
CU

O
NG

&
JU
LI
E

71
8
BR

EA
KW

AT
ER

CR
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

71
8

BR
EA

KW
AT

ER
CI
R

22
/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

32
47

30
5

SO
SS
AM

AN
JE
RA

M
Y
&
SH

AR
O
N

71
9
BR

EA
KW

AT
ER

CR
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

71
9

BR
EA

KW
AT

ER
CI
R

22
/1
1

48
4.
64

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

52
9.
64

17
35

61
02

CR
AT

ER
TH

O
M
AS

&
LA
TW

AN
A
JT

22
3
BR

ID
GE

W
AT

ER
CR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

22
3

BR
ID
GE

W
AT

ER
CI
RC

22
/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

32
36

21
6

GO
NZ

AL
EZ

DA
VI
D

75
BU

EN
A
VI
ST
A
AV

E
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

75
BU

EN
A
VI
ST
A
AV

EN
U

22
/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

32
15

11
7

CR
AT

Z
AN

TH
O
NY

LT
R

21
5
CA

LI
FO

RN
IA

ST
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

21
5

CA
LI
FO

RN
IA

ST
RE

E
22

/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

37
31

22
1

BA
RK

ER
ST
EV

EN
KE
NT

PO
BO

X
80

2
HE

AL
DS

BU
RG

CA
95

44
8

11
50

CA
M
EL
LI
A
LA
NE

22
/1
0

29
9.
96

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

34
4.
96

17
33

01
07

SM
IT
H
CH

ER
YL

D
91

0
CA

NA
DA

GO
O
SE

DR
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

91
0

CA
NA

DA
GO

O
SE

DR
22

/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

17
31

72
04

M
EL
GO

ZA
SE
RG

IO
/M

EL
GO

ZA
AL
IC
IA

11
10

CA
NA

RY
DR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

11
10

CA
NA

RY
DR

IV
E

22
/1
2

34
6.
15

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

39
1.
15

17
31

72
15

CU
NN

IN
GH

AM
AD

AM
M

81
6
CA

NA
RY

DR
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

81
6

CA
NA

RY
DR

IV
E

22
/1
2

20
8.
24

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

25
3.
24

17
30

31
02

DE
SA

RM
ES

M
AR

IE
L

51
6
CA

NV
AS

BA
CK

DR
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

51
6

CA
NV

AS
BA

CK
DR

IV
E

22
/1
0

25
3.
97

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

29
8.
97

17
42

24
11

JO
SE
PH

TO
M
LI
NS

O
N

71
0
CA

PI
ST
RA

NO
DR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

71
0

CA
PI
ST
RA

NO
DR

IV
E

22
/1
2

33
7.
12

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

38
2.
12

17
42

95
02

M
UE

LA
NI
CH

O
LA
S
A

80
7
CA

PI
ST
RA

NO
DR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

80
7

CA
PI
ST
RA

NO
DR

IV
E

22
/1
1

33
7.
14

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

38
2.
14

17
44

91
22

KE
LL
EY

EL
IZ
AB

ET
H

17
76

CA
RS
W
EL
LC

T
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

17
76

CA
RS
W
EL
LC

O
UR

T
22

/0
9

31
7.
92

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

36
2.
92

17
44

92
08

RU
SS
EL
LE

W
AN

C
17

00
CA

RS
W
EL
LL

N
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

17
00

CA
RS
W
EL
LL

AN
E

22
/1
1

48
3.
73

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

52
8.
73

32
47

20
5

BU
IE
SA

M
UE

L&
AL
AN

A
JT

71
1
CA

TA
LI
NA

CR
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

71
1

CA
TA

LI
NA

CI
RC

LE
22

/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

66



17
35

72
08

FU
LL
EN

ST
EV

E/
FU

LL
EN

CR
IS
TI
NA

31
1
CH

IL
DS

CT
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

31
1

CH
IL
DS

CO
UR

T
22

/1
2

34
6.
15

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

39
1.
15

32
34

31
9

KH
UU

TU
AN

AN
H
TR

50
8
KI
NG

S
W
AY

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

88
CH

IP
M
AN

LA
NE

22
/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

37
23

21
1

LO
VE

LA
ND

ES
TH

ER
G

41
2
CH

YR
LW

Y
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

41
2

CH
YR

LW
AY

22
/1
2

33
7.
12

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

38
2.
12

17
35

62
23

BR
O
W
N
M
IK
EL

R
20

2
CL
EA

RB
RO

O
K
CT

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

20
2

CL
EA

RB
RO

O
K
CO

UR
T

22
/1
1

26
6.
00

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

31
1.
00

17
37

31
07

RA
M
O
ND

&
M

E
W
IL
LI
S
III

22
4
CL
O
VE

RL
EA

F
CI
R

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

22
4

CL
O
VE

RL
EA

F
CI
RC

L
22

/1
2

34
6.
15

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

39
1.
15

17
37

33
13

SA
UC

ED
O
M
AN

UE
L/
SA

UC
ED

O
RE

GI
NA

25
1
CL
O
VE

RL
EA

F
CR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

25
1

CL
O
VE

RL
EA

F
CI
RC

L
22

/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

17
37

33
18

M
CL
EO

D
SH

AL
AN

DA
N/

HA
M
IL
TO

N
RI
CK

Y
L

23
1
CL
O
VE

RL
EA

F
CR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

23
1

CL
O
VE

RL
EA

F
CI
RC

L
22

/1
1

19
0.
17

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

23
5.
17

17
37

43
07

W
AT

SO
N
DA

NI
EL
LE

26
8
CL
O
VE

RL
EA

F
CR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

26
8

CL
O
VE

RL
EA

F
CI
RC

L
22

/1
2

34
6.
15

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

39
1.
15

17
31

03
19

JA
CK

AN
NI
E
M

53
7
CO

O
T
LN

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

53
7

CO
O
T
LA
NE

22
/1
0

27
2.
57

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

31
7.
57

32
16

40
1

NA
GR

A
PA

RD
EE
P
S
&
SA

RJ
EE
T
JT

50
1
CO

RD
EL
IA

ST
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

50
1

CO
RD

EL
IA

ST
RE

ET
22

/1
0

29
0.
52

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

33
5.
52

17
31

93
02

CR
IN
ER

W
IL
LI
AM

R
&
JU
LI
E
A
JT

70
7
CR

AN
E
DR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

70
7

CR
AN

E
DR

IV
E

22
/1
1

44
6.
64

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

49
1.
64

17
35

51
05

RI
O
W
AY

NE
IJ
R

94
9
CR

AV
EN

DR
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

94
9

CR
AV

EN
DR

22
/1
2

34
6.
15

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

39
1.
15

17
35

52
06

PE
RK

IN
S
SM

IT
H
EL
AI
NE

YV
O
NN

E
91

4
CR

AV
EN

DR
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

91
4

CR
AV

EN
DR

IV
E

22
/0
9

31
7.
92

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

36
2.
92

17
35

52
09

KI
RK

AR
TH

UR
A
&
SU

SI
E
V

92
0
CR

AV
EN

DR
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

92
0

CR
AV

EN
DR

IV
E

22
/1
0

43
1.
84

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

47
6.
84

17
35

53
09

M
O
RA

LE
S
JE
AN

IN
E
S

93
1
CR

AV
EN

DR
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

93
1

CR
AV

EN
DR

IV
E

22
/1
1

53
5.
62

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

58
0.
62

17
42

10
03

0
DE

LG
AD

IL
LO

M
AR

IA
GU

AD
AL
UP

E
TR

20
11

O
LI
VE

AV
ST
. H

EL
EN

A
CA

94
57

4
50

59
CR

EE
D
RO

AD
22

/1
1

23
4.
31

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

27
9.
31

17
33

67
02

M
CC

LA
RT

Y
LA
W
RE

NC
E
CH

RI
ST
O
PH

ER
80

3
CR

ES
TE
D
DR

.
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

80
3

CR
ES
TE
D
DR

IV
E

22
/1
2

41
2.
21

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

45
7.
21

17
33

75
31

CA
RR

O
LL

LO
LI
TA

A
80

6
CR

ES
TE
D
DR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

80
6

CR
ES
TE
D
DR

IV
E

22
/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

17
35

32
11

M
EZ
A
EL
IA
S

40
6
DI
CK

EY
CT

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

40
6

DI
CK

EY
CO

UR
T

22
/0
9

31
7.
92

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

36
2.
92

17
34

75
02

RO
JA
S
VE

RO
NI
CA

42
9
DO

NA
LD

SO
N
CT

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

42
9

DO
NA

LD
SO

N
CO

UR
T

22
/1
2

34
6.
15

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

39
1.
15

17
43

93
08

W
IL
LI
AM

S
O
ZN

IE
SH

A
C

17
56

DO
VE

R
CR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

17
56

DO
VE

R
CI
RC

LE
22

/0
9

41
8.
33

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

46
3.
33

32
29

31
0

JA
CK

SO
N
PA

RI
S
C

10
18

DR
IF
TW

O
O
D
DR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

10
18

DR
IF
TW

O
O
D
DR

IV
E

22
/1
1

35
1.
78

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

39
6.
78

32
29

61
5

PA
VA

GE
AU

CA
RO

LY
N

90
2
DR

IF
TW

O
O
D
DR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

90
2

DR
IF
TW

O
O
D
DR

IV
E

22
/0
9

21
7.
92

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

26
2.
92

17
31

32
02

GO
RB

Y
LI
ND

A
L

57
7
E
W
IG
EO

N
W
Y

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

57
7

EA
ST

W
IG
EO

N
W
AY

22
/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

17
31

43
12

TH
PI
AC

Q
UI
SI
TI
O
N
HO

LD
IN
GS

LL
C

12
92

LI
NC

O
LN

AV
E

SA
N
RA

FA
EL

CA
94

90
1

54
4

EA
ST

W
IG
EO

N
W
AY

22
/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

17
31

44
02

20
12

C
PR

O
PE
RT

Y
HO

LD
IN
GS

LL
C

12
92

LI
NC

O
LN

AV
E

SA
N
RA

FA
EL

CA
94

90
1

55
1

EA
ST

W
IG
EO

N
W
AY

22
/1
0

66
5.
68

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

71
0.
68

17
35

12
06

KR
UM

M
ES

M
IC
HA

EL
S

92
8
ED

GE
W
O
O
D
CR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

92
8

ED
GE

W
O
O
D
CI
RC

LE
22

/0
9

31
7.
92

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

36
2.
92

17
35

12
07

EL
LI
NG

SO
N
DA

RL
A

92
6
ED

GE
W
O
O
D
CR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

92
6

ED
GE

W
O
O
D
CI
RC

LE
22

/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

17
35

53
13

CA
ST
RO

RE
ST
IT
UT

O
T
&
T
W

TR
13

04
RE

EV
ES

CT
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

50
7

ED
W
AR

DS
CO

UR
T

22
/1
0

33
5.
08

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

38
0.
08

17
41

82
45

PU
CC

IJ
O
SE
PH

P
&
DE

BR
A
JT

51
8
EL

M
AR

CT
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

51
8

EL
M
AR

CO
UR

T
22

/1
1

19
6.
11

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

24
1.
11

17
41

82
54

DA
VE

NP
O
RT

AD
O
LP
HU

S
LS

R
&
P
A

50
1
EL

M
AR

CT
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

50
1

EL
M
AR

CO
UR

T
22

/1
1

62
1.
32

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

66
6.
32

17
42

24
22

RO
CK

Y
RA

Q
UE

DA
N

15
02

EL
PR

AD
O
LA
NE

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

15
02

EL
PR

AD
O
LA
NE

22
/1
1

34
0.
27

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

38
5.
27

17
34

42
08

W
O
O
DR

UF
F
CO

RY
M

90
4
EM

PE
RO

R
DR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

90
4

EM
PE
RO

R
DR

IV
E

22
/1
1

20
5.
38

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

25
0.
38

17
34

43
29

AR
M
AN

DO
LO

PE
Z

91
1
EM

PE
RO

R
DR

.
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

91
1

EM
PE
RO

R
DR

IV
E

22
/1
2

34
6.
15

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

39
1.
15

17
34

43
31

ZH
AO

BI
NG

YA
N

13
12

TU
LA
NE

DR
DA

VI
S
CA

95
61

6
91

5
EM

PE
RO

R
DR

IV
E

22
/1
2

41
1.
49

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

45
6.
49

32
31

41
1

RO
BE

RT
S
JO
DI

LY
NN

50
3
ER

IN
DR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

50
3

ER
IN

DR
IV
E

22
/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

17
36

51
12

GA
TR

EL
LM

IC
HA

EL
R

32
32

EC
CL
ES
TO

N
AV

E
W
AL
NU

T
CR

EE
K
CA

94
59

7
20

8
FA

IR
BR

O
O
K
CO

UR
T

22
/1
2

34
6.
15

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

39
1.
15

17
35

82
05

AL
LE
N
RA

HS
AA

N
10

59
FE
NN

IE
CT

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

10
59

FE
NN

IE
CO

UR
T

22
/1
1

40
2.
60

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

44
7.
60

17
37

51
09

NI
CH

O
LS

CH
RI
ST
O
PH

ER
&
JE
SS
IC
A

29
60

Q
UA

IL
HO

LL
O
W

DR
.

FA
IR
FI
EL
D
CA

94
53

4
83

01
36

6
FL
AG

ST
O
NE

CI
RC

LE
22

/1
1

49
2.
82

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

53
7.
82

17
37

51
16

TH
O
RN

TO
N
CA

RO
L&

BE
RN

AR
D
JT

35
0
FL
AG

ST
O
NE

CR
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

35
0

FL
AG

ST
O
NE

CI
RC

LE
22

/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

17
37

52
05

M
IS
TI
CA

M
AT

TH
EW

T
89

41
GA

YL
O
RD

DR
#2
10

HO
US

TO
N
TX

77
02

4
38

1
FL
AG

ST
O
NE

CI
RC

LE
22

/0
9

31
7.
92

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

36
2.
92

17
44

02
05

RO
HD

E
RO

NA
LD

&
RA

CH
EL
LE

JT
17

00
FO

RT
O
RD

CT
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

17
00

FO
RT

O
RD

CO
UR

T
22

/0
9

41
8.
33

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

46
3.
33

17
41

84
02

FI
GU

ER
O
A
RA

M
O
N

51
7
FO

RT
UN

A
DR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

51
7

FO
RT

UN
A
DR

IV
E

22
/0
9

31
7.
92

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

36
2.
92

17
41

84
05

TO
RR

ES
VE

RO
NI
CA

L
51

1
FO

RT
UN

A
DR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

51
1

FO
RT

UN
A
DR

IV
E

22
/1
2

34
6.
15

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

39
1.
15

32
31

10
4

W
HI
TE

CA
RL
TO

N
C
&
JO
YC

E
M

JT
91

6
FR
AN

CI
SC
O
DR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

91
6

FR
AN

CI
SC
O
DR

IV
E

22
/1
1

12
6.
66

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

17
1.
66

37
19

24
5

GA
LL
AR

DO
JA
VI
ER

&
LE
TI
CI
A
JT

60
3
FR
EI
DA

DR
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

60
3

FR
IE
DA

DR
IV
E

22
/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

67



17
30

32
23

W
IL
LI
AM

S
AN

TH
O
NY

F
&
W

LJ
T

50
4
GA

DW
AL
LD

R
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

50
4

GA
DW

AL
LD

RI
VE

22
/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

17
35

32
03

AN
GE

LA
ST
EV

EN
S

40
9
GO

O
DA

IR
CT

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

40
9

GO
O
DA

IR
CO

UR
T

22
/1
0

20
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

25
3.
13

17
38

12
09

W
AL
KE
R
VA

LE
NT

IN
O

12
37

GR
AY

HA
W
K
LA
NE

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

12
37

GR
AY

HA
W
K
LA
NE

22
/1
2

34
6.
15

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

39
1.
15

17
38

12
13

HA
RB

O
R
PA

RK
LL
C

88
50

BE
LL
A
TE
RR

A
PL

GR
AN

IT
E
BA

Y
CA

95
74

6
12

21
GR

AY
HA

W
K
LA
NE

22
/0
9

31
7.
92

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

36
2.
92

17
38

11
10

0
PO

US
TI
NC

HI
AN

M
O
HA

M
AD

T
10

IN
DI
AN

W
AY

AL
AM

O
CA

94
50

7
12

68
GR

AY
HA

W
K
LN

22
/0
9

26
3.
30

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

30
8.
30

17
30

41
03

FR
O
ST

PA
UL

IN
E
A

81
8
GR

EE
NH

EA
D
W
Y

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

81
8

GR
EE
NH

EA
D
W
AY

22
/1
0

43
1.
84

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

47
6.
84

17
30

44
01

M
O
NR

O
Y
IL
UM

IN
AD

A
JT

86
75

FA
LM

O
UT

H
AV

E
#3
12

PL
AY

A
DE

LR
EY

CA
90

29
3

80
1

GR
EE
NH

EA
D
W
AY

22
/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

17
42

31
03

ST
RO

UD
KE
AR

IN
51

2
HA

CI
EN

DA
LN

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

51
2

HA
CI
EN

DA
LA
NE

22
/1
2

34
6.
15

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

39
1.
15

32
06

10
2

KU
M
AR

HO
TE
LS

IN
C

54
5
N
HU

M
BO

LD
T
AV

E
W
IL
LO

W
S
CA

95
98

8
2

HA
RB

O
R
CE

NT
ER

DR
IV

22
/0
9

56
3.
20

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

60
8.
20

17
32

91
17

FU
Q
UA

Y
LE
SL
IE
G
&
V
C
JT

92
7
HA

RL
EQ

UI
N
W
Y

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

92
7

HA
RL
EQ

UI
N
W
AY

22
/1
1

33
7.
14

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

38
2.
14

17
45

02
08

BA
RR

ET
T
JO
HN

N
JR

&
D
E
JT

16
28

HA
RR

IS
BU

RG
LN

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

16
28

HA
RR

IS
BU

RG
LA
NE

22
/1
2

34
6.
15

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

39
1.
15

17
31

74
02

DU
TT

VI
NE

ET
A
A

82
6
HE

RO
N
DR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

82
6

HE
RO

N
DR

IV
E

22
/0
9

31
7.
92

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

36
2.
92

17
31

85
02

BL
AN

CO
AL
O
NZ

O
N

80
8
HE

RO
N
DR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

80
8

HE
RO

N
DR

IV
E

22
/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

17
31

86
10

NA
RA

NJ
O
AN

GE
LI
CA

12
07

HE
RO

N
DR

.
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

12
07

HE
RO

N
DR

IV
E

22
/1
2

40
8.
67

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

45
3.
67

17
43

62
04

HE
AR

D
CH

AR
LE
S
&
TA

M
YR

A
JT

16
85

HI
CK

AM
CR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

16
85

HI
CK

AM
CI
RC

LE
22

/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

17
36

12
22

W
O
RS
HA

M
JE
AN

ET
TE

78
9
HI
LL
BO

RN
CT

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

78
9

HI
LL
BO

RN
CO

UR
T

22
/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

17
31

03
37

SW
AY

20
14

1
BO

RR
O
W
ER

LL
C

86
65

E
HA

RT
FO

RD
DR

#2
00

SC
O
TT
SD

AL
E
AZ

85
25

5
41

4
HO

NK
ER

LA
NE

22
/0
9

31
7.
92

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

36
2.
92

17
31

03
43

W
YD

ER
M
YE
R
BI
LL
Y
R
JR

40
2
HO

NK
ER

LA
NE

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

40
2

HO
NK

ER
LA
NE

22
/1
2

41
2.
43

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

45
7.
43

17
35

35
07

HU
RT

AD
O
AL
EJ
AN

DR
O

30
3
HO

YT
CT

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

30
3

HO
YT

CO
UR

T
22

/1
1

32
8.
54

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
54

37
19

31
3

SA
LA
S
RO

LA
ND

V
13

01
HU

M
PH

RE
Y
DR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

13
01

HU
M
PH

RE
Y
DR

IV
E

22
/1
1

33
0.
23

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
5.
23

37
31

21
4

CH
IL
TO

N
VI
VI
AN

D
35

1
JA
CA

RA
ND

A
DR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

35
1

JA
CA

RA
ND

A
DR

IV
E

22
/1
2

28
0.
72

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

32
5.
72

37
31

30
9

M
AL
DO

NA
DO

LO
UR

DE
S

39
0
JA
CA

RA
ND

A
DR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

39
0

JA
CA

RA
ND

A
DR

IV
E

22
/1
1

33
7.
14

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

38
2.
14

17
33

82
12

JA
CK

SO
N
DE

BO
RA

H
72

7
PL
YM

O
UT

H
AV

E
SA

N
FR
AN

CI
SC
O
CA

94
11

2
90

8
JA
VA

N
W
AY

22
/0
9

19
1.
14

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

23
6.
14

37
24

12
6

AQ
UI
NO

,R
UB

EN
11

01
JE
AN

NE
CT

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

11
01

JE
AN

NE
CO

UR
T

22
/1
1

32
8.
54

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
54

32
29

12
3

M
AN

ZA
NE

RO
ED

UA
RD

O
&
RO

SA
IJ
T

19
26

FL
O
RI
DA

ST
VA

LL
EJ
O
CA

94
59

0
20

6
JO
SI
AH

CI
RC

LE
22

/1
0

36
3.
24

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

40
8.
24

17
44

02
23

PA
LA
CI
O
S
DA

NI
EL
/P
AL
AC

IO
S
AD

RI
AN

A
G

17
16

KE
ES
LE
R
CR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

17
16

KE
ES
LE
R
CI
RC

LE
22

/0
9

22
9.
39

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

27
4.
39

17
44

03
14

GA
LL
EG

O
S
LE
RO

Y/
GA

LL
EG

O
S
PE
RS
EV

ER
AN

D
17

69
W
HI
TE
M
AN

CT
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

17
25

KE
ES
LE
R
CI
RC

LE
22

/0
9

36
3.
11

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

40
8.
11

32
17

21
60

CO
O
PE
R
GI
NA

11
24

KE
LL
O
GG

ST
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

11
24

KE
LL
O
GG

22
/1
2

34
6.
15

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

39
1.
15

17
36

03
06

M
O
RA

LE
S
CA

RL
O
S/
M
O
RA

LE
S
KI
M
BE

RL
Y
L

32
0
KE
YE
S
CT

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

32
0

KE
YE
S
CO

UR
T

22
/1
1

33
7.
14

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

38
2.
14

17
34

82
17

VI
CT

O
R
SH

IR
LE
Y

13
15

KI
M
BE

RL
Y
CT

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

13
15

KI
M
BE

RL
Y
CO

UR
T

22
/0
9

31
7.
92

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

36
2.
92

37
18

07
2

GO
M
EZ

M
IG
UE

LA
&
SA

ND
RA

40
8
KI
NG

S
W
Y

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

40
8

KI
NG

S
W
AY

22
/1
1

33
7.
14

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

38
2.
14

17
32

21
03

FO
NT

AI
NE

HI
LA
RY

P
60

2
KL
AM

AT
H
DR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

60
2

KL
AM

AT
H
DR

IV
E

22
/1
1

44
3.
75

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

48
8.
75

17
32

62
04

M
EN

DE
Z
JU
AN

R
G/

TA
PI
A
AD

AL
BE

RT
O
P

14
05

KL
AM

AT
H
DR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

14
05

KL
AM

AT
H
DR

IV
E

22
/1
1

33
7.
14

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

38
2.
14

17
33

12
14

TI
LL
M
AN

AL
EX
SI
S
E

63
3
KL
AM

AT
H
DR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

63
3

KL
AM

AT
H
DR

IV
E

22
/0
9

35
6.
52

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

40
1.
52

17
32

92
25

SP
RE

NG
EL
M
EY
ER

R
J&

JA
N
LJ
T

90
7
LA
BR

AD
O
R
W
Y

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

90
7

LA
BR

AD
O
R
W
AY

22
/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

17
32

93
11

PE
RR

IL
LI
AT

EA
RL
IN
E

50
7
LA
BR

AD
O
R
W
Y

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

50
7

LA
BR

AD
O
R
W
AY

22
/1
0

33
5.
42

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

38
0.
42

17
32

93
12

CH
AV

AR
RI
A
GR

EG
O
RI
O

50
9
LA
BR

AD
O
R
W
Y

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

50
9

LA
BR

AD
O
R
W
AY

22
/1
1

40
1.
14

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

44
6.
14

17
33

02
06

GU
IN
AS

SO
LA
UR

A
A

90
4
LA
BR

AD
O
R
W
AY

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

90
4

LA
BR

AD
O
R
W
AY

22
/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

17
36

12
17

0
TO

RR
ES
,C
AR

LO
S
&
YO

LA
ND

A
12

32
LA
W
LE
R
RA

NC
H
PK

W
Y

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

12
32

LA
W
LE
R
RA

NC
H
PK

W
Y

22
/0
9

26
3.
74

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

30
8.
74

32
43

12
1

AL
M
Y
DE

RR
IC
K
D/
W
ES
LE
Y
GE

NN
Y

22
2
LE
AF

W
O
O
D
CT

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

22
2

LE
AF

W
O
O
D
CO

UR
T

22
/0
9

31
1.
38

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

35
6.
38

32
29

32
3

YO
UN

G
W
IL
LI
AM

T
&
AL
IC
E
V
JT

10
14

LI
BE

RT
Y
DR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

10
14

LI
BE

RT
Y
DR

IV
E

22
/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

17
43

92
07

CO
VI
NG

TO
N
JE
RM

AI
NE

A
JT

16
55

LI
TT
LE

RO
CK

CR
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

16
55

LI
TT
LE

RO
CK

CI
R

22
/1
1

62
3.
66

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

66
8.
66

37
30

21
5

M
UY

A
ED

NA
13

41
LO

IS
LN

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

13
41

LO
IS
LA
NE

22
/1
2

34
6.
15

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

39
1.
15

32
24

22
0

HA
RD

IN
SA

M
UE

LC
III

20
8
LO

NG
ST

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

20
8

LO
NG

ST
RE

ET
22

/1
0

39
1.
98

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

43
6.
98

32
24

31
2

BE
ND

ER
O
SC
AR

24
5
LO

NG
ST

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

24
5

LO
NG

ST
RE

ET
22

/1
0

32
2.
40

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

36
7.
40

17
33

85
03

PI
LL
AY

CH
AN

DR
A
&
M
O
HI
NI

10
15

LO
NG

SP
UR

DR
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

10
15

LO
NG

SP
UR

DR
IV
E

22
/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

68



32
07

31
6

M
IC
HA

EL
RU

IZ
82

7
LO

TZ
W
AY

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

82
7

LO
TZ

W
AY

22
/0
9

31
7.
92

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

36
2.
92

32
07

41
8

DA
RB

Y
DE

RW
IN

&
GL

O
RI
A
JT

73
1
LO

TZ
W
Y

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

73
1

LO
TZ

W
AY

22
/0
9

37
5.
26

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

42
0.
26

32
17

11
2

SA
LA
ZA

R
JE
SS
E
G/

BL
AN

DI
NO

YO
LA
ND

A
I

10
08

M
AI
N
ST

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

10
08

M
AI
N
ST
RE

ET
22

/0
9

15
6.
00

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

20
1.
00

17
38

03
21

SI
NG

H
SU

ZI
42

9
M
AL
O
NE

Y
CT

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

42
9

M
AL
O
NE

Y
CO

UR
T

22
/1
0

12
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

17
3.
13

32
24

41
8

M
AR

TI
NE

Z
JO
SE

A
22

4
M
AP

LE
ST
.

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

22
4

M
AP

LE
ST
RE

ET
22

/1
2

28
8.
46

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

33
3.
46

32
24

50
9

KR
IP
AI
TI
S
M
IC
HA

EL
J

23
3
M
AP

LE
ST

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

23
3

M
AP

LE
ST
RE

ET
22

/1
2

34
0.
24

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

38
5.
24

32
30

11
20

ES
GE

M
LL
C

PO
BO

X
80

6
NO

VA
TO

CA
94

94
8

42
3

M
AR

IN
A
BL
VD

22
/1
2

34
6.
15

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

39
1.
15

17
44

05
07

SO
RI
AN

O
VA

LE
NT

IN
R
&
H
M

JT
16

21
M
AX

W
EL
LL

N
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

16
21

M
AX

W
EL
LL

AN
E

22
/1
1

33
7.
14

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

38
2.
14

17
44

06
03

JO
NE

S
ER

IC
&
M
AS

HO
N
JT

16
08

M
AX

W
EL
LL

N
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

16
08

M
AX

W
EL
LL

AN
E

22
/1
1

34
3.
64

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

38
8.
64

17
36

01
11

TI
NS

LE
Y
AC

AC
IA

J&
DA

NI
EL

D
JT

30
4
M
AY

FI
EL
D
CI
R

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

30
4

M
AY

FI
EL
D
CI
RC

LE
22

/1
1

33
7.
14

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

38
2.
14

17
38

11
06

CH
EN

IE
R
JO
SE
PH

JJ
R

PO
BO

X
18

53
TR

AV
IS
AF

B
CA

94
53

5
12

39
M
CC

O
Y
CR

EE
K
W
AY

22
/1
2

34
6.
15

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

39
1.
15

17
44

04
01

DO
M
IN
GU

EZ
RE

AL
YN

D
&
KE
VI
N/

DO
M
IN
GU

E
16

00
M
CG

UI
RE

CI
R

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

16
00

M
CG

UI
RE

CI
RC

LE
22

/1
1

35
6.
57

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

40
1.
57

17
44

32
09

M
AX

IE
RU

SS
EL
LD

/M
AX

IE
SI
NA

M
IR

16
65

M
CG

UI
RE

CR
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

16
65

M
CG

UI
RE

CI
RC

LE
22

/1
2

34
6.
15

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

39
1.
15

17
44

32
16

TO
BO

LA
IR
EN

E
&
EU

GE
NI
O
P
JT

16
17

M
CG

UI
RE

CR
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

16
17

M
CG

UI
RE

CI
RC

LE
22

/0
9

20
8.
99

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

25
3.
99

17
38

03
06

W
IL
LI
E
TU

RN
ER

43
0
M
EE
HA

N
CT

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

43
0

M
EE
HA

N
CO

UR
T

22
/0
9

31
7.
92

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

36
2.
92

37
19

21
9

EN
AU

LT
W
IL
LI
AM

W
&
DO

LO
RE

S
JT

12
03

M
IC
HA

EL
CT

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

12
03

M
IC
HA

EL
CO

UR
T

22
/1
1

17
9.
56

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

22
4.
56

17
34

23
15

HU
BB

AR
D
M

L&
HA

NN
EL
O
RE

JT
14

49
M
O
NI
TO

R
AV

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

14
49

M
O
NI
TO

R
AV

EN
UE

22
/1
1

18
0.
68

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

22
5.
68

17
43

03
22

SH
AN

NO
N
RU

SS
EL
L

72
2
M
O
NT

E
CA

RL
O
DR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

72
2

M
O
NT

E
CA

RL
O
DR

IV
22

/0
9

31
7.
92

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

36
2.
92

32
15

11
2

W
AD

DE
LL

AN
EK
KA

21
0
M
O
RG

AN
ST

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

21
0

M
O
RG

AN
ST
RE

ET
22

/1
1

28
0.
81

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

32
5.
81

32
15

60
7

W
EI
SS

DI
AN

NE
24

28
N
HU

M
BO

LD
T
BL
VD

M
IL
W
AU

KE
E
W
I5
32

12
40

6
M
O
RG

AN
ST
RE

ET
22

/0
9

31
7.
92

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

36
2.
92

32
39

12
1

TA
H
20

17
1
BO

RR
O
W
ER

LL
C

15
08

BR
O
O
KH

O
LL
O
W

DR
.

SA
NT

A
AN

A
CA

92
70

5
58

M
O
SS
W
O
O
D
DR

IV
E

22
/0
9

31
7.
92

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

36
2.
92

32
40

10
2

BR
AN

DO
N
SP
HA

R
50

M
O
SS
W
O
O
D
DR

.
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

50
M
O
SS
W
O
O
D
DR

IV
E

22
/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

17
31

76
07

CO
RT

ES
JO
SE

LU
IS
GO

DI
NE

Z
JT

57
0
CL
O
VE

R
DR

TU
RL
O
CK

CA
95

38
0

90
2

M
UR

RE
W
AY

22
/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

32
34

10
6

W
EL
CH

NA
NC

Y
&
JIM

JT
50

8
NA

DE
LD

R
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

50
8

NA
DE

LD
RI
VE

22
/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

32
39

20
1

PH
IP
PS

KE
VI
N
M

11
4
CO

RR
IN
NE

CT
SA

N
RA

M
O
N
CA

94
58

3
98

NE
W
PO

RT
W
AY

22
/1
0

39
1.
98

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

43
6.
98

32
39

20
2

CH
UA

TA
KO

O
N
RY

AN
96

NE
W
PO

RT
W
Y

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

96
NE

W
PO

RT
W
AY

22
/1
2

30
7.
72

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

35
2.
72

17
34

55
09

RU
BI
O
JO
HN

T
&
SU

SY
JT

82
3
O
SP
RE

Y
W
Y

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

82
3

O
SP
RE

Y
W
AY

22
/1
2

34
6.
15

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

39
1.
15

17
43

14
01

CA
DD

EL
LD

AL
E
JA
M
ES

JR
73

0
PA

LE
RM

O
DR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

73
0

PA
LE
RM

O
DR

IV
E

22
/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

17
43

14
12

GI
BS
O
N
RO

NA
LD

L
70

0
PA

LE
RM

O
DR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

70
0

PA
LE
RM

O
DR

IV
E

22
/1
2

31
7.
04

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

36
2.
04

17
38

05
10

DA
VI
D
M
IL
LE
R

42
5
PE
AR

CE
CT

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

42
5

PE
AR

CE
CO

UR
T

22
/0
9

31
7.
92

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

36
2.
92

17
32

62
29

JO
SE

PA
LM

A
14

12
PE
LI
CA

N
W
Y

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

14
12

PE
LI
CA

N
W
AY

22
/1
1

33
7.
14

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

38
2.
14

17
36

21
45

W
IL
LI
AM

S
LO

UI
SE

TR
60

7
PE
YT
O
NI
A
CT

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

60
7

PE
YT
O
NI
A
CO

UR
T

22
/1
2

34
6.
15

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

39
1.
15

17
32

32
05

VA
LL
EJ
O
RE

YE
S
D
&
V
K
JT

11
16

PH
EA

SA
NT

DR
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

11
16

PH
EA

SA
NT

DR
IV
E

22
/0
9

31
7.
92

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

36
2.
92

37
33

11
1

JA
CK

SO
N
M
EL
VO

RA
73

6
M
O
RI
SS
ET
TE

W
AY

VA
CA

VI
LL
E
CA

95
68

7
13

43
PH

IL
IP
W
AY

22
/1
1

16
8.
57

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

21
3.
57

37
33

10
90

TO
DD

HO
GL

UN
D

13
39

PH
IL
LI
P
W
AY

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

13
39

PH
IL
LI
P
W
AY

22
/1
1

36
3.
80

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

40
8.
80

17
30

62
08

0
JA
CK

SO
N
M
CC

LA
IN

KI
RS
TE
N

34
3
PI
NT

AI
LD

R
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

34
3

PI
NT

AI
LD

R.
22

/0
9

37
6.
46

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

42
1.
46

17
30

44
38

JO
VI
AN

CO
LB
ER

T
31

8
PI
NT

AI
LD

R
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

31
8

PI
NT

AI
LD

RI
VE

22
/1
2

34
6.
15

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

39
1.
15

17
31

87
20

GO
NZ

AL
EZ

JO
SE
/G

O
NZ

AL
EZ

SA
ND

RA
11

17
PI
NT

AI
LD

R
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

11
17

PI
NT

AI
L D

RI
VE

22
/1
1

17
6.
46

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

22
1.
46

17
33

12
24

JO
SE

SA
NC

HE
Z

14
05

PI
NT

AI
LD

R
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

14
05

PI
NT

AI
LD

RI
VE

22
/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

17
34

12
30

GR
EE
R
VI
RG

IN
IA

32
75

Q
UA

IL
HO

LL
O
W

DR
.

FA
IR
FI
EL
D
CA

94
53

4
14

25
PL
UM

AS
DR

IV
E

22
/1
2

33
7.
12

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

38
2.
12

17
31

33
03

BE
RD

AK
,S
AL
VA

TO
RE

D
81

3
PO

CH
AR

D
W
AY

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

81
3

PO
CH

AR
D
W
AY

22
/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

17
37

12
04

W
EL
LS

FA
RG

O
BK

NA
20

06
1

26
0
PO

TR
ER

O
ST

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

26
0

PO
TR

ER
O
ST
RE

ET
22

/1
1

15
8.
93

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

20
3.
93

17
33

54
32

KA
RE

N
M
IL
ES

10
22

PR
AI
RI
E
DR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

10
22

PR
AI
RI
E
DR

22
/1
1

21
2.
34

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

25
7.
34

17
33

54
35

EV
AN

S
KA

YL
E
&
AN

N
JT

10
16

PR
AI
RI
E
DR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

10
16

PR
AI
RI
E
DR

22
/0
9

19
1.
92

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

23
6.
92

17
33

55
12

M
CE

LR
O
Y
PA

TR
IC
K
H
&
JA
N
M

JT
10

13
PR

AI
RI
E
DR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

10
13

PR
AI
RI
E
DR

22
/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

17
34

12
08

JA
CK

SO
N
ER

NE
ST

N
&
BE

TT
Y
A
JT

14
18

PR
O
SP
EC

T
W
Y

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

14
18

PR
O
SP
EC

T
W
AY

22
/1
1

33
7.
14

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

38
2.
14

69



17
34

12
09

CO
TT
RI
LL

CE
CE

LI
A
J&

JA
TR

14
16

PR
O
SP
EC

T
W
Y

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

14
16

PR
O
SP
EC

T
W
AY

22
/1
2

37
3.
26

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

41
8.
26

17
34

12
15

DA
RD

EN
BE

VE
RL
Y

14
04

PR
O
SP
EC

T
W
Y

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

14
04

PR
O
SP
EC

T
W
AY

22
/0
9

31
7.
92

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

36
2.
92

17
34

12
16

CA
RL
IN
O
YE
TS
EM

AN
IT
H
C/
CA

RR
AS

CO
AG

US
14

02
PR

O
SP
EC

T
W
AY

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

14
02

PR
O
SP
EC

T
W
AY

22
/1
2

33
9.
83

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

38
4.
83

17
30

43
03

TA
H
20

17
4
BO

RR
O
W
ER

LL
C

15
08

BR
O
O
KH

O
LL
O
W

DR
.

SA
NT

A
AN

A
CA

92
70

5
81

5
RE

DH
EA

D
W
AY

22
/1
1

49
2.
82

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

53
7.
82

17
37

43
18

RO
DG

ER
S
TR

US
TS

22
8
RE

DS
TO

NE
CI
R

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

22
8

RE
DS

TO
NE

CI
R

22
/0
9

21
1.
45

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

25
6.
45

17
37

42
17

CR
AI
G
KE
VI
N
C

27
7
RE

ST
O
NE

CR
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

27
7

RE
DS

TO
NE

CI
R

22
/1
1

31
5.
97

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

36
0.
97

17
37

42
19

HO
LM

ES
RH

O
ND

A
26

9
RE

DS
TO

NE
CR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

26
9

RE
DS

TO
NE

CI
R

22
/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

17
37

43
20

NA
ZA

RE
NO

BR
YA

N
J/
NA

ZA
RE

NO
M

P
23

6
RE

DS
TO

NE
CR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

23
6

RE
DS

TO
NE

CI
R

22
/1
2

22
7.
40

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

27
2.
40

17
36

52
05

ST
EW

AR
T
DE

BR
A
J&

GL
EN

N
K
JT

32
8
RI
DG

EC
RE

ST
CI
RC

LE
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

32
8

RI
DG

EC
RE

ST
CI
R

22
/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

17
36

45
03

VI
DR

IO
M
AR

IO
47

1
CA

RN
AT

IO
N
DR

FA
IR
FI
EL
D
CA

94
53

3
34

5
RI
DG

EC
RE

ST
CI
R

22
/1
1

33
7.
14

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

38
2.
14

17
30

84
08

TU
BB

S
TE
AN

ET
A

70
0
RI
NG

NE
CK

LN
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

70
0

RI
NG

NE
CK

LA
NE

22
/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

17
30

84
17

SI
M
S
CL
AR

A
EL
IZ
AB

ET
H
TR

PO
BO

X
11

85
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

60
0

RI
NG

NE
CK

LA
NE

22
/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

32
40

50
8

AB
AD

RA
FA

EL
G
&
KI
KU

O
JT

85
RO

DO
ND

O
AV

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

85
RO

DO
ND

O
AV

E
22

/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

32
11

30
2

BR
YA

N
JA
Y
M

&
GA

IL
E
TR

PO
BX

18
30

4
SO

UT
H
LA
KE

TA
HO

E
CA

96
15

1
20

5
SA

CR
AM

EN
TO

ST
22

/1
2

10
38

.4
4

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

10
83

.4
4

32
12

11
0

SC
HE

TT
LE
R
ER

NE
ST

B
PO

BO
X
20

11
2

PO
RT

LA
ND

O
R
97

29
4

30
3

SA
CR

AM
EN

TO
ST

22
/0
9

31
7.
92

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

36
2.
92

32
12

11
3

SM
IT
H
LO

RE
LE
NE

J
30

5
SA

CR
AM

EN
TO

ST
#B

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

30
5

SA
CR

AM
EN

TO
ST

22
/0
9

31
7.
92

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

36
2.
92

37
18

02
7

RU
TT
EN

BE
RG

JO
SE
PH

A
&
JL

JT
40

9
SA

RA
H
W
Y

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

40
9

SA
RA

H
W
AY

22
/1
2

34
6.
15

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

39
1.
15

17
30

35
03

TA
YL
O
R
RO

BE
RT

J&
PA

UL
IN
E
M

JT
82

7
SC
AU

P
LN

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

82
7

SC
AU

P
LA
NE

22
/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

32
12

10
8

TR
AH

AN
VA

LE
RI
E
T

61
2
SC
HO

O
LS

T.
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

61
2

SC
HO

O
LS

T
22

/0
9

31
7.
92

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

36
2.
92

32
15

40
6

CR
UZ

RU
TH

L
91

2
SC
HO

O
LS

T
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

91
2

SC
HO

O
LS

T
22

/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

17
30

38
02

AR
ZA

DO
N
LE
IL
A
C
&
JE
SU

S
C

82
5
SC
O
TE
R
W
AY

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

82
5

SC
O
TE
R
W
AY

22
/0
9

22
6.
37

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

27
1.
37

17
36

45
26

PU
RV

IS
LA

TA
M
EI
NI
A
JA
NE

AN
94

0
SH

AD
YW

O
O
D
CR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

94
0

SH
AD

YW
O
O
D
CI
R

22
/1
1

33
7.
14

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

38
2.
14

17
32

25
24

DE
BO

RA
H
HU

NT
ER

14
08

SH
AS

TA
ST

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

14
08

SH
AS

TA
ST

22
/1
2

34
6.
15

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

39
1.
15

17
30

63
11

M
O
O
RE

YO
NE

40
3
SH

O
VE

LL
ER

DR
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

40
3

SH
O
VE

LL
ER

DR
22

/1
1

33
7.
14

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

38
2.
14

37
32

20
7

FO
RT

IN
CH

RI
S
D

36
9
SI
LK

O
AK

DR
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

36
9

SI
LK

O
AK

DR
IV
E

22
/1
1

33
7.
14

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

38
2.
14

17
32

04
11

HO
LM

ES
SA

ND
RA

F
&
W
IL
LI
AM

R
JT

60
8
SK
YL
AR

K
DR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

60
8

SK
YL
AR

K
DR

IV
E

22
/1
1

33
7.
14

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

38
2.
14

17
32

04
13

RU
VA

LC
AB

A
M
AR

CO
A
JR
/R
UV

AL
CA

BA
M
AR

C
60

4
SK
YL
AR

K
DR

.
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

60
4

SK
YL
AR

K
DR

IV
E

22
/1
1

33
7.
14

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

38
2.
14

17
32

05
01

RY
AN

FE
NN

IE
60

5
SK
YL
AR

K
DR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

60
5

SK
YL
AR

K
DR

IV
E

22
/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

17
32

05
05

W
AL
LE
R
M
IC
HA

EL
E
II

61
3
SK
YL
AR

K
DR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

61
3

SK
YL
AR

K
DR

IV
E

22
/1
2

34
6.
15

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

39
1.
15

32
11

31
20

CA
M
PO

S
DA

NI
EL

RU
ED

A
17

7
M
O
LI
NA

ST
VA

LL
EJ
O
CA

94
59

1
20

6
SO

LA
NO

ST
22

/1
2

43
4.
09

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

47
9.
09

32
11

30
7

HA
LL

ST
EP
HE

N
E

22
4
SO

LA
NO

ST
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

22
4

SO
LA
NO

ST
RE

ET
22

/1
1

33
7.
14

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

38
2.
14

17
35

81
35

RO
SE

JA
M
ES

N
20

1
SP
IN
NE

Y
W
AY

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

20
1

SP
IN
NE

Y
W
AY

22
/1
1

33
7.
14

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

38
2.
14

17
30

23
03

BO
BS
HO

SK
Y
JO
SE
PH

E/
BO

BS
HO

SK
YL
IN
DS

I
31

8
SP
O
O
NB

IL
LL

N
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

31
8

SP
O
O
NB

IL
LL

AN
E

22
/1
1

32
8.
54

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
54

17
30

44
30

NY
LA

HE
CK

NA
NN

80
0
SP
O
O
NB

IL
L

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

80
0

SP
O
O
NB

IL
LL

AN
E

22
/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

17
33

81
23

JO
HN

A
&
NA

NC
Y
K
FO

RD
91

6
ST
EL
LE
R
W
Y

SU
IS
UN

CA
94

58
5

91
6

ST
EL
LE
R
W
AY

22
/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

17
33

81
26

PR
UI
TT

HA
IL
EY

S
91

0
ST
EL
LE
R
W
Y

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

91
0

ST
EL
LE
R
W
AY

22
/0
9

31
1.
38

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

35
6.
38

17
33

81
27

AL
EM

U
DE

RE
JE

90
8
ST
EL
LE
R
W
Y

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

90
8

ST
EL
LE
R
W
AY

22
/1
2

34
6.
15

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

39
1.
15

17
33

81
30

IN
GR

AM
JE
NN

IF
ER

/IN
GR

AM
M
IC
HA

EL
90

2
ST
EL
LE
R
W
Y

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

90
2

ST
EL
LE
R
W
AY

22
/1
2

34
6.
15

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

39
1.
15

17
45

13
04

0
DA

VI
D
KN

O
TT

17
02

ST
O
NE

M
AN

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

17
02

ST
O
NE

M
AN

22
/1
2

36
1.
97

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

40
6.
97

17
45

14
07

0
NA

TI
RO

BE
RT

O
R/
NA

TI
GI
ZE
LL
E

17
82

ST
O
NE

M
AN

DR
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

17
82

ST
O
NE

M
AN

DR
22

/1
2

19
5.
60

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

24
0.
60

37
38

02
5

PE
RI
O
N
BR

IA
N
&
KA

M
M
Y

11
61

ST
RA

W
BE

RR
Y
LA
NE

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

11
61

ST
RA

W
BE

RR
Y
LA
NE

22
/1
2

33
4.
72

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
9.
72

17
30

10
06

M
CC

LO
SK
EY

RE
GI
NA

TR
PO

BO
X
71

1
DA

LL
AS

TX
75

22
1

80
1

SU
NS

ET
AV

EN
UE

22
/1
0

47
25

.6
1

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

47
70

.6
1

17
32

03
10

BA
LA
ND

RA
N
AD

RI
AN

A
G

40
8
CH

YR
LW

AY
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

60
3

SW
AL
LO

W
CO

UR
T

22
/0
9

31
7.
92

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

36
2.
92

17
32

55
01

M
O
ZQ

UE
DA

LE
TI
CI
A/
VE

LA
ZQ

UE
Z
RO

BE
RT

O
14

01
SW

IF
T
CT

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

14
01

SW
IF
T
CO

UR
T

22
/1
1

20
6.
34

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

25
1.
34

17
37

62
08

KE
ET
O
N
TA

RO
YL

T
&
ZE
NO

BI
A
N
JT

27
5
TA

M
AR

IS
K
CR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

27
5

TA
M
AR

IS
K
CI
RC

LE
22

/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

32
46

30
3

EL
LI
O
TT

JA
Y
W

40
TE
A
RO

SE
W
Y

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

40
TE
A
RO

SE
W
AY

22
/0
9

44
2.
20

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

48
7.
20

70



37
30

30
1

PO
W
ER

S
EU

GE
NE

C
&
LI
ND

A
E
JT

14
36

LA
NG

LE
Y
W
Y

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

50
0

TH
O
M
AS

CI
RC

LE
22

/1
2

34
6.
15

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

39
1.
15

37
30

30
6

O
LV
ER

A
M
IG
UE

LA
51

8
TH

O
M
AS

CR
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

51
8

TH
O
M
AS

CI
RC

LE
22

/1
0

12
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

17
3.
13

17
37

01
01

M
AR

RE
RO

CH
ER

IS
E
L

14
07

TI
LL
M
AN

ST
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

14
07

TI
LL
M
AN

ST
RE

ET
22

/0
9

31
7.
92

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

36
2.
92

17
32

92
16

CO
LB
ER

T
TA

M
AR

A
J

90
8
TR

UM
PE
TE
R
CT

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

90
8

TR
UM

PE
TE
R
CT

22
/1
2

30
7.
72

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

35
2.
72

17
44

73
05

AN
TH

O
NY

ED
DI
E
&
AT

RE
SE

51
6
SK
YL
AR

K
DR

.
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

16
16

TU
CS
O
N
CI
RC

LE
22

/1
2

34
6.
15

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

39
1.
15

17
34

35
02

DE
NI
SE

YA
P

83
1
TU

LA
RE

CR
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

83
1

TU
LA
RE

CI
RC

LE
22

/1
2

34
6.
15

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

39
1.
15

17
43

72
09

JO
SE
PH

LO
VE

LY
16

47
VA

ND
EN

BU
RG

CR
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

16
47

VA
ND

EN
BE

RG
CI
R

22
/1
0

25
3.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

29
8.
13

17
42

45
22

M
AT

TH
EW

S
KA

RE
N
LY
NN

E
17

34
VE

NT
UR

A
W
Y

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

17
34

VE
NT

UR
A
W
AY

22
/1
2

34
6.
15

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

39
1.
15

17
42

54
10

SM
IT
H
JO
E
R
&
EU

NI
CE

M
17

14
VE

NT
UR

A
W
Y

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

17
14

VE
NT

UR
A
W
AY

22
/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

32
43

11
0

M
O
NT

EL
O
NG

O
KE
NN

ET
H
D
&
N
R
JT

93
5
KI
NG

RI
CH

AR
DS

CT
EL

DO
RA

DO
HI
LL
S
CA

95
67

2
40

2
VI
NE

W
O
O
D
CO

UR
T

22
/1
2

31
0.
71

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

35
5.
71

17
32

02
27

GU
TI
ER

RE
Z
SA

RE
D

12
01

W
AX

W
IN
G
LN

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

12
01

W
AX

W
IN
G
LA
NE

22
/1
1

72
3.
85

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

76
8.
85

17
34

44
06

JA
SO

N
PE
NA

10
10

W
ES
TW

IN
D
W
Y

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

10
10

W
ES
TW

IN
D
W
AY

22
/0
9

31
7.
92

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

36
2.
92

17
34

44
12

LO
FT
O
N
M
AR

TE
L/
LO

FT
O
N
M
EL
IS
SA

10
22

W
ES
TW

IN
D
W
Y

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

10
22

W
ES
TW

IN
D
W
AY

22
/1
1

49
2.
82

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

53
7.
82

17
32

02
02

AR
JE
NI
Z
RA

YG
O
ZA

11
18

W
HI
PP

O
RW

IL
LW

Y
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

11
18

W
HI
PP

O
RW

IL
LW

AY
22

/0
9

31
7.
92

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

36
2.
92

17
32

02
04

HU
KI
LL

W
IL
LI
AM

M
11

14
W
HI
PP

O
RW

IL
LW

Y
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

11
14

W
HI
PP

O
RW

IL
LW

AY
22

/1
2

34
6.
15

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

39
1.
15

32
32

30
3

M
O
RG

AN
VA

LE
NT

IN
A

72
2
W
HI
SP
ER

IN
G
BA

Y
LN

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

72
2

W
HI
SP
ER

IN
G
BA

Y
LN

22
/1
2

34
6.
15

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

39
1.
15

32
32

30
2

HA
W
ES

PE
TE
R
JT

R
39

76
4
SH

AR
O
N
AV

E
DA

VI
S
CA

95
61

6
72

0
W
HI
SP
ER

IN
G
BA

Y
LN

22
/1
1

36
6.
30

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

41
1.
30

17
33

52
10

SC
HM

AL
TZ

RO
Y
E
&
JU
LI
A
M

JT
10

20
W
HI
ST
LE
R
DR

SU
IS
UN

CA
94

58
5

10
20

W
HI
ST
LE
R
DR

IV
E

22
/1
0

19
5.
83

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

24
0.
83

17
31

23
04

M
EN

DO
ZA

M
IL
TO

N
&
M
AR

IB
EL

JT
60

7
W
HI
TE

W
IN
G
CT

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

60
7

W
HI
TE

W
IN
G
CT

22
/1
0

22
5.
50

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

27
0.
50

17
33

65
21

ST
EW

AR
T
SH

AR
O
N/

ST
EW

AR
T
JO
HN

T
10

30
W
HO

O
PE
R
W
Y

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

10
30

W
HO

O
PE
R
W
AY

22
/1
2

37
7.
90

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

42
2.
90

17
30

82
01

RO
SA

LE
S
JO
RG

E
R
C/
AR

AN
GO

NA
TH

AL
IE
M

62
6
W
IG
EO

N
W
Y

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

62
6

W
IG
EO

N
W
AY

22
/1
0

31
9.
96

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

36
4.
96

17
34

43
01

BR
O
W
N
GR

EG
O
RY

S
&
SA

W
O
IJ
T

10
10

W
IN
TE
RS

W
Y

SU
IS
UN

CA
94

58
5

10
10

W
IN
TE
RS

W
AY

22
/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

17
31

31
02

W
AK

EF
IE
LD

RE
GI
NA

53
6
W
O
O
D
DU

CK
DR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

53
6

W
O
O
D
DU

CK
DR

IV
E

22
/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

17
31

82
04

GI
VE

NS
,G

RE
GO

RY
R

70
4
W
O
O
DL

AR
K
DR

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

70
4

W
O
O
DL

AR
K
DR

IV
E

22
/1
0

32
8.
13

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

37
3.
13

17
32

32
13

TO
W
NS

EN
D
KE
NN

ET
H
D
&
SU

SA
N
JT

35
25

VA
LL
EY

VI
EW

CT
FA

IR
FI
EL
D
CA

94
53

4
51

5
W
O
O
DL

AR
K
DR

IV
E

22
/1
2

34
6.
15

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

39
1.
15

37
19

11
0

CH
UR

CH
W
EL
LN

IC
KO

LA
US

A
13

01
W
O
RL
EY

RD
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

13
01

W
O
RL
EY

RO
AD

22
/1
2

34
6.
15

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

39
1.
15

37
19

24
1

O
RE

NI
A
LI
BE

RT
Y

12
13

W
O
RL
EY

RD
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

12
13

W
O
RL
EY

RO
AD

22
/1
0

11
0.
45

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

15
5.
45

37
19

24
2

SC
HU

LT
GL

O
RI
A
L

12
15

W
O
RL
EY

W
Y

SU
IS
UN

CA
94

58
5

12
15

W
O
RL
EY

RO
AD

22
/1
2

34
6.
15

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

39
1.
15

17
37

62
13

DI
LE
S
CA

LV
IN

&
RO

BY
N
JT

20
1
YA

RR
O
W

CT
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

20
1

YA
RR

O
W

CO
UR

T
22

/1
2

19
5.
60

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

24
0.
60

17
34

55
02

VA
RG

AS
DU

RA
N
EL
IA
S

83
0
YO

SE
M
IT
E
W
Y

SU
IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

83
0

YO
SE
M
IT
E
W
AY

22
/0
9

31
7.
92

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

36
2.
92

17
32

62
24

SM
IT
H
BE

NJ
AM

IN
/S
M
IT
H
CA

M
IL
LA

63
00

FA
CT

O
R
AV

E
SU

IS
UN

CI
TY

CA
94

58
5

50
5

YU
BA

CO
UR

T
22

/1
2

34
6.
15

25
.0
0

20
.0
0

39
1.
15

CO
NT

RO
LT

O
TA

LS
..
.

25
6
Re

co
rd
s

89
38

5.
87

64
00

.0
0

95
78

5.
87

10
09

05
.8
7

71



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

72



AGENDA ITEM NO. 12
                  AGENDA TRANSMITTAL

 
MEETING DATE: February 21, 2023
 
CITY AGENDA ITEM: Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2023-___: Adopting the 3rd
Amendment to the Annual Appropriation Resolution No. 2022-90 to Appropriate Mid-Year Budget
Adjustments for Additional Costs in Various Accounts Organization Wide.
 
FISCAL IMPACT: This is an informational report regarding the financial condition of the City’s
General Fund and Other Funds, as such, has no actual fiscal impact. The proposed mid-year
adjustments have increased the projected revenues by $1,854,533 and increased projected expenditures
by $160,858 for General Fund. The corresponding Amendment to the Annual Appropriations
Resolution (AAR) will appropriate and reallocate available FY 2022-23 fund balances and various
other revenues and expenditure accounts based on current projections of the City’s financial status.
 
STRATEGIC PLAN: Provide Good Governance, Section 4.1 – Review and update required planning
and financial documents as needed.  Ensure Fiscal Solvency, Section 5.9 – Commit to a balanced
budget and prepare for recession.
 
BACKGROUND: The City’s Financial Policies require a Mid-Year Budget Review each February to
provide a trend analysis for General Fund revenues and expenses that compares projections made when
the budget was adopted with actual figures from the first six months of the fiscal year.  The update also
includes recommended appropriations changes to address unforeseen budget developments, such as a
new staffing needs, a project timeline that has shifted, or an urgent capital improvement need that was
identified.  The Mid-Year update also provides a snapshot of current fiscal year trends to serve as a
foundation to prepare the subsequent fiscal year budget, in this case FY 2023-24.

The City entered Fiscal Year 2022-23 with significant challenges related to the COVID-19 pandemic,
appropriate public safety staffing, limited ongoing revenue expansion, and a backlog of infrastructure
needs. By using limited duration Measure S funds and utilizing some reimbursement funds from the
Recognized Obligations Payment Schedule (ROPS), the City Council adopted a balanced FY 2022-23
budget.

The Measure S Committee met on February 10, 2023, to discuss the mid-year budget and potentially
make recommendations. After a comprehensive discussion, the Committee recommended that Council
approve the proposed mid-year adjustments to accommodate the correction of Fire Engineers (3
positions) funding source, roll-forward the uplifting cost of Type 5 Fire Engine, appropriate funds for
Street Repairs project and Questica subscription cost, and the transfer of $215,000 to the Transportation
CIP Fund for the SR12 Hwy Beautification project. 
 
STAFF REPORT: At Mid-Year, detailed revenue and expenditures are being refined but broad trends
based upon actual expenditures over the first six months of the fiscal year can be identified.

Staff primarily analyzed three elements in assessing the General Fund’s performance:
 

1. The amount carried over from the prior fiscal year, also called the Beginning Balance

73



2. Projected revenues
3. Projected expenditures.

The program changes recommended in this report and implemented with the Amendment to the Annual
Appropriations Resolution, including re-appropriation of previously committed funds, are not expected
to significantly alter the Ending Balance forecast. After the proposed mid-year budget review
adjustments, the City will have the ending balance of $1,693,667.

The overall revenue projections for the General Fund have improved.  Revised revenues for the General
Fund have increased by $1,854,533 including transfer ins. Significant areas of increase are: 
 

Beginning Balance            $2,266,708
Sales Tax                $105,663
Transfer In from CFD#2        $87,900

 
The expenditure projections for the General Fund have increased by $160,868. Significant areas of
increase are:
 

Zen City and Strategic Plan update    $65,000
Temp agency costs (HR & PW)    $88,000
Professional Services (HR)        $80,000
Utilities                $33,000
Gas/Diesel/Oil                $30,000

 
Staff has recognized a need to upgrade the Fire Station Bathroom. The adopted budget has $165,000
allocated to this project, but the preliminary engineer’s estimates came out significantly higher to
complete this project. Staff will bring this project to the City Council for discussion in the near future.  

Overall, the General Fund (F10) mid-year budget review has a revenue increase of 7% and an
expenditure increase of 1% in comparison with the adopted budget.  As a result, staff expects to deliver
a balanced General Fund budget to end FY 2022-23 with a surplus of $1,693,665. The City will need to
continue to develop additional revenues in order to continue the level of services currently provided to
city residents.
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Council:

1. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2023-___: Adopting the 3rd Amendment to the Annual
Appropriation Resolution No. 2022-90 to Appropriate Mid-Year Budget Adjustments for
Additional Costs in Various Accounts Organization Wide.

 
DOCUMENTS ATTACHED:

1. Council Resolution No. 2023-___: Adopting the 3rd Amendment to the Annual Appropriation
Resolution No. 2022-90 to Appropriate Mid-Year Budget Adjustments for Additional Costs in
Various Accounts Organization Wide.

2. Exhibit A: Proposed Budget Review Adjustments.
3. Mid-Year Budget Informational Slides.

 

PREPARED BY: Lakhwinder Deol, Finance Director
REVIEWED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager 

74



APPROVED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1 Adopting the 3rd Amendment to the Annual Appropriation Resolution No. 2022-90 to Appropriate Mid-
Year Budget Adjustments for Additional Costs in Various Accounts Organization Wide.pdf
2 Exhibit A - Proposed Budget Review Adjustments.pdf
3 Mid-Year Budget Informational Slides.pdf

75

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1796980/1__Adopting_the_3rd_Amendment_to_the_Annual_Appropriation_Resolution_No._2022-90_to_Appropriate_Mid-Year_Budget_Adjustments_for_Additional_Costs_in_Various_Accounts_Organization_Wide.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1796981/2__Exhibit_A_-_Proposed_Budget_Review_Adjustments.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1796982/3__Mid-Year_Budget_Informational_Slides.pdf


 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-__ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 
ADOPTING THE 3rd AMENDMENT TO THE ANNUAL APPROPRIATION 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-90 TO APPROPRIATE MID-YEAR BUDGET 
ADJUSTMENTS FOR ADDITIONAL COSTS IN VARIOUS ACCOUNTS 

ORGANIZATION WIDE  
 

WHEREAS, the City of Suisun City Annual Budget for Fiscal Year 2022-23 was 
adopted by the City Council and the Successor Agency to the Former Suisun City 
Redevelopment Agency on June 28, 2022; and  
 

WHEREAS, further review of projected revenue, expenditures and transfers for each 
City fund indicates the need to amend the approved budget; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Manager has submitted to the City Council of the Suisun City, 
and the Successor Agency of the former Suisun City Redevelopment Agency proposed 
amendments to the Fiscal Year 2022-23 Budget; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is the intention of the City Council of the Suisun City and Successor 
Agency to the Former Suisun City Redevelopment Agency, to adopt the proposed budget 
amendments as submitted by the City Manager.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Suisun 
City and Successor Agency to the Former Suisun City Redevelopment Agency do hereby 
amend the Fiscal Year 2022-23 Budget as outlined in the attached Exhibit A. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of said City Council of the City of 
Suisun City duly held on Tuesday, the 21st day of February 2023, by the following vote: 

AYES: Councilmembers:    
NOES: Councilmembers:    
ABSENT: Councilmembers:    
ABSTAIN: Councilmembers:    

 WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 21st day of February 2023. 
 
   
 Anita Skinner 
 Deputy  
 

76



Fu
nd

 D
is

pl
ay

 N
am

e
Pr

og
ra

m
 N

um
be

r
G

L 
Ac

co
un

t T
yp

e
G

L 
Ac

co
un

t N
um

be
r

FY
 2

02
2-

23
 

Ac
tu

al
FY

 2
02

2-
23

 
Bu

dg
et

 F
Y 

20
22

-2
3 

M
id

-Y
ea

r 
Re

vi
ew

 
Di

ffe
re

nc
e

Co
m

m
en

ts
01

0 
- G

EN
ER

AL
 F

U
N

D
19

10
 - 

N
on

-D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l
Re

ve
nu

es
 / 

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
71

25
0-

O
th

er
 T

ax
es

 (F
ra

nc
hi

se
 fe

e,
 T

O
T)

58
8,

26
2.

54
2,

02
0,

87
7.

00
1,

52
0,

87
7

 
(5

00
,0

00
)

U
pd

at
ed

 re
ve

nu
e 

pr
oj

ec
tio

ns
01

0 
- G

EN
ER

AL
 F

U
N

D
19

10
 - 

N
on

-D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l
Re

ve
nu

es
 / 

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
71

21
0-

Sl
s T

x-
G

en
 U

se
80

8,
19

3.
05

2,
35

9,
95

0.
00

2,
46

5,
61

3
 

10
5,

66
3

U
pd

at
ed

 re
ve

nu
e 

pr
oj

ec
tio

ns
01

0 
- G

EN
ER

AL
 F

U
N

D
19

10
 - 

N
on

-D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l
Re

ve
nu

es
 / 

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
70

10
1-

Be
gi

nn
in

g 
Ba

la
nc

e
-

2,
54

6,
39

5.
00

4,
81

3,
10

3
 

2,
26

6,
70

8
01

0 
- G

EN
ER

AL
 F

U
N

D
23

50
 - 

Po
lic

e 
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

Re
ve

nu
es

 / 
Fu

nd
in

g 
So

ur
ce

81
46

9-
Fr

om
 C

FD
 N

o.
3

31
,0

03
.0

0
53

,1
48

.0
0

49
,9

76
 

(3
,1

72
)

U
pd

at
ed

 a
m

ou
nt

 to
 re

fle
ct

 re
ve

nu
e

01
0 

- G
EN

ER
AL

 F
U

N
D

23
50

 - 
Po

lic
e 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
Re

ve
nu

es
 / 

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
81

46
1-

Su
isu

n 
CF

D 
#2

27
0,

24
8.

87
45

9,
46

8.
00

52
7,

15
1

 
67

,6
83

U
pd

at
ed

 a
m

ou
nt

 to
 re

fle
ct

 re
ve

nu
e

01
0 

- G
EN

ER
AL

 F
U

N
D

26
10

 - 
Fi

re
 O

pe
ra

tio
ns

Re
ve

nu
es

 / 
Fu

nd
in

g 
So

ur
ce

81
46

9-
Fr

om
 C

FD
 N

o.
3

5,
63

6.
75

9,
66

3.
00

9,
08

6
 

(5
77

)
U

pd
at

ed
 a

m
ou

nt
 to

 re
fle

ct
 re

ve
nu

e
01

0 
- G

EN
ER

AL
 F

U
N

D
26

10
 - 

Fi
re

 O
pe

ra
tio

ns
Re

ve
nu

es
 / 

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
81

46
1-

Su
isu

n 
CF

D 
#2

42
,6

18
.1

0
83

,5
39

.5
9

95
,8

46
 

12
,3

06
U

pd
at

ed
 a

m
ou

nt
 to

 re
fle

ct
 re

ve
nu

e
01

0 
- G

EN
ER

AL
 F

U
N

D
26

10
 - 

Fi
re

 O
pe

ra
tio

ns
Re

ve
nu

es
 / 

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
81

16
7-

Fr
om

 A
m

er
ic

an
 R

es
cu

e 
Pl

an
41

,4
25

.5
0

65
5,

54
4.

00
22

2,
14

4
 

(4
33

,4
00

)
Co

rr
ec

te
d 

fu
nd

in
g 

so
ur

ce
 fo

r F
ire

 E
ng

in
ee

r p
os

iti
on

s (
3)

01
0 

- G
EN

ER
AL

 F
U

N
D

26
10

 - 
Fi

re
 O

pe
ra

tio
ns

Re
ve

nu
es

 / 
Fu

nd
in

g 
So

ur
ce

81
01

2-
FR

O
M

 M
EA

SU
RE

 S
-

74
1,

34
0.

00
1,

17
4,

74
0

 
43

3,
40

0
Co

rr
ec

te
d 

fu
nd

in
g 

so
ur

ce
 fo

r F
ire

 E
ng

in
ee

r p
os

iti
on

s (
3)

01
0 

- G
EN

ER
AL

 F
U

N
D

63
30

 - 
La

nd
sc

ap
e 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

Re
ve

nu
es

 / 
Fu

nd
in

g 
So

ur
ce

81
46

9-
Fr

om
 C

FD
 N

o.
3

3,
62

3.
69

6,
21

2.
00

5,
84

1
 

(3
71

)
U

pd
at

ed
 a

m
ou

nt
 to

 re
fle

ct
 re

ve
nu

e
01

0 
- G

EN
ER

AL
 F

U
N

D
63

30
 - 

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
Re

ve
nu

es
 / 

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
81

46
1-

Su
isu

n 
CF

D 
#2

29
,6

89
.4

1
53

,7
04

.0
0

61
,6

15
 

7,
91

1
U

pd
at

ed
 a

m
ou

nt
 to

 re
fle

ct
 re

ve
nu

e
01

0 
- G

EN
ER

AL
 F

U
N

D
86

10
 - 

Re
cr

ea
tio

n
Re

ve
nu

es
 / 

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
75

22
5-

Pr
k 

Co
nc

es
sio

ns
3,

43
3.

50
40

,0
00

.0
0

5,
00

0
 

(3
5,

00
0)

Fi
el

ds
 n

ot
 le

as
ab

le
01

0 
- G

EN
ER

AL
 F

U
N

D
86

10
 - 

Re
cr

ea
tio

n
Re

ve
nu

es
 / 

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
77

51
0-

Re
c 

Pr
og

rm
 F

ee
s

19
,5

86
.1

2
85

,0
00

.0
0

45
,0

00
 

(4
0,

00
0)

U
pd

at
ed

 re
ve

nu
e 

pr
oj

ec
tio

ns
01

0 
- G

EN
ER

AL
 F

U
N

D
86

15
 - 

Da
n 

O
 R

oo
t I

I A
ft

er
 S

ch
oo

l
Re

ve
nu

es
 / 

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
77

51
0-

Re
c 

Pr
og

rm
 F

ee
s

21
,9

02
.0

0
72

,6
18

.0
0

60
,0

00
 

(1
2,

61
8)

PT
 st

af
f c

ha
lle

ng
es

01
0 

- G
EN

ER
AL

 F
U

N
D

86
70

 - 
Yo

ut
h 

Ca
m

ps
Re

ve
nu

es
 / 

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
77

51
0-

Re
c 

Pr
og

rm
 F

ee
s

10
8,

57
7.

14
25

0,
00

0.
00

15
0,

00
0

 
(1

00
,0

00
)

FS
U

SD
 c

ha
ng

ed
 c

on
tr

ac
t a

ft
er

 b
ud

ge
t s

ub
m

iss
io

n
01

0 
- G

EN
ER

AL
 F

U
N

D
86

80
 - 

La
m

br
ec

ht
 S

po
rt

s C
om

pl
ex

 A
cR

ev
en

ue
s /

 F
un

di
ng

 S
ou

rc
e

75
22

5-
Pr

k 
Co

nc
es

sio
ns

15
,4

11
.0

9
15

,0
00

.0
0

25
,0

00
 

10
,0

00
ad

de
d 

to
ur

na
m

en
ts

01
0 

- G
EN

ER
AL

 F
U

N
D

86
80

 - 
La

m
br

ec
ht

 S
po

rt
s C

om
pl

ex
 A

cR
ev

en
ue

s /
 F

un
di

ng
 S

ou
rc

e
77

52
0-

To
ur

na
m

en
t F

ee
s

22
,6

41
.0

0
25

,0
00

.0
0

37
,0

00
 

12
,0

00
ad

de
d 

to
ur

na
m

en
ts

01
0 

- G
EN

ER
AL

 F
U

N
D

87
50

 - 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 C
en

te
r O

pe
ra

tio
nR

ev
en

ue
s /

 F
un

di
ng

 S
ou

rc
e

75
22

0-
Ro

om
 R

en
tls

/R
ec

16
2,

17
9.

00
19

0,
00

0.
00

26
0,

00
0

 
70

,0
00

U
pd

at
ed

 re
ve

nu
e 

pr
oj

ec
tio

ns
01

0 
- G

EN
ER

AL
 F

U
N

D
87

60
 - 

Se
ni

or
 C

en
te

r O
pe

ra
tio

ns
Re

ve
nu

es
 / 

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
77

51
0-

Re
c 

Pr
og

rm
 F

ee
s

40
.0

0
7,

00
0.

00
1,

00
0

 
(6

,0
00

)
ne

w
 p

ro
gr

am
s a

t n
o 

co
st

 to
 se

ni
or

s
To

ta
l R

ev
en

ue
s

2,
17

4,
47

1
9,

67
4,

45
9

11
,5

28
,9

92
1,

85
4,

53
3

01
0 

- G
EN

ER
AL

 F
U

N
D

17
10

 - 
Ci

ty
 M

an
ag

er
's 

O
ffi

ce
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
91

14
0-

O
th

r P
ro

f. 
Sr

vc
1,

75
0.

00
10

,0
00

.0
0

75
,0

00
 

65
,0

00
Ze

n 
Ci

ty
 a

nd
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n 
up

da
te

01
0 

- G
EN

ER
AL

 F
U

N
D

17
50

 - 
Hu

m
an

 R
es

ou
rc

es
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
91

43
5-

Fi
el

d 
Su

pp
lie

s
26

6.
95

-
60

0
 

60
0

Sh
re

d 
bo

x
01

0 
- G

EN
ER

AL
 F

U
N

D
17

50
 - 

Hu
m

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

Ex
pe

ns
es

 / 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

91
30

0-
O

ffi
ce

 S
up

pl
ie

s
1,

17
1.

45
30

0.
00

2,
50

0
 

2,
20

0
Ba

dg
e 

En
tr

y 
ca

rd
s,

 e
tc

.
01

0 
- G

EN
ER

AL
 F

U
N

D
17

50
 - 

Hu
m

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

Ex
pe

ns
es

 / 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

93
22

0-
M

em
be

rs
hi

p/
Du

es
-

4,
00

0.
00

5,
00

0
 

1,
00

0
Ca

lO
ps

 so
ft

w
ar

e 
su

bs
cr

ip
tio

n
01

0 
- G

EN
ER

AL
 F

U
N

D
17

50
 - 

Hu
m

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

Ex
pe

ns
es

 / 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

90
12

5-
Te

m
p 

Ag
en

cy
24

,5
15

.0
8

-
63

,0
00

 
63

,0
00

HR
 te

m
p.

 h
el

p
01

0 
- G

EN
ER

AL
 F

U
N

D
17

50
 - 

Hu
m

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

Ex
pe

ns
es

 / 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

91
14

0-
O

th
r P

ro
f. 

Sr
vc

7,
17

9.
00

-
80

,0
00

 
80

,0
00

HR
 In

ve
st

ig
at

io
ns

01
0 

- G
EN

ER
AL

 F
U

N
D

23
10

 - 
Po

lic
e 

Ch
ie

f O
ffi

ce
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
90

22
0-

St
an

db
y 

Pa
y

-
4,

00
0.

00
- 

(4
,0

00
)

01
0 

- G
EN

ER
AL

 F
U

N
D

23
10

 - 
Po

lic
e 

Ch
ie

f O
ffi

ce
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
93

22
0-

M
em

be
rs

hi
p/

Du
es

1,
62

4.
95

1,
00

0.
00

2,
00

0
 

1,
00

0
U

pd
at

ed
 p

ro
je

ct
io

ns
01

0 
- G

EN
ER

AL
 F

U
N

D
23

10
 - 

Po
lic

e 
Ch

ie
f O

ffi
ce

Ex
pe

ns
es

 / 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

90
43

0-
W

or
ke

r's
 C

om
p

12
,0

51
.5

4
-

25
,0

00
 

25
,0

00
01

0 
- G

EN
ER

AL
 F

U
N

D
23

10
 - 

Po
lic

e 
Ch

ie
f O

ffi
ce

Ex
pe

ns
es

 / 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

91
44

5-
G

as
/D

ie
se

l/O
il

64
,3

43
.3

4
80

,0
00

.0
0

11
0,

00
0

 
30

,0
00

U
pd

at
ed

 p
ro

je
ct

io
ns

01
0 

- G
EN

ER
AL

 F
U

N
D

23
26

 - 
Co

de
 E

nf
or

ce
m

en
t P

ro
gr

am
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
91

45
5-

U
ni

f/
Cl

ot
h/

Sf
ty

-
1,

00
0.

00
- 

(1
,0

00
)

up
da

te
d 

am
ou

nt
01

0 
- G

EN
ER

AL
 F

U
N

D
23

26
 - 

Co
de

 E
nf

or
ce

m
en

t P
ro

gr
am

Ex
pe

ns
es

 / 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

91
31

0-
Ph

on
e 

Sv
c/

In
tr

n
40

.4
2

-
25

0
 

25
0

U
pd

at
ed

 a
m

ou
nt

01
0 

- G
EN

ER
AL

 F
U

N
D

23
26

 - 
Co

de
 E

nf
or

ce
m

en
t P

ro
gr

am
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
91

44
5-

G
as

/D
ie

se
l/O

il
16

6.
57

-
50

0
 

50
0

up
da

te
d 

am
ou

nt
01

0 
- G

EN
ER

AL
 F

U
N

D
23

26
 - 

Co
de

 E
nf

or
ce

m
en

t P
ro

gr
am

Ex
pe

ns
es

 / 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

93
10

5-
E-

G
AD

G
ET

S 
O

TH
ER

69
4.

26
-

70
0

 
70

0
up

da
te

d 
am

ou
nt

01
0 

- G
EN

ER
AL

 F
U

N
D

23
50

 - 
Po

lic
e 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
92

31
5-

Ve
h/

Eq
p 

Re
nt

al
95

,3
28

.0
0

23
5,

00
0.

00
27

8,
90

0
 

43
,9

00
U

pd
at

ed
 p

ro
je

ct
io

ns
01

0 
- G

EN
ER

AL
 F

U
N

D
23

50
 - 

Po
lic

e 
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

Ex
pe

ns
es

 / 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

90
20

0-
O

ve
rt

im
e

28
4,

29
6.

38
45

1,
19

1.
51

47
0,

00
0

 
18

,8
08

U
pd

at
ed

 p
ro

je
ct

io
ns

01
0 

- G
EN

ER
AL

 F
U

N
D

23
50

 - 
Po

lic
e 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
90

31
4-

U
AL

-P
ER

S
85

9,
15

3.
71

95
6,

49
2.

00
88

8,
71

6
 

(6
7,

77
6)

U
nf

un
de

d 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 a

llo
ca

tio
n 

co
rr

ec
tio

n
01

0 
- G

EN
ER

AL
 F

U
N

D
26

00
 - 

Fi
re

 A
dm

ni
st

ra
tio

n
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
93

31
0-

Pr
of

.S
tu

di
es

-
3,

50
0.

00
- 

(3
,5

00
)

U
pd

at
ed

 p
ro

je
ct

io
ns

01
0 

- G
EN

ER
AL

 F
U

N
D

26
00

 - 
Fi

re
 A

dm
ni

st
ra

tio
n

Ex
pe

ns
es

 / 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

93
11

0-
O

fc
 F

ur
ni

sh
in

gs
47

8.
57

-
1,

50
0

 
1,

50
0

U
pd

at
ed

 p
ro

je
ct

io
ns

01
0 

- G
EN

ER
AL

 F
U

N
D

26
00

 - 
Fi

re
 A

dm
ni

st
ra

tio
n

Ex
pe

ns
es

 / 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

93
33

0-
M

kt
g 

&
 P

ro
m

os
20

0.
68

6,
00

0.
00

2,
00

0
 

(4
,0

00
)

U
pd

at
ed

 p
ro

je
ct

io
ns

01
0 

- G
EN

ER
AL

 F
U

N
D

26
00

 - 
Fi

re
 A

dm
ni

st
ra

tio
n

Ex
pe

ns
es

 / 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

91
31

0-
Ph

on
e 

Sv
c/

In
tr

n
9,

46
9.

25
9,

00
0.

00
22

,0
00

 
13

,0
00

U
pd

at
ed

 p
ro

je
ct

io
ns

01
0 

- G
EN

ER
AL

 F
U

N
D

26
00

 - 
Fi

re
 A

dm
ni

st
ra

tio
n

Ex
pe

ns
es

 / 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

92
31

5-
Ve

h/
Eq

p 
Re

nt
al

26
,3

52
.0

0
52

,7
05

.0
0

71
,7

05
 

19
,0

00
U

pd
at

ed
 p

ro
je

ct
io

ns
01

0 
- G

EN
ER

AL
 F

U
N

D
26

10
 - 

Fi
re

 O
pe

ra
tio

ns
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
91

31
0-

Ph
on

e 
Sv

c/
In

tr
n

-
1,

00
0.

00
- 

(1
,0

00
)

U
pd

at
ed

 p
ro

je
ct

io
ns

01
0 

- G
EN

ER
AL

 F
U

N
D

26
10

 - 
Fi

re
 O

pe
ra

tio
ns

Ex
pe

ns
es

 / 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

93
42

0-
Sp

ec
ia

l C
on

t.
-

30
,0

00
.0

0
- 

(3
0,

00
0)

U
pd

at
ed

 p
ro

je
ct

io
ns

01
0 

- G
EN

ER
AL

 F
U

N
D

26
10

 - 
Fi

re
 O

pe
ra

tio
ns

Ex
pe

ns
es

 / 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

93
10

5-
E-

G
AD

G
ET

S 
O

TH
ER

1,
26

7.
48

1,
00

0.
00

5,
00

0
 

4,
00

0
U

pd
at

ed
 p

ro
je

ct
io

ns
01

0 
- G

EN
ER

AL
 F

U
N

D
26

10
 - 

Fi
re

 O
pe

ra
tio

ns
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
91

43
5-

Fi
el

d 
Su

pp
lie

s
30

,1
47

.5
2

52
,0

00
.0

0
50

,0
00

 
( 2

,0
00

)
U

pd
at

ed
 p

ro
je

ct
io

ns
01

0 
- G

EN
ER

AL
 F

U
N

D
26

10
 - 

Fi
re

 O
pe

ra
tio

ns
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
91

43
0-

Cn
tr

ct
 S

vc
/E

qp
t

70
,6

83
.9

8
87

,0
00

.0
0

11
7,

00
0

 
30

,0
00

U
pd

at
ed

 p
ro

je
ct

io
ns

Pa
ge

 1

77



01
0 

- G
EN

ER
AL

 F
U

N
D

26
10

 - 
Fi

re
 O

pe
ra

tio
ns

Ex
pe

ns
es

 / 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

91
45

5-
U

ni
f/

Cl
ot

h/
Sf

ty
96

,1
78

.4
5

16
0,

00
0.

00
15

1,
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(8
,5

00
)

U
pd

at
ed

 p
ro

je
ct

io
ns

01
0 

- G
EN

ER
AL

 F
U

N
D

26
10

 - 
Fi

re
 O

pe
ra

tio
ns

Ex
pe

ns
es

 / 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

92
31

5-
Ve

h/
Eq

p 
Re

nt
al

11
5,

08
4.

29
26

1,
31

7.
00

21
1,

31
7

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(5

0,
00

0)
U

pd
at

ed
 p

ro
je

ct
io

ns
01

0 
- G

EN
ER

AL
 F

U
N

D
26

10
 - 

Fi
re

 O
pe

ra
tio

ns
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
90

20
0-

O
ve

rt
im

e
12

8,
44

0.
47

16
0,

00
0.

00
26

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
0,

00
0

U
pd

at
ed

 p
ro

je
ct

io
ns

01
0 

- G
EN

ER
AL

 F
U

N
D

26
10

 - 
Fi

re
 O

pe
ra

tio
ns

Ex
pe

ns
es

 / 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

90
11

0-
Re

gu
la

r S
al

ar
y

39
8,

77
4.

02
1,

12
8,

32
2.

86
1,

02
8,

32
3

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
(1

00
,0

00
)

Tr
an

sf
er

 to
 O

T 
ac

co
un

t
01

0 
- G

EN
ER

AL
 F

U
N

D
33

50
 - 

Bu
ild

in
g 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

Ex
pe

ns
es

 / 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

91
43

1-
O

th
r C

nt
rc

t S
vc

16
,7

73
.7

6
28

,0
00

.0
0

39
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

11
,0

00
Fa

ci
lit

y 
Ve

nt
ila

tio
n 

an
d 

CO
VI

D 
Fi

lte
r

01
0 

- G
EN

ER
AL

 F
U

N
D

60
10

 - 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
91

14
0-

O
th

r P
ro

f. 
Sr

vc
24

,7
15

.2
2

45
,0

00
.0

0
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

(4
0,

00
0)

01
0 

- G
EN

ER
AL

 F
U

N
D

60
10

 - 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
90

12
5-

Te
m

p 
Ag

en
cy

-
-

25
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

25
,0

00
01

0 
- G

EN
ER

AL
 F

U
N

D
63

30
 - 

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
91

42
0-

Cn
tr

ct
 S

vc
/G

rn
d

9,
52

8.
00

28
,0

00
.0

0
32

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
4,

00
0

up
da

te
d 

am
ou

nt
01

0 
- G

EN
ER

AL
 F

U
N

D
63

30
 - 

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
91

43
5-

Fi
el

d 
Su

pp
lie

s
23

,9
48

.5
4

30
,3

00
.0

0
35

,3
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
5,

00
0

up
da

te
d 

am
ou

nt
01

0 
- G

EN
ER

AL
 F

U
N

D
63

30
 - 

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
91

52
5-

W
at

er
/S

ew
er

 C
hg

32
,3

44
.9

4
47

,9
00

.0
0

64
,6

90
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

16
,7

90
U

pd
at

ed
 a

m
ou

nt
01

0 
- G

EN
ER

AL
 F

U
N

D
63

30
 - 

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
92

42
0-

PW
 C

re
w

 S
up

p/
Fx

59
,0

50
.3

6
19

7,
12

4.
09

11
8,

10
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(7

9,
02

3)
U

pd
at

ed
 a

m
ou

nt
01

0 
- G

EN
ER

AL
 F

U
N

D
86

10
 - 

Re
cr

ea
tio

n
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
91

14
0-

O
th

r P
ro

f. 
Sr

vc
13

,0
31

.0
0

60
,0

00
.0

0
30

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
(3

0,
00

0)
U

pd
at

ed
 p

ro
je

ct
io

ns
01

0 
- G

EN
ER

AL
 F

U
N

D
86

10
 - 

Re
cr

ea
tio

n
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
90

12
0-

Te
m

po
ra

ry
 W

ag
es

29
,3

56
.5

0
45

,6
41

.0
0

60
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

14
,3

59
U

pd
at

ed
 p

ro
je

ct
io

ns
01

0 
- G

EN
ER

AL
 F

U
N

D
86

15
 - 

Da
n 

O
 R

oo
t I

I A
ft

er
 S

ch
oo

l
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
90

12
0-

Te
m

po
ra

ry
 W

ag
es

18
,3

39
.9

6
63

,6
32

.0
0

48
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

(1
5,

63
2)

PT
 st

af
f c

ha
lle

ng
es

01
0 

- G
EN

ER
AL

 F
U

N
D

86
17

 - 
Cr

es
ce

nt
 E

le
m

en
ta

ry
 P

M
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
90

12
0-

Te
m

po
ra

ry
 W

ag
es

17
,5

98
.5

1
64

,2
92

.0
0

54
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

(1
0,

29
2)

PT
 st

af
f c

ha
lle

ng
es

01
0 

- G
EN

ER
AL

 F
U

N
D

86
70

 - 
Yo

ut
h 

Ca
m

ps
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
91

14
0-

O
th

r P
ro

f. 
Sr

vc
9,

09
1.

57
6,

00
0.

00
12

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
6,

00
0

Fi
el

d 
tr

ip
s f

or
 c

am
ps

01
0 

- G
EN

ER
AL

 F
U

N
D

86
70

 - 
Yo

ut
h 

Ca
m

ps
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
90

12
0-

Te
m

po
ra

ry
 W

ag
es

28
,8

46
.4

4
86

,1
16

.0
0

50
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

(3
6,

11
6)

01
0 

- G
EN

ER
AL

 F
U

N
D

86
80

 - 
La

m
br

ec
ht

 S
po

rt
s C

om
pl

ex
 A

cE
xp

en
se

s /
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
91

43
5-

Fi
el

d 
Su

pp
lie

s
10

,6
04

.4
1

15
,0

00
.0

0
20

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
5,

00
0

ad
de

d 
to

ur
na

m
en

ts
01

0 
- G

EN
ER

AL
 F

U
N

D
86

80
 - 

La
m

br
ec

ht
 S

po
rt

s C
om

pl
ex

 A
cE

xp
en

se
s /

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

91
51

0-
PG

&
E/

G
as

 &
 E

le
c

19
,0

08
.1

4
7,

00
0.

00
40

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
33

,0
00

Hi
gh

er
 P

G
&

E 
bi

ll
01

0 
- G

EN
ER

AL
 F

U
N

D
87

32
 - 

Li
br

ar
y 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

Ex
pe

ns
es

 / 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

91
52

5-
W

at
er

/S
ew

er
 C

hg
1,

85
5.

51
2,

40
0.

00
7,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

4,
60

0
U

pd
at

ed
 a

m
ou

nt
01

0 
- G

EN
ER

AL
 F

U
N

D
87

50
 - 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 C

en
te

r O
pe

ra
tio

nE
xp

en
se

s /
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
91

42
5-

Cn
tr

ct
 S

vc
/J

an
t

-
10

,0
00

.0
0

14
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
00

0
bi

d 
hi

gh
er

 th
an

 e
st

im
at

ed
01

0 
- G

EN
ER

AL
 F

U
N

D
87

50
 - 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 C

en
te

r O
pe

ra
tio

nE
xp

en
se

s /
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
91

43
5-

Fi
el

d 
Su

pp
lie

s
8,

37
4.

19
12

,5
00

.0
0

16
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
50

0
Ad

de
d 

Re
nt

al
s 

01
0 

- G
EN

ER
AL

 F
U

N
D

87
50

 - 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 C
en

te
r O

pe
ra

tio
nE

xp
en

se
s /

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

91
14

0-
O

th
r P

ro
f. 

Sr
vc

16
,1

50
.7

1
18

,0
00

.0
0

30
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

12
,0

00
Ad

de
d 

Re
nt

al
s a

nd
 n

ew
 h

ig
he

r c
os

t s
ec

ur
ity

 c
on

tr
ac

t
To

ta
l E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s

2,
56

8,
27

6
4,

46
1,

73
3

4,
62

2,
60

2
16

0,
86

8

01
2 

- M
EA

SU
RE

 S
19

12
 - 

M
ea

su
re

 S
Re

ve
nu

es
 / 

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
70

10
1-

Be
gi

nn
in

g 
Ba

la
nc

e
-

16
5,

00
0.

00
68

2,
84

4
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

51
7,

84
4

01
2 

- M
EA

SU
RE

 S
19

12
 - 

M
ea

su
re

 S
Re

ve
nu

es
 / 

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
71

24
0-

T&
U

-M
EA

SU
RE

 S
1,

20
8,

18
2.

41
3,

57
3,

35
0.

00
3,

77
3,

43
3

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
20

0,
08

3
U

pd
at

ed
 re

ve
nu

e 
pr

oj
ec

tio
ns

To
ta

l R
ev

en
ue

s
1,

20
8,

18
2

3,
73

8,
35

0
4,

45
6,

27
7

71
7,

92
7

01
2 

- M
EA

SU
RE

 S
19

12
 - 

M
ea

su
re

 S
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
85

31
4-

TO
 M

U
N

I/
VE

HI
CL

E
-

50
,0

00
70

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
20

,0
00

Q
ue

st
ic

a 
pa

ym
en

t
01

2 
- M

EA
SU

RE
 S

19
12

 - 
M

ea
su

re
 S

Ex
pe

ns
es

 / 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

96
41

5-
Ve

h/
Eq

. A
cq

.
-

-
12

3,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

12
3,

00
0

Ty
pe

 5
 F

ire
 W

ild
la

nd
 T

ru
ck

 u
pl

ift
in

g 
eq

ui
pm

en
t

01
2 

- M
EA

SU
RE

 S
19

12
 - 

M
ea

su
re

 S
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
85

11
5-

To
 T

ra
ns

 C
IP

-
-

21
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
21

5,
00

0
SR

12
 H

w
y 

Be
au

tif
ic

at
io

n 
CA

 G
ra

nt
 P

ro
je

ct
01

2 
- M

EA
SU

RE
 S

19
12

 - 
M

ea
su

re
 S

Ex
pe

ns
es

 / 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

85
01

0-
To

 G
en

er
al

 F
un

d
-

-
43

3,
40

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

43
3,

40
0

Co
rr

ec
te

d 
fu

nd
in

g 
so

ur
ce

 fo
r F

ire
 E

ng
in

ee
r p

os
iti

on
s (

3)
01

2 
- M

EA
SU

RE
 S

19
12

 - 
M

ea
su

re
 S

Ex
pe

ns
es

 / 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

85
11

5-
To

 T
ra

ns
 C

IP
-

57
8,

54
7.

00
61

6,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

37
,4

53
Ad

d 
fo

r t
he

 S
tr

ee
t R

ep
ai

r p
ro

je
ct

01
2 

- M
EA

SU
RE

 S
19

12
 - 

M
ea

su
re

 S
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
85

01
0-

To
 G

en
er

al
 F

un
d

-
2,

27
1,

78
7.

00
2,

16
0,

86
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
(1

10
,9

27
)

ad
ju

st
ed

 a
llo

ca
tio

ns
 to

 G
F

To
ta

l E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
-

2,
90

0,
33

4
3,

61
8,

26
0

71
7,

92
6

05
0 

- S
pe

ci
al

 E
ve

nt
s F

un
d-

Ju
 88

15
 - 

4t
h 

of
 Ju

ly
 E

ve
nt

Re
ve

nu
es

 / 
Fu

nd
in

g 
So

ur
ce

75
24

5-
EV

EN
T 

SP
O

N
SO

R
3,

50
0.

00
-

3,
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
3,

50
0

05
0 

- S
pe

ci
al

 E
ve

nt
s F

un
d-

Ju
 88

15
 - 

4t
h 

of
 Ju

ly
 E

ve
nt

Re
ve

nu
es

 / 
Fu

nd
in

g 
So

ur
ce

75
23

5-
CO

N
CE

SS
IO

N
74

,1
72

.0
8

87
,0

00
.0

0
75

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
(1

2,
00

0)
Fi

re
w

or
ks

 sa
le

s w
er

e 
lo

w
er

05
0 

- S
pe

ci
al

 E
ve

nt
s F

un
d-

Ju
 88

15
 - 

4t
h 

of
 Ju

ly
 E

ve
nt

Re
ve

nu
es

 / 
Fu

nd
in

g 
So

ur
ce

70
10

1-
Be

gi
nn

in
g 

Ba
la

nc
e

-
13

6,
60

5.
00

15
7,

80
4

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
21

,1
99

To
ta

l R
ev

en
ue

s
77

,6
72

22
3,

60
5

23
6,

30
4

12
,6

99

05
0 

- S
pe

ci
al

 E
ve

nt
s F

un
d-

Ju
 88

15
 - 

4t
h 

of
 Ju

ly
 E

ve
nt

Ex
pe

ns
es

 / 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

90
20

0-
O

ve
rt

im
e

38
2

7,
00

0
50

0
(6

,5
00

)
05

0 
- S

pe
ci

al
 E

ve
nt

s F
un

d-
Ju

 88
15

 - 
4t

h 
of

 Ju
ly

 E
ve

nt
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
91

43
5-

Fi
el

d 
Su

pp
lie

s
78

3
2,

50
0

1,
50

0
(1

,0
00

)
05

0 
- S

pe
ci

al
 E

ve
nt

s F
un

d-
Ju

 88
15

 - 
4t

h 
of

 Ju
ly

 E
ve

nt
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
91

46
5-

Le
as

es
/R

en
ta

ls
3,

40
1

4,
40

0
3,

50
0

(9
00

)
05

0 
- S

pe
ci

al
 E

ve
nt

s F
un

d-
Ju

 88
15

 - 
4t

h 
of

 Ju
ly

 E
ve

nt
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
90

16
0-

Sa
la

ry
 T

ra
ns

fr
s

8,
52

0
-

8,
52

0
8,

52
0

05
0 

- S
pe

ci
al

 E
ve

nt
s F

un
d-

Ju
 88

15
 - 

4t
h 

of
 Ju

ly
 E

ve
nt

Ex
pe

ns
es

 / 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

92
13

0-
Ri

sk
 M

gt
 ID

 C
hg

13
,5

89
23

,2
95

14
,0

00
(9

,2
95

)
05

0 
- S

pe
ci

al
 E

ve
nt

s F
un

d-
Ju

 88
15

 - 
4t

h 
of

 Ju
ly

 E
ve

nt
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
91

14
0-

O
th

r P
ro

f. 
Sr

vc
25

,4
55

22
,5

00
25

,5
00

3,
00

0
To

ta
l E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s

52
,1

30
59

,6
95

53
,5

20
(6

,1
75

)

05
1 

- C
HR

IS
TM

AS
 E

VE
N

T
88

16
 - 

Ch
ris

tm
as

 E
ve

nt
Re

ve
nu

es
 / 

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
70

10
1-

Be
gi

nn
in

g 
Ba

la
nc

e
-

-
2,

53
3

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

2,
53

3

Pa
ge

 2

78



05
1 

- C
HR

IS
TM

AS
 E

VE
N

T
88

16
 - 

Ch
ris

tm
as

 E
ve

nt
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
91

14
0-

O
th

r P
ro

f. 
Sr

vc
6,

61
3.

64
9,

50
0.

00
6,

70
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

(2
,8

00
)

05
1 

- C
HR

IS
TM

AS
 E

VE
N

T
88

16
 - 

Ch
ris

tm
as

 E
ve

nt
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
91

43
5-

Fi
el

d 
Su

pp
lie

s
17

,2
70

.7
7

25
,0

00
.0

0
18

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
(7

,0
00

)
To

ta
l E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s

23
,8

84
34

,5
00

24
,7

00
(9

,8
00

)

05
2 

- E
VE

N
TS

-O
TH

ER
S

88
17

 - 
O

th
er

 S
pe

ci
al

 E
ve

nt
s &

 P
ro

gr
aR

ev
en

ue
s /

 F
un

di
ng

 S
ou

rc
e

77
52

6-
EV

EN
T 

M
ER

CH
AN

DI
1,

15
0.

00
-

1,
15

0.
00

1,
15

0
05

2 
- E

VE
N

TS
-O

TH
ER

S
88

17
 - 

O
th

er
 S

pe
ci

al
 E

ve
nt

s &
 P

ro
gr

aR
ev

en
ue

s /
 F

un
di

ng
 S

ou
rc

e
70

10
1-

Be
gi

nn
in

g 
Ba

la
nc

e
-

21
,4

50
.0

0
17

,4
01

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
(4

,0
49

)
05

2 
- E

VE
N

TS
-O

TH
ER

S
88

17
 - 

O
th

er
 S

pe
ci

al
 E

ve
nt

s &
 P

ro
gr

aR
ev

en
ue

s /
 F

un
di

ng
 S

ou
rc

e
75

21
0-

Re
nt

s/
Ro

ya
lti

es
18

,0
30

.0
0

5,
50

0.
00

18
,1

00
.0

0
12

,6
00

To
ta

l R
ev

en
ue

s
19

,1
80

26
,9

50
36

,6
51

9,
70

1

05
2 

- E
VE

N
TS

-O
TH

ER
S

88
17

 - 
O

th
er

 S
pe

ci
al

 E
ve

nt
s &

 P
ro

gr
aE

xp
en

se
s /

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

91
36

0-
G

ov
t P

er
m

it/
Ta

x
63

6.
16

3,
10

0.
00

1,
50

0.
00

(1
,6

00
)

05
2 

- E
VE

N
TS

-O
TH

ER
S

88
17

 - 
O

th
er

 S
pe

ci
al

 E
ve

nt
s &

 P
ro

gr
aE

xp
en

se
s /

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

90
12

0-
Te

m
po

ra
ry

 W
ag

es
65

2.
31

6,
00

0.
00

2,
00

0.
00

(4
,0

00
)

05
2 

- E
VE

N
TS

-O
TH

ER
S

88
17

 - 
O

th
er

 S
pe

ci
al

 E
ve

nt
s &

 P
ro

gr
aE

xp
en

se
s /

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

91
43

5-
Fi

el
d 

Su
pp

lie
s

87
4.

84
3,

00
0.

00
2,

00
0.

00
(1

,0
00

)
05

2 
- E

VE
N

TS
-O

TH
ER

S
88

17
 - 

O
th

er
 S

pe
ci

al
 E

ve
nt

s &
 P

ro
gr

aE
xp

en
se

s /
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
91

33
0-

Ad
ve

rt
isi

ng
61

3.
10

5,
00

0.
00

2,
50

0.
00

(2
,5

00
)

05
2 

- E
VE

N
TS

-O
TH

ER
S

88
17

 - 
O

th
er

 S
pe

ci
al

 E
ve

nt
s &

 P
ro

gr
aE

xp
en

se
s /

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

91
43

1-
O

th
r C

nt
rc

t S
vc

4,
62

9.
74

8,
00

0.
00

6,
00

0.
00

(2
,0

00
)

05
2 

- E
VE

N
TS

-O
TH

ER
S

88
17

 - 
O

th
er

 S
pe

ci
al

 E
ve

nt
s &

 P
ro

gr
aE

xp
en

se
s /

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

91
14

0-
O

th
r P

ro
f. 

Sr
vc

14
,6

39
.0

0
19

,6
00

.0
0

17
,5

00
.0

0
(2

,1
00

)
To

ta
l E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s

22
,0

45
44

,7
00

31
,5

00
(1

3,
20

0)

10
5 

- A
LL

 G
AS

 T
AX

 F
U

N
DS

63
20

 - 
St

re
et

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

Re
ve

nu
es

 / 
Fu

nd
in

g 
So

ur
ce

70
10

1-
Be

gi
nn

in
g 

Ba
la

nc
e

-
10

0,
00

0.
00

(7
4,

42
6)

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(1

74
,4

26
)

10
5 

- A
LL

 G
AS

 T
AX

 F
U

N
DS

63
20

 - 
St

re
et

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

Ex
pe

ns
es

 / 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

93
22

0-
M

em
be

rs
hi

p/
Du

es
21

,5
03

.2
7

20
,8

00
.0

0
21

,5
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
70

0
U

pd
at

ed
 a

m
ou

nt

11
5 

- T
RA

N
SP

O
RT

AT
IO

N
 P

W
 

 
 

98
89

 - 
El

ec
tr

ic
 V

eh
ic

le
 C

ha
rg

in
g 

St
at

 
 

Re
ve

nu
es

 / 
Fu

nd
in

g 
So

ur
ce

70
10

1-
Be

gi
nn

in
g 

Ba
la

nc
e

-
2,

50
0.

00
2,

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0
11

5 
- T

RA
N

SP
O

RT
AT

IO
N

 P
W

 
 

 
99

00
 - 

SR
12

 C
le

an
 C

A
Re

ve
nu

es
 / 

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
81

01
2-

FR
O

M
 M

EA
SU

RE
 S

-
-

21
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
21

5,
00

0
SR

12
 H

w
y 

Be
au

tif
ic

at
io

n 
CA

 G
ra

nt
 P

ro
je

ct
11

5 
- T

RA
N

SP
O

RT
AT

IO
N

 P
W

 
 

 
99

06
 - 

An
nu

al
 S

tr
ee

t R
ep

ai
r P

ro
gr

am
Re

ve
nu

es
 / 

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
70

10
1-

Be
gi

nn
in

g 
Ba

la
nc

e
-

33
,1

04
.0

0
33

,1
04

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0

11
5 

- T
RA

N
SP

O
RT

AT
IO

N
 P

W
 

 
 

99
06

 - 
An

nu
al

 S
tr

ee
t R

ep
ai

r P
ro

gr
am

Re
ve

nu
es

 / 
Fu

nd
in

g 
So

ur
ce

81
01

2-
FR

O
M

 M
EA

SU
RE

 S
-

57
8,

54
7.

00
61

6,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

37
,4

53
Ad

d 
fo

r t
he

 S
tr

ee
t R

ep
ai

r p
ro

je
ct

11
5 

- T
RA

N
SP

O
RT

AT
IO

N
 P

W
 

 
 

99
07

 - 
Dr

ift
w

oo
d 

SR
2S

Re
ve

nu
es

 / 
Fu

nd
in

g 
So

ur
ce

70
10

1-
Be

gi
nn

in
g 

Ba
la

nc
e

-
16

.0
0

16
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0

To
ta

l R
ev

en
ue

s
-

61
4,

16
7

86
6,

62
0

25
2,

45
3

11
5 

- T
RA

N
SP

O
RT

AT
IO

N
 P

W
 

 
 

99
06

 - 
An

nu
al

 S
tr

ee
t R

ep
ai

r P
ro

gr
am

Ex
pe

ns
es

 / 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

96
31

0-
CI

P
42

6,
37

9.
86

1,
07

6,
40

0.
00

2,
07

6,
40

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
00

0,
00

0
Bu

dg
et

 c
or

re
tio

n 
fo

r C
IP

12
9 

- S
B 

13
83

 O
RG

AN
IC

 W
AS

60
29

 - 
SB

 1
38

3 
O

rg
an

ic
 W

as
te

Ex
pe

ns
es

 / 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

91
32

5-
Pr

nt
ng

/C
op

y 
Ex

p
-

5,
00

0.
00

90
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(4

,1
00

)
U

pd
at

ed
 a

m
ou

nt
12

9 
- S

B 
13

83
 O

RG
AN

IC
 W

AS
60

29
 - 

SB
 1

38
3 

O
rg

an
ic

 W
as

te
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
85

13
0 

- T
o 

RE
FU

SE
 C

O
LL

EC
TI

O
N

/A
B9

39
-

-
4,

20
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

4,
20

0
N

ew
 R

ev
en

ue
 T

/I
 fr

om
 F

un
d 

13
0

12
9 

- S
B 

13
83

 O
RG

AN
IC

 W
AS

60
29

 - 
SB

 1
38

3 
O

rg
an

ic
 W

as
te

Ex
pe

ns
es

 / 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

91
43

5-
Fi

el
d 

Su
pp

lie
s

-
8,

11
1.

00
8,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

(1
11

)
U

pd
at

ed
 a

m
ou

nt
12

9 
- S

B 
13

83
 O

RG
AN

IC
 W

AS
60

29
 - 

SB
 1

38
3 

O
rg

an
ic

 W
as

te
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
91

33
0-

Ad
ve

rt
isi

ng
4,

14
0.

00
15

,0
00

.0
0

10
,9

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

(4
,1

00
)

U
pd

at
ed

 a
m

ou
nt

12
9 

- S
B 

13
83

 O
RG

AN
IC

 W
AS

60
29

 - 
SB

 1
38

3 
O

rg
an

ic
 W

as
te

Ex
pe

ns
es

 / 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

90
16

0-
Sa

la
ry

 T
ra

ns
fr

s
-

10
,6

00
.0

0
12

,8
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

20
0

U
pd

at
ed

 a
m

ou
nt

To
ta

l E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
4,

14
0

38
,7

11
36

,8
00

(1
,9

11
)

13
0 

- R
EF

U
SE

 C
O

LL
EC

TI
O

N
/A

60
30

 - 
So

lid
 W

as
te

 D
iv

isi
on

Re
ve

nu
es

 / 
Fu

nd
in

g 
So

ur
ce

70
10

1-
Be

gi
nn

in
g 

Ba
la

nc
e

-
(1

4,
96

7.
00

)
(4

9,
19

0)
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

(3
4,

22
3)

13
0 

- R
EF

U
SE

 C
O

LL
EC

TI
O

N
/A

60
30

 - 
So

lid
 W

as
te

 D
iv

isi
on

Re
ve

nu
es

 / 
Fu

nd
in

g 
So

ur
ce

81
12

9-
SB

 1
38

3 
O

RG
AN

IC
 W

AS
TE

-
-

4,
20

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
4,

20
0

N
ew

 R
ev

en
ue

 T
/I

 fr
om

 F
un

d 
12

9
To

ta
l R

ev
en

ue
s

-
(1

4,
96

7)
(4

4,
99

0)
(3

0,
02

3)

13
0 

- R
EF

U
SE

 C
O

LL
EC

TI
O

N
/A

60
30

 - 
So

lid
 W

as
te

 D
iv

isi
on

Ex
pe

ns
es

 / 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

90
43

0-
W

or
ke

r's
 C

om
p

10
2

-
10

2
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
2

Ad
d 

bu
dg

et
13

0 
- R

EF
U

SE
 C

O
LL

EC
TI

O
N

/A
60

30
 - 

So
lid

 W
as

te
 D

iv
isi

on
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
91

11
0-

Le
ga

l S
er

vi
ce

s
10

,0
62

-
10

,0
62

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
10

,0
62

Ad
d 

bu
dg

et
To

ta
l E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s

10
,1

64
-

10
,1

64
10

,1
64

13
2 

- R
EC

YC
LI

N
G

 C
O

N
TA

IN
ER

 
60

32
 - 

Re
cy

cl
in

g
Re

ve
nu

es
 / 

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
75

41
0-

Pr
og

ra
m

 In
co

m
e

-
8,

00
0.

00
7,

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

(5
00

)
13

2 
- R

EC
YC

LI
N

G
 C

O
N

TA
IN

ER
 

60
32

 - 
Re

cy
cl

in
g

Re
ve

nu
es

 / 
Fu

nd
in

g 
So

ur
ce

70
10

1-
Be

gi
nn

in
g 

Ba
la

nc
e

-
9,

43
1.

00
17

,9
59

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
8,

52
8

To
ta

l R
ev

en
ue

s
-

17
,4

31
25

,4
59

8,
02

8

13
2 

- R
EC

YC
LI

N
G

 C
O

N
TA

IN
ER

 
60

32
 - 

Re
cy

cl
in

g
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
93

41
0-

O
pe

r. 
Co

nt
in

gc
y

-
6,

48
5.

00
4,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

(2
,4

85
)

U
pd

at
ed

 a
m

ou
nt

Pa
ge

 3

79



13
2 

- R
EC

YC
LI

N
G

 C
O

N
TA

IN
ER

 
60

32
 - 

Re
cy

cl
in

g
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
90

50
1-

TR
AV

EL
 T

RA
IN

IN
G

2,
35

9.
41

2,
50

0.
00

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

50
0

Ad
di

tio
na

l $
2,

50
0 

fo
r C

RR
A 

Co
nf

er
en

ce
To

ta
l E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s

2,
35

9
8,

98
5

9,
00

0
15

13
4 

- U
SE

D 
O

IL
 R

EC
YC

LI
N

G
 G

60
34

 - 
U

se
d 

O
il 

Re
cy

cl
in

g
Re

ve
nu

es
 / 

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
70

10
1-

Be
gi

nn
in

g 
Ba

la
nc

e
-

2,
74

5.
00

2,
98

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
24

3
13

4 
- U

SE
D 

O
IL

 R
EC

YC
LI

N
G

 G
60

34
 - 

U
se

d 
O

il 
Re

cy
cl

in
g

Re
ve

nu
es

 / 
Fu

nd
in

g 
So

ur
ce

75
41

0-
Pr

og
ra

m
 In

co
m

e
-

4,
00

0.
00

4,
87

2
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
87

2
U

pd
at

ed
 a

m
ou

nt
To

ta
l R

ev
en

ue
s

-
6,

74
5

7,
86

0
1,

11
5

13
4 

- U
SE

D 
O

IL
 R

EC
YC

LI
N

G
 G

60
34

 - 
U

se
d 

O
il 

Re
cy

cl
in

g
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
90

50
1-

TR
AV

EL
 T

RA
IN

IN
G

-
-

1,
20

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

20
0

U
pd

at
ed

 a
m

ou
nt

13
4 

- U
SE

D 
O

IL
 R

EC
YC

LI
N

G
 G

60
34

 - 
U

se
d 

O
il 

Re
cy

cl
in

g
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
93

41
0-

O
pe

r. 
Co

nt
in

gc
y

-
2,

50
0.

00
1,

30
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

(1
,2

00
)

U
pd

at
ed

 a
m

ou
nt

13
4 

- U
SE

D 
O

IL
 R

EC
YC

LI
N

G
 G

60
34

 - 
U

se
d 

O
il 

Re
cy

cl
in

g
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
91

43
1-

O
th

r C
nt

rc
t S

vc
-

4,
00

0.
00

4,
90

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
90

0
U

pd
at

ed
 a

m
ou

nt
To

ta
l E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s

-
6,

50
0

7,
40

0
90

0

15
9 

- O
TS

-A
L0

46
2-

O
FF

IC
E 

O
F 

 
 

24
10

 - 
O

TS
 G

ra
nt

 T
ra

ffi
c

Re
ve

nu
es

 / 
Fu

nd
in

g 
So

ur
ce

76
21

0-
Tr

af
fic

 G
ra

nt
7,

22
5.

00
-

10
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
Ad

de
d 

bu
dg

et

15
9 

- O
TS

-A
L0

46
2-

O
FF

IC
E 

O
F 

 
 

24
10

 - 
O

TS
 G

ra
nt

 T
ra

ffi
c

Ex
pe

ns
es

 / 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

91
30

5-
Sf

tw
re

/S
rv

 A
gr

e
7,

22
5.

00
-

10
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
Ad

de
d 

bu
dg

et

16
7 

- A
m

er
ic

an
 R

es
cu

e 
Pl

an
19

17
 - 

Ci
ty

w
id

e 
AR

PA
Re

ve
nu

es
 / 

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
70

10
1-

Be
gi

nn
in

g 
Ba

la
nc

e
-

20
3,

60
0.

00
1,

09
0,

40
2

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
88

6,
80

2

16
7 

- A
m

er
ic

an
 R

es
cu

e 
Pl

an
18

17
 - 

Fi
na

nc
e 

De
pa

rt
m

en
t A

RP
A

Ex
pe

ns
es

 / 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

91
30

5-
Sf

tw
re

/S
rv

 A
gr

e
5,

29
9.

36
-

7,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
7,

00
0

Bu
sin

es
s L

ic
en

ce
s S

of
tw

ar
e 

16
7 

- A
m

er
ic

an
 R

es
cu

e 
Pl

an
19

17
 - 

Ci
ty

w
id

e 
AR

PA
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
91

30
5-

Sf
tw

re
/S

rv
 A

gr
e

21
,8

29
.3

9
25

,0
00

.0
0

50
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

25
,0

00
G

ra
ni

cu
s A

ge
nd

a 
pa

ck
ag

e 
pr

oj
ec

t
16

7 
- A

m
er

ic
an

 R
es

cu
e 

Pl
an

26
27

 - 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t A
RP

A
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
85

01
0-

To
 G

en
er

al
 F

un
d

-
43

3,
40

0.
00

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

(4
33

,4
00

)
16

7 
- A

m
er

ic
an

 R
es

cu
e 

Pl
an

60
17

 - 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t A
R

Ex
pe

ns
es

 / 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

85
19

0 
- S

to
rm

 D
ra

in
ag

e 
Fu

nd
-

-
37

5,
90

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

37
5,

90
0

St
or

m
 D

ra
in

ag
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t

To
ta

l E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
27

,1
29

45
8,

40
0

43
2,

90
0

(2
5,

50
0)

17
1 

- P
RO

P 
49

 G
RA

N
T-

AF
TE

R 
 

86
50

 - 
Pr

op
49

/A
ft

er
 S

ch
oo

l
Re

ve
nu

es
 / 

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
77

51
0-

Re
c 

Pr
og

rm
 F

ee
s

10
,2

53
.8

8
18

,5
00

.0
0

15
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

(3
,5

00
)

lo
w

er
 e

nr
ol

lm
en

t
17

1 
- P

RO
P 

49
 G

RA
N

T-
AF

TE
R 

 
86

50
 - 

Pr
op

49
/A

ft
er

 S
ch

oo
l

Re
ve

nu
es

 / 
Fu

nd
in

g 
So

ur
ce

70
10

1-
Be

gi
nn

in
g 

Ba
la

nc
e

-
88

,3
31

.0
0

88
,2

26
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

(1
05

)
To

ta
l R

ev
en

ue
s

10
,2

54
10

6,
83

1
10

3,
22

6
(3

,6
05

)

17
5 

- P
O

LI
CE

 G
RA

N
TS

24
27

 - 
BS

CC
 O

ffi
ce

r W
el

ln
es

s G
ra

nt
Re

ve
nu

es
 / 

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
76

23
1-

G
ra

nt
 R

ev
en

ue
-

-
20

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
20

,0
00

BS
CC

 O
ffi

ce
r W

el
ln

es
s G

ra
nt

17
5 

- P
O

LI
CE

 G
RA

N
TS

24
27

 - 
BS

CC
 O

ffi
ce

r W
el

ln
es

s G
ra

nt
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
91

14
0-

O
th

r P
ro

f. 
Sr

vc
-

-
20

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
20

,0
00

BS
CC

 O
ffi

ce
r W

el
ln

es
s G

ra
nt

18
5 

- S
EW

ER
 M

AI
N

TE
N

AN
CE

63
10

 - 
Se

w
er

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

Re
ve

nu
es

 / 
Fu

nd
in

g 
So

ur
ce

70
10

1-
Be

gi
nn

in
g 

Ba
la

nc
e

-
1,

48
2,

49
1.

00
2,

46
6,

86
2

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
98

4,
37

1
$2

30
K 

fo
r V

ac
. T

ru
ck

18
5 

- S
EW

ER
 M

AI
N

TE
N

AN
CE

63
10

 - 
Se

w
er

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

Ex
pe

ns
es

 / 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

93
12

1-
Fi

el
d 

Eq
ui

p 
>5

k
-

27
0,

00
0.

00
50

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

23
0,

00
0

To
 p

ur
ch

as
e 

Va
c.

 T
ru

ck

18
8 

- S
EW

ER
 R

 &
 R

63
11

 - 
Se

w
er

 R
&

R 
Re

ha
b 

&
 R

ep
la

ce
mR

ev
en

ue
s /

 F
un

di
ng

 S
ou

rc
e

75
11

0 
-G

ra
nt

 R
ev

en
ue

-
-

68
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
68

5,
00

0
Se

w
er

 R
 &

 R
 p

ro
je

ct

18
8 

- S
EW

ER
 R

 &
 R

63
11

 - 
Se

w
er

 R
&

R-
Re

ha
b/

Re
pl

ac
em

eE
xp

en
se

s /
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
96

31
0-

CI
P

-
-

68
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
68

5,
00

0
Se

w
er

 R
 &

 R
 p

ro
je

ct

19
0 

- D
RA

IN
AG

E 
M

AI
N

TE
N

A
 

63
15

 - 
St

or
m

 D
ra

in
 &

 F
lo

od
 M

ai
nt

en
Re

ve
nu

es
 / 

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
70

10
1-

Be
gi

nn
in

g 
Ba

la
nc

e
-

9,
14

0.
00

16
7,

61
8

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
15

8,
47

8
19

0 
- D

RA
IN

AG
E 

M
AI

N
TE

N
A

 
99

24
 - 

St
or

m
 D

ra
in

ag
e 

Sy
st

em
 R

ep
ai

Re
ve

nu
es

 / 
Fu

nd
in

g 
So

ur
ce

81
16

7 
- F

ro
m

 A
RP

A 
Fu

nd
-

-
37

5,
90

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

37
5,

90
0

St
or

m
 D

ra
in

ag
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t

To
ta

l R
ev

en
ue

s
-

9,
14

0
54

3,
51

8
53

4,
37

8

19
0 

- D
RA

IN
AG

E 
M

AI
N

TE
N

A
 

63
15

 - 
St

or
m

 D
ra

in
 &

 F
lo

od
 M

ai
nt

en
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
91

36
0-

G
ov

t P
er

m
it/

Ta
x

21
,1

19
.0

0
19

,9
00

.0
0

21
,1

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
20

0
U

pd
at

ed
 a

m
ou

nt
19

0 
- D

RA
IN

AG
E 

M
AI

N
TE

N
A

 
99

24
 - 

St
or

m
 D

ra
in

ag
e 

Sy
st

em
 R

ep
ai

Ex
pe

ns
es

 / 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

96
31

5-
CI

P/
In

-h
se

 L
ab

r
61

6.
00

-
10

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
10

,0
00

St
or

m
 D

ra
in

ag
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t

19
0 

- D
RA

IN
AG

E 
M

AI
N

TE
N

A
 

99
24

 - 
St

or
m

 D
ra

in
ag

e 
Sy

st
em

 R
ep

ai
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
96

32
0-

CI
P/

Co
ns

tr
 M

gm
t

-
-

36
5,

90
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
36

5,
90

0
St

or
m

 D
ra

in
ag

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t
To

ta
l E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s

21
,7

35
19

,9
00

39
7,

00
0

37
7,

10
0

32
0 

- C
AP

IT
AL

 IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

 65
10

 - 
M

un
ic

ip
al

 F
ac

ili
ty

 Im
pr

ov
em

eR
ev

en
ue

s /
 F

un
di

ng
 S

ou
rc

e
70

10
1-

Be
gi

nn
in

g 
Ba

la
nc

e
-

90
,0

00
.0

0
99

,5
71

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
9,

57
1

Be
gi

nn
in

g 
Ba

l u
pd

at
e

Pa
ge

 4

80



32
0 

- C
AP

IT
AL

 IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

 65
10

 - 
M

un
ic

ip
al

 F
ac

ili
ty

 Im
pr

ov
em

eE
xp

en
se

s /
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
96

42
0-

CI
P/

BL
DG

 R
EP

AI
R

1,
01

4.
49

87
,0

00
.0

0
19

6,
34

7
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
9,

34
7

Ro
ll-

ov
er

 b
ud

ge
t f

ro
m

 la
st

 F
Y

32
0 

- C
AP

IT
AL

 IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

 65
10

 - 
M

un
ic

ip
al

 F
ac

ili
ty

 Im
pr

ov
em

eE
xp

en
se

s /
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
93

31
0-

Pr
of

.S
tu

di
es

9,
34

7.
40

12
0,

70
0.

00
23

3,
90

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

11
3,

20
0

Ro
ll-

ov
er

 b
ud

ge
t f

ro
m

 la
st

 F
Y

To
ta

l E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
10

,3
62

20
7,

70
0

43
0,

24
7

22
2,

54
7

42
0 

- L
AW

LE
R 

RA
N

CH
 M

AI
N

T 
 

 
64

25
 - 

La
w

le
r R

an
ch

 L
LD

Re
ve

nu
es

 / 
Fu

nd
in

g 
So

ur
ce

70
10

1-
Be

gi
nn

in
g 

Ba
la

nc
e

-
21

7,
16

5.
00

22
2,

28
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

11
6

42
0 

- L
AW

LE
R 

RA
N

CH
 M

AI
N

T 
 

 
64

25
 - 

La
w

le
r R

an
ch

 L
LD

Ex
pe

ns
es

 / 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

91
51

5-
PG

&
E/

St
 L

ig
ht

s
7,

87
0.

82
12

,4
00

.0
0

13
,9

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
50

0
U

pd
at

ed
 a

m
ou

nt

44
5 

- P
ET

ER
SO

N
-M

AI
N

TE
N

A
 

 
64

45
 - 

Pe
te

rs
on

 R
an

ch
 L

LD
Re

ve
nu

es
 / 

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
70

10
1-

Be
gi

nn
in

g 
Ba

la
nc

e
-

(5
0,

68
1.

00
)

9,
43

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
60

,1
19

44
5 

- P
ET

ER
SO

N
-M

AI
N

TE
N

A
 

 
64

45
 - 

Pe
te

rs
on

 R
an

ch
 L

LD
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
91

51
0-

PG
&

E/
G

as
 &

 E
le

c
3,

32
3.

39
3,

80
0.

00
5,

70
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
90

0
U

pd
at

ed
 a

m
ou

nt

44
6 

- P
ET

ER
SO

N
 R

AN
CH

-C
O

M
 

 
64

46
 - 

Pe
te

rs
on

 R
an

ch
 C

FD
 N

o.
 1

Re
ve

nu
es

 / 
Fu

nd
in

g 
So

ur
ce

70
10

1-
Be

gi
nn

in
g 

Ba
la

nc
e

-
21

4.
00

79
4

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
58

0

44
6 

- P
ET

ER
SO

N
 R

AN
CH

-C
O

M
 

 
64

46
 - 

Pe
te

rs
on

 R
an

ch
 C

FD
 N

o.
 1

Ex
pe

ns
es

 / 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

91
35

7-
Pr

op
 T

x 
Ad

m
 F

ee
1,

17
5.

93
1,

70
0.

00
2,

30
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

60
0

U
pd

at
ed

 a
m

ou
nt

44
9 

- V
IC

 H
AR

-D
RE

DG
IN

G
 M

64
49

 - 
Vi

ct
or

ia
n 

Ha
rb

or
 D

re
dg

in
g 

LL
DR

ev
en

ue
s /

 F
un

di
ng

 S
ou

rc
e

70
10

1-
Be

gi
nn

in
g 

Ba
la

nc
e

-
21

2,
78

9.
00

21
4,

01
7

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

22
8

44
9 

- V
IC

 H
AR

-D
RE

DG
IN

G
 M

64
49

 - 
Vi

ct
or

ia
n 

Ha
rb

or
 D

re
dg

in
g 

LL
DE

xp
en

se
s /

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

91
14

0-
O

th
r P

ro
f. 

Sr
vc

13
1.

40
17

2.
00

60
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
42

8
U

pd
at

ed
 a

m
ou

nt

45
3 

- V
IC

TO
RI

AN
 H

AR
BO

R 
- Z

 
64

53
 - 

Vi
ct

or
ia

n 
Ha

rb
or

 L
LD

 Z
on

e 
A

Re
ve

nu
es

 / 
Fu

nd
in

g 
So

ur
ce

70
10

1-
Be

gi
nn

in
g 

Ba
la

nc
e

-
15

5,
00

6.
00

16
4,

57
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
9,

56
5

45
3 

- V
IC

TO
RI

AN
 H

AR
BO

R 
- Z

 
64

53
 - 

Vi
ct

or
ia

n 
Ha

rb
or

 L
LD

 Z
on

e 
A

Ex
pe

ns
es

 / 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

91
51

5-
PG

&
E/

St
 L

ig
ht

s
1,

54
5.

59
3,

50
0.

00
3,

70
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

20
0

U
pd

at
ed

 a
m

ou
nt

45
4 

- V
IC

TO
RI

AN
 H

AR
BO

R 
- Z

 
64

54
 - 

Vi
ct

or
ia

n 
Ha

rb
or

 L
LD

 Z
on

e 
B

Re
ve

nu
es

 / 
Fu

nd
in

g 
So

ur
ce

70
10

1-
Be

gi
nn

in
g 

Ba
la

nc
e

-
16

,4
45

.0
0

31
,7

73
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

15
,3

28

45
4 

- V
IC

TO
RI

AN
 H

AR
BO

R 
- Z

 
64

54
 - 

Vi
ct

or
ia

n 
Ha

rb
or

 L
LD

 Z
on

e 
B

Ex
pe

ns
es

 / 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

91
51

5-
PG

&
E/

St
 L

ig
ht

s
1,

40
4.

89
2,

70
0.

00
3,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

30
0

U
pd

at
ed

 a
m

ou
nt

45
8 

- V
IC

TO
RI

AN
 H

AR
BO

R 
- Z

 
64

58
 - 

Vi
ct

or
ia

n 
Ha

rb
or

 L
LD

 Z
on

e 
E

Re
ve

nu
es

 / 
Fu

nd
in

g 
So

ur
ce

70
10

1-
Be

gi
nn

in
g 

Ba
la

nc
e

-
36

,8
95

41
,9

70
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

5,
07

5

45
8 

- V
IC

TO
RI

AN
 H

AR
BO

R 
- Z

 
64

58
 - 

Vi
ct

or
ia

n 
Ha

rb
or

 L
LD

 Z
on

e 
E

Ex
pe

ns
es

 / 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

91
52

5-
W

at
er

/S
ew

er
 C

hg
9,

74
7

8,
40

0
15

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
6,

60
0

U
pd

at
ed

 a
m

ou
nt

46
1 

- S
U

IS
U

N
 C

IT
Y 

CF
D 

#2
64

61
 - 

Su
isu

n 
Ci

ty
 C

FD
 #

2
Re

ve
nu

es
 / 

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
70

10
1-

Be
gi

nn
in

g 
Ba

la
nc

e
-

62
(6

,2
31

)
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(6

,2
93

)
46

1 
- S

U
IS

U
N

 C
IT

Y 
CF

D 
#2

64
61

 - 
Su

isu
n 

Ci
ty

 C
FD

 #
2

Re
ve

nu
es

 / 
Fu

nd
in

g 
So

ur
ce

72
11

0-
M

AD
/P

AD
/C

FD
35

8,
13

5
65

0,
00

0
71

6,
27

3
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

66
,2

73
U

pd
at

ed
 R

ev
en

ue
To

ta
l R

ev
en

ue
s

35
8,

13
5

65
0,

06
2

71
0,

04
2

59
,9

80

46
1 

- S
U

IS
U

N
 C

IT
Y 

CF
D 

#2
64

61
 - 

Su
isu

n 
Ci

ty
 C

FD
 #

2
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
85

01
0-

To
 G

en
er

al
 F

un
d

34
2,

55
6.

38
59

6,
71

1.
00

68
1,

60
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
84

,8
89

U
pd

at
ed

 a
m

ou
nt

46
2 

- M
CC

O
Y 

CR
EE

K 
TA

X 
ZO

N
 

64
62

 - 
M

cC
oy

 C
re

ek
 T

ax
 Z

on
e 

2
Re

ve
nu

es
 / 

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
72

11
0-

M
AD

/P
AD

/C
FD

4,
81

0
41

,4
00

9,
62

0
(3

1,
78

0)
U

pd
at

ed
 a

m
ou

nt
46

2 
- M

CC
O

Y 
CR

EE
K 

TA
X 

ZO
N

 
64

62
 - 

M
cC

oy
 C

re
ek

 T
ax

 Z
on

e 
2

Re
ve

nu
es

 / 
Fu

nd
in

g 
So

ur
ce

70
10

1-
Be

gi
nn

in
g 

Ba
la

nc
e

-
24

,4
16

24
,3

61
(5

5)
To

ta
l R

ev
en

ue
s

4,
81

0
65

,8
16

33
,9

81
(3

1,
83

5)

46
2 

- M
CC

O
Y 

CR
EE

K 
TA

X 
ZO

N
 

64
62

 - 
M

cC
oy

 C
re

ek
 T

ax
 Z

on
e 

2
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
93

41
0-

O
pe

r. 
Co

nt
in

gc
y

-
50

,0
00

-
(5

0,
00

0)
U

pd
at

ed
 a

m
ou

nt
46

2 
- M

CC
O

Y 
CR

EE
K 

TA
X 

ZO
N

 
64

62
 - 

M
cC

oy
 C

re
ek

 T
ax

 Z
on

e 
2

Ex
pe

ns
es

 / 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

91
35

7-
Pr

op
 T

x 
Ad

m
 F

ee
29

9
30

0
80

0
50

0
U

pd
at

ed
 a

m
ou

nt
46

2 
- M

CC
O

Y 
CR

EE
K 

TA
X 

ZO
N

 
64

62
 - 

M
cC

oy
 C

re
ek

 T
ax

 Z
on

e 
2

Ex
pe

ns
es

 / 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

91
14

0-
O

th
r P

ro
f. 

Sr
vc

35
9

20
6

1,
80

0
1,

59
4

U
pd

at
ed

 a
m

ou
nt

To
ta

l E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
65

8
50

,5
06

2,
60

0
(4

7,
90

6)

46
6 

- P
ET

ER
SO

N
 T

AX
 Z

O
N

E 
3 6

46
6 

- P
et

er
so

n 
Ra

nc
h 

Ta
x 

Zo
ne

 3
Re

ve
nu

es
 / 

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
70

10
1-

Be
gi

nn
in

g 
Ba

la
nc

e
-

44
,5

14
.0

0
42

,5
34

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
(1

,9
80

)

46
6 

- P
ET

ER
SO

N
 T

AX
 Z

O
N

E 
3 6

46
6 

- P
et

er
so

n 
Ra

nc
h 

Ta
x 

Zo
ne

 3
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
91

35
7-

Pr
op

 T
x 

Ad
m

 F
ee

30
4

30
0

80
0

50
0

up
da

te
 a

m
ou

nt
46

6 
- P

ET
ER

SO
N

 T
AX

 Z
O

N
E 

3 6
46

6 
- P

et
er

so
n 

Ra
nc

h 
Ta

x 
Zo

ne
 3

Ex
pe

ns
es

 / 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

91
14

0-
O

th
r P

ro
f. 

Sr
vc

13
3

20
6

1,
80

0
1,

59
4

up
da

te
 a

m
ou

nt

Pa
ge

 5

81



46
6 

- P
ET

ER
SO

N
 T

AX
 Z

O
N

E 
3 6

46
6 

- P
et

er
so

n 
Ra

nc
h 

Ta
x 

Zo
ne

 3
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
91

43
1-

O
th

r C
nt

rc
t S

vc
-

2,
70

0
5,

50
0

2,
80

0
up

da
te

 a
m

ou
nt

46
6 

- P
ET

ER
SO

N
 T

AX
 Z

O
N

E 
3 6

46
6 

- P
et

er
so

n 
Ra

nc
h 

Ta
x 

Zo
ne

 3
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
93

41
0-

O
pe

r. 
Co

nt
in

gc
y

-
31

,5
00

27
,0

00
(4

,5
00

)
up

da
te

d 
am

ou
nt

To
ta

l E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
43

6
34

,7
06

35
,1

00
39

4

46
9 

- S
U

IS
U

N
 C

FD
 N

O
.3

64
69

 - 
Su

isu
n 

Ci
ty

 C
FD

 N
o.

 3
Re

ve
nu

es
 / 

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
70

10
1-

Be
gi

nn
in

g 
Ba

la
nc

e
-

1,
54

5.
00

1,
34

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(2

00
)

46
9 

- S
U

IS
U

N
 C

FD
 N

O
.3

64
69

 - 
Su

isu
n 

Ci
ty

 C
FD

 N
o.

 3
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
91

14
0-

O
th

r P
ro

f. 
Sr

vc
57

0.
08

2,
30

0.
00

2,
10

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(2

00
)

up
da

te
d 

am
ou

nt
46

9 
- S

U
IS

U
N

 C
FD

 N
O

.3
64

69
 - 

Su
isu

n 
Ci

ty
 C

FD
 N

o.
 3

Ex
pe

ns
es

 / 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

91
35

7-
Pr

op
 T

x 
Ad

m
 F

ee
1,

49
0.

08
70

0.
00

3,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

30
0

up
da

te
d 

am
ou

nt
46

9 
- S

U
IS

U
N

 C
FD

 N
O

.3
64

69
 - 

Su
isu

n 
Ci

ty
 C

FD
 N

o.
 3

Ex
pe

ns
es

 / 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

85
01

0-
To

 G
en

er
al

 F
un

d
40

,2
63

.4
4

69
,0

23
.0

0
64

,9
03

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
(4

,1
20

)
U

pd
at

ed
 R

ev
en

ue
To

ta
l E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s

42
,3

24
72

,0
23

70
,0

03
(2

,0
20

)

70
6 

- V
EH

/E
Q

U
IP

 R
EP

LA
CE

M
 

63
85

 - 
Ve

hi
cl

e 
&

 E
qu

ip
m

en
t A

cq
ui

sit
Re

ve
nu

es
 / 

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
78

22
0-

Ve
h/

Eq
ui

p 
Re

pl
c

30
2,

79
4

68
2,

67
1

78
7,

57
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

4,
90

0
U

pd
at

ed
 p

ro
je

ct
io

ns
70

6 
- V

EH
/E

Q
U

IP
 R

EP
LA

CE
M

 
63

85
 - 

Ve
hi

cl
e 

&
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t A
cq

ui
sit

Re
ve

nu
es

 / 
Fu

nd
in

g 
So

ur
ce

70
10

1-
Be

gi
nn

in
g 

Ba
la

nc
e

-
1,

70
0,

00
0

1,
71

6,
07

4
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

16
,0

74
To

ta
l R

ev
en

ue
s

30
2,

79
4

2,
38

2,
67

1
2,

50
3,

64
5

12
0,

97
4

71
2 

- D
isp

at
ch

 - 
P/

S
23

12
 - 

Di
sp

at
ch

-ID
C

Re
ve

nu
es

 / 
Fu

nd
in

g 
So

ur
ce

70
10

1-
Be

gi
nn

in
g 

Ba
la

nc
e

-
-

30
,3

83
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

30
,3

83

71
2 

- D
isp

at
ch

 - 
P/

S
23

12
 - 

Di
sp

at
ch

-ID
C

Ex
pe

ns
es

 / 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

90
50

0-
PH

Y/
BA

CK
G

RO
U

N
DS

11
,9

89
10

,0
00

21
,2

00
11

,2
00

U
pd

at
ed

 p
ro

je
ct

io
ns

71
2 

- D
isp

at
ch

 - 
P/

S
23

12
 - 

Di
sp

at
ch

-ID
C

Ex
pe

ns
es

 / 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

90
31

4-
U

AL
-P

ER
S

65
,5

21
-

67
,7

76
67

,7
76

U
nf

un
de

d 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 a

llo
ca

tio
n 

co
rr

ec
tio

n
To

ta
l E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s

77
,5

10
10

,0
00

88
,9

76
78

,9
76

71
3 

- P
W

 M
AI

N
TE

N
AN

CE
-IN

T
 

63
95

 - 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 C

re
w

 C
os

ts
Re

ve
nu

es
 / 

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
78

41
0-

PW
 C

re
w

 S
up

po
rt

63
1,

48
1.

80
2,

19
0,

26
7.

69
2,

20
7,

66
8

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
17

,4
00

N
ew

 p
ho

ne
s f

or
 P

W

71
3 

- P
W

 M
AI

N
TE

N
AN

CE
-IN

T
 

63
95

 - 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 C

re
w

 C
os

ts
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
91

31
0-

Ph
on

e 
Sv

c/
In

tr
n

2,
48

6
5,

00
0

22
,4

00
17

,4
00

N
ew

 p
ho

ne
s f

or
 P

W
71

3 
- P

W
 M

AI
N

TE
N

AN
CE

-IN
T

 
63

95
 - 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 C
re

w
 C

os
ts

Ex
pe

ns
es

 / 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

92
31

5-
Ve

h/
Eq

p 
Re

nt
al

37
,8

84
72

,0
94

11
4,

09
4

42
,0

00
U

pd
at

ed
 p

ro
je

ct
io

ns
To

ta
l E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s

40
,3

70
77

,0
94

13
6,

49
4

59
,4

00

71
5 

- L
IA

BI
LI

TY
 IN

SU
RA

N
CE

 R
 

17
70

 - 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 S

el
f I

ns
ur

an
ce

 A
dm

in
Re

ve
nu

es
 / 

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
70

10
1-

Be
gi

nn
in

g 
Ba

la
nc

e
-

25
0,

93
7.

00
49

2,
27

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

24
1,

33
8

71
5 

- L
IA

BI
LI

TY
 IN

SU
RA

N
CE

 R
 

17
70

 - 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 S

el
f I

ns
ur

an
ce

 A
dm

in
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
91

43
5-

Fi
el

d 
Su

pp
lie

s
-

1,
50

0
3,

00
0

1,
50

0
Er

go
 d

es
k 

&
 c

ha
ir

71
5 

- L
IA

BI
LI

TY
 IN

SU
RA

N
CE

 R
 

17
70

 - 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 S

el
f I

ns
ur

an
ce

 A
dm

in
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
91

43
1-

O
th

r C
nt

rc
t S

vc
1,

67
6

30
,0

00
11

0,
00

0
80

,0
00

HR
 In

ve
st

ig
at

io
ns

To
ta

l E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
1,

67
6

31
,5

00
11

3,
00

0
81

,5
00

75
0 

- W
O

RK
ER

S 
CO

M
P 

SE
LF

 
 

17
80

 - 
W

or
ke

rs
 C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

Ad
m

iR
ev

en
ue

s /
 F

un
di

ng
 S

ou
rc

e
70

10
1-

Be
gi

nn
in

g 
Ba

la
nc

e
-

-
80

1,
80

2
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

80
1,

80
2

75
0 

- W
O

RK
ER

S 
CO

M
P 

SE
LF

 
 

17
80

 - 
W

or
ke

rs
 C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

Ad
m

iE
xp

en
se

s /
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
91

36
0-

G
ov

t P
er

m
it/

Ta
x

25
,8

00
-

26
,0

00
26

,0
00

O
SH

A 
pe

na
lty

75
0 

- W
O

RK
ER

S 
CO

M
P 

SE
LF

 
 

17
80

 - 
W

or
ke

rs
 C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

Ad
m

iE
xp

en
se

s /
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
91

34
5-

In
su

ra
nc

e 
Ex

p.
15

9,
83

5
10

8,
10

0
16

0,
00

0
51

,9
00

LA
W

CX
 p

re
m

iu
m

 p
ay

m
en

t
75

0 
- W

O
RK

ER
S 

CO
M

P 
SE

LF
 

 
17

80
 - 

W
or

ke
rs

 C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
Ad

m
iE

xp
en

se
s /

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

90
16

0-
Sa

la
ry

 T
ra

ns
fr

s
86

,7
04

-
27

0,
00

0
27

0,
00

0
Cl

ai
m

s p
ay

m
en

ts
To

ta
l E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s

27
2,

33
8

10
8,

10
0

45
6,

00
0

34
7,

90
0

90
9 

- M
AR

IN
A

89
10

 - 
M

ar
in

a 
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 P
ro

gr
am

Re
ve

nu
es

 / 
Fu

nd
in

g 
So

ur
ce

70
10

1-
Be

gi
nn

in
g 

Ba
la

nc
e

0
0

(1
44

,8
79

)
(1

44
,8

79
)

90
9 

- M
AR

IN
A

89
10

 - 
M

ar
in

a 
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 P
ro

gr
am

Re
ve

nu
es

 / 
Fu

nd
in

g 
So

ur
ce

75
21

0-
Re

nt
s/

Ro
ya

lti
es

98
,3

34
27

5,
00

0
25

0,
00

0
(2

5,
00

0)
U

pd
at

ed
 p

ro
je

ct
io

ns
90

9 
- M

AR
IN

A
89

10
 - 

M
ar

in
a 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 P

ro
gr

am
Re

ve
nu

es
 / 

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
81

91
9 

- F
ro

m
 M

ar
in

a 
Fu

el
0

0
54

5,
00

0
54

5,
00

0
RO

PS
 d

en
ie

d 
re

im
bu

rs
em

en
t f

ro
m

 D
O

F
90

9 
- M

AR
IN

A
99

83
 - 

M
ar

in
a 

Re
fu

rb
ish

m
en

t/
Re

pa
iR

ev
en

ue
s /

 F
un

di
ng

 S
ou

rc
e

70
10

1-
Be

gi
nn

in
g 

Ba
la

nc
e

0
0

(6
06

,6
82

)
(6

06
,6

82
)

To
ta

l R
ev

en
ue

s
98

,3
34

27
5,

00
0

43
,4

39
(2

31
,5

61
)

90
9 

- M
AR

IN
A

89
10

 - 
M

ar
in

a 
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 P
ro

gr
am

Ex
pe

ns
es

 / 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

90
12

0-
Te

m
po

ra
ry

 W
ag

es
19

,3
49

.8
6

46
,3

25
.0

0
42

,0
00

(4
,3

25
)

U
pd

at
ed

 p
ro

je
ct

io
ns

91
9 

- M
AR

IN
A 

FU
EL

89
20

 - 
M

ar
in

a 
Fu

el
Re

ve
nu

es
 / 

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
70

10
1-

Be
gi

nn
in

g 
Ba

la
nc

e
-

-
10

3,
46

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
3,

46
5

91
9 

- M
AR

IN
A 

FU
EL

89
20

 - 
M

ar
in

a 
Fu

el
Ex

pe
ns

es
 / 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
85

90
9 

- T
o 

M
ar

in
a

-
-

54
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
54

5,
00

0
RO

PS
 d

en
ie

d 
re

im
bu

rs
em

en
t f

ro
m

 D
O

F

Pa
ge

 6

82



94
5 

- H
O

U
SI

N
G

 A
U

TH
O

RI
TY

  
 

34
90

 - 
HA

 H
ou

sin
g 

Au
th

or
ity

 A
dm

in
iR

ev
en

ue
s /

 F
un

di
ng

 S
ou

rc
e

70
10

1-
Be

gi
nn

in
g 

Ba
la

nc
e

-
11

8,
81

0
(1

8,
92

5)
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

(1
37

,7
35

)
94

5 
- H

O
U

SI
N

G
 A

U
TH

O
RI

TY
  

 
34

90
 - 

HA
 H

ou
sin

g 
Au

th
or

ity
 A

dm
in

iE
xp

en
se

s /
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
92

31
5-

Ve
h/

Eq
p 

Re
nt

al
79

8
3,

20
0

1,
60

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(1

,6
00

)

Pa
ge

 7

83



FY 2022-23 MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

1

AGENDA

FY 2021-22 Fiscal Overview

FY 2022-23 Mid-Year Adjustments Summary

FY 2022-23 Mid-Year Budget Review

Recommendation

Questions/Comments

2

1

2

84



3

FY 2021-22 GENERAL FUND OVERVIEW

Category Budgeted Actuals Difference

Revenues (including 

Beginning Balance)

$23,494,951 $23,765,510 $270,559

Expenditures $20,948,556 $18,952,407 $(1,996,149)

Ending Balance $2,546,395 $4,813,103

4

3

4

85



FY 2021-22 MEASURE S OVERVIEW

Category Budgeted Actuals Difference

Revenues (including 

Beginning Balance)

$5,235,535 $5,393,906 $158,371

Expenditures $5,235,535 $4,711,063 $(524,472)

Ending Balance $0 $682,843

5

6

5

6

86



MID-YEAR ADJUSTMENTS SUMMARY

 Revenue projections

 Beginning Balances

 CIP projects updates

 Professional Services

7

FY 2022-23 GENERAL FUND (GF) ADJUSTMENTS SUMMARY

Adopted Budget Amended Budget

Revenues:         $25,272,349 Revenues:         $27,126,882

Expenditures:   $25,272,349 Expenditures:    $25,433,217

Surplus:             $0 Surplus:             $1,693,665

8

7

8

87



GF ADJUSTMENTS: REVENUES

 Beginning Balance $2,266,708

 Sales Tax $105,663

 Other Taxes $(500,000)

 Recreation Programs $(101,618)

 Transfer In from CFD#2 $87,900

 Transfer In from CFD#3 $(4,120)

 Total $1,854,533

9

GF ADJUSTMENTS: EXPENDITURES

Total $160,868

 Temp agency costs (HR & PW) $88,000

 Professional Services (HR) $80,000

 Strategic Plan and Zen City update $65,000

 Utilities $33,000

 Gas/Diesel/Oil $30,000

 Various reductions $(135,132)

10

9

10

88



MEASURE S ADJUSTMENTS

Revenues:
• Beginning Balance $517,844
• Sales Tax $200,083

Total
$717,927

11

MEASURE S ADJUSTMENTS

Expenditures:
•Fire Engineers (3) correction $433,400
•Hwy 12 Beautification project $215,000
•Type 5 uplifting (Fire) $123,000
•Street Repairs project $37,453
•Questica payment $20,000
•Transfer out $(110,927)

Total $717,926

12

11

12

89



RECOMMENDATION

 Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2023-___: 
Adopting the 3rd Amendment to the Annual 
Appropriation Resolution No. 2022-90 to 
Appropriate Mid-Year Budget Adjustments for 
Additional Costs in Various Accounts 
Organization Wide.

13

QUESTIONS/COMMENTS

Thank You!

14

13

14

90



AGENDA ITEM NO. 13
                  AGENDA TRANSMITTAL

 
MEETING DATE: February 21, 2023
 
CITY AGENDA ITEM: Provide direction to City Manager and City Attorney relating to filling the
councilmember vacancy pursuant to one of the following, or at the Council’s discretion:
 

a. Return at the March 7, 2023 City Council meeting with the appropriate documentation to call a
special election for November 7, 2023.

b. Return at the March 7, 2023 City Council meeting with the appropriate documentation for
adoption of application and interview procedures relating to the filling a vacancy on the City
Council.

c. Return at the March 7, 2023 City Council meeting with the appropriate documentation to adopt
procedures to consider and appoint an individual from the applicants to Mayor Hernandez’s
vacated seat.

d. Return at the March 7, 2023 City Council meeting with the appropriate documentation to appoint
a specific individual of the City Council’s choosing.

e. Provide the City Attorney with other direction.

 
FISCAL IMPACT: None.
 
STRATEGIC PLAN: Provide Good Governance. 
 
BACKGROUND: Councilmember Mike Hudson tendered his resignation effective today. The result is
that there is a vacancy on the City Council, which must be filled. The term of the vacated office runs
through the end of 2024.
 
Suisun Municipal Code Section 2.04.040 and Government Code Section 36512 generally govern the
process by which vacancies in the elected offices of city council members are filled. Specifically,
Section 36512 provides that a city council shall, within 60 days of the date of vacancy, fill such
vacancy by appointment, or call a special election to fill the vacancy for the remainder of the vacated
term. 
 
However, Section 36512 primarily deals with circumstances in which a special election is required to be
called if the council fails to appoint a councilmember, or after a vacancy is filled pursuant to
appointment. It does not govern the manner in which the City Council determines who to appoint to fill
a vacancy. 
 
Section 2.3, Filling of a Council Vacancy, of the Suisun City Council Rules and Procedures, provides:
 

In the event of a vacancy of office or the death or resignation of any Council Member, the Mayor
shall appoint a new Council Member, with the consent of the Council, within sixty (60) days after
a vacancy or death or resignation becomes effective in compliance with the California Elections
Code, unless the Council, by resolution, decides to instead call a special election. In the event of
appointment, the Mayor, with the consent of the Council, shall determine by resolution the

91



process for appointment prior to the application process and in accordance with State law.
 
Very recently, the Council has had occasion to appoint Councilmember Pal, and set up a procedure to
do that ensured that the entire council would consider all the candidates. The Council may choose to
repeat the process, to modify the process, to choose another individual who applied (if they are still
interested), or call a special election for November of 2023 (the approximate cost of which is likely to
be upwards of $165,000).
 
STAFF REPORT: It should be noted that the Council must appoint someone or call the special
election no later than April 21, 2023, which is the date 60 days following February 21, 2023, the date
the council seat was vacated (60 days falls on Saturday, April 22, 2023). 
 
Option 1:  Calling a Special Election
 
In the event the council is not able to appoint someone and calls a special election, “the special election
shall be held on the next regularly established election date not less than 114 days from the call of the
special election.” Gov. Code, § 36512(b)(1). 
 
Established elections in odd-numbered years occur either the “first Tuesday after the first Monday in
March of each odd-numbered year,” and the “first Tuesday after the first Monday in November of each
year.” Elec. Code § 1000(b), (e). The established election dates for 2023 are March 7 and November 7.
However, because a special election must occur no less than 114 days from the call of the special
election, even if the special election is called today, it could occur no earlier than June 15, 2023.
Therefore, the earliest the special election to fill the council seat could occur is the next established
election date, which is November 7, 2023.
 
A special election in November of 2023 could cost the City upward of $165,000. Per information
provided by the County Registrar of Voters, the cost (through June 2023) for a special election is
$10/registered voter. The City has 16,568 registered voters. A special election could cost the City about
$165,000, and more if the county registrar raises its rates in June, or less if another jurisdiction also
needs to hold a special election.
 
Option 2:  Appointment of councilmember following an application and interview process
 
A second option for the Council is accept applications and conduct interviews to fill the vacancy, as was
done to fill the vacancy created when Mayor Hernandez was elected as Mayor. The following is the
same process the Council adopted most recently when last there was a vacancy, and it is replicated here
with updated dates. The attached resolution proposes the following timeline/procedures for selecting an
individual to fill the vacant council seat. The Council is free to follow this procedure or amend it as the
Council sees fit.
 
1.    Application submittal period begins on March 10, 2023 at start of business, and will close on March
24, 2023 at 5:00 p.m. Early and late applications will not be accepted.
2.    Applicants must be registered voters and residents of the City.
3.    Applications must include the applicant’s full name, address, statement stating that applicant is a
registered voter of the City, and a statement of qualifications.
4.    All applications are a public record pursuant to the California Public Records Act (and also subject
to the same exemptions).
5.    The City Council will interview applicants on April 4, 2023, during a publicly noticed “town hall”-

92



style public meeting. 
•    The entire Council will review and consider all properly submitted applications and will interview
such applicants on April 4, 2023, at 6:30 p.m. 
•    After the interviews, the Council will deliberate and narrow the number of applicants to be
considered for appointment at its regular meeting on April 18, 2023, to a maximum of seven. 
•    Any applicant who was a candidate for a seat on the Council in the November 8, 2022 election will
be included in the number of applicants to be considered for appointment at the regular meeting of the
Council on April 18, 2023.
•    The Council will meet at its regular meeting on April 18, 2023, to choose one of the seven
candidates and appoint that candidate to the vacant seat.
6.    At its regular meeting on April 18, 2023 (or at a later meeting of the Council’s choosing), the City
Council will meet for the purpose of appointing an applicant to the City Council. The process will be as
follows:
a.    Discussion of applicants by Mayor and Council.
b.    The Mayor shall make the appointment subject to the ratification by the full City Council.
c.    Ratification of an appointment shall require three affirmative votes of the City Council. The Mayor
may also vote and be counted.
7.    The failure to strictly adhere to these guidelines will not affect the legality and effectiveness of any
appointment made.
8.    These procedures and timelines will no longer be effective upon an individual being appointed to
fill the vacancy.
 
Option 3:  Appointment from the previous list of interested applicants
 
As mentioned under Option 2, earlier this year, the Council previously accepted applications and
conducted interviews to fill the vacancy created when Mayor Hernandez was elected as Mayor. To
avoid going through the same process again, the Mayor and Council can also choose to limit the
applicant pool to those who were either previously on the list of applicants on January 10, 2023 or from
the narrowed down list of January 17, 2023, depending upon if they are still interested. 
 
Alternatively, the Council can direct that the applications from all applicants from the last vacancy who
are still interested will not need to submit new applications (but may do so if they wish), and only
additional applicants will be required to submit applications. 
 
Option 4:  Specify the appointment of a specific individual
 
The Mayor and Council can also choose an individual who is willing to serve at this current meeting
and direct the City Attorney to return at the next meeting with a resolution memorializing their choice.
At that time, the individual would be sworn into office and would immediately begin serving.
 
How long a council member fills a vacant seat serves depends on how the seat is filled
 
•    If the councilmember fills the vacant seat following a special election, they will fill that seat until the
expiration of the vacant seat’s term.
•    If the councilmember is appointed:
•    (A) If the vacancy occurs in the first half of a term of office and at least 130 days prior to the next
general municipal election, the person appointed to fill the vacancy shall hold office until the next
general municipal election that is scheduled 130 or more days after the date the council is notified of the
vacancy, and thereafter until the person who is elected at that election to fill the vacancy has been
qualified. The person elected to fill the vacancy shall hold office for the unexpired balance of the term

93



of office.
•    (B) If the vacancy occurs in the first half of a term of office, but less than 130 days prior to the next
general municipal election, or if the vacancy occurs in the second half of a term of office, the person
appointed to fill the vacancy shall hold office for the unexpired term of the former incumbent.
 
Here, the appointed councilmember will hold office for the unexpired balance of the vacated seat’s
term, as the vacancy occurred in the second half of the former incumbent’s term. Accordingly, the
appointed council member’s term would terminate at the end of 2024.
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Provide direction to City Manager and City Attorney relating to
filling the councilmember vacancy pursuant to one of the following, or at the Council’s discretion:
 

a. Return at the March 7, 2023 City Council meeting with the appropriate documentation to call a
special election for November 7, 2023.

b. Return at the March 7, 2023 City Council meeting with the appropriate documentation for
adoption of application and interview procedures relating to the filling a vacancy on the City
Council.

c. Return at the March 7, 2023 City Council meeting with the appropriate documentation to adopt
procedures to consider and appoint an individual from the applicants to Mayor Hernandez’s
vacated seat.

d. Return at the March 7, 2023 City Council meeting with the appropriate documentation to appoint
a specific individual of the City Council’s choosing.

e. Provide the City Attorney with other direction.
 
DOCUMENTS ATTACHED:

1. PowerPoint Presentation. 
 

PREPARED BY: Bianca Vasquez, Admin Assistant
REVIEWED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager 
APPROVED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1 PowerPoint Presentation - Filling Council Vacancy.pdf

94

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1797219/1__PowerPoint_Presentation_-_Filling_Council_Vacancy.pdf


Filling a Vacancy on Council
Elena Q. Gerli, City Attorney

Council vacancy

COUNCIL VACANCY

Upon Councilmember Hudson’s resignation, his
council seat will automatically be vacated

Councilmember Hudson’s term terminates at the
end of 2024

Council can appoint a councilmember to fill the
vacancy or call a special election

2

1

2

95



APPLICABLE LAW

Gov’t Code 36512: provides authority for council
to appoint, or to call a special election.
Must either appoint or call the special election

within 60 days of vacancy
April 21, 2023

SCMC 2.04.040 (refers back to Gov’t Code)

Rule 2.3, Council Norms and Procedures (Reso No.
2022-108): Mayor appoints, with Council’s consent

Seat will be filled for the remainder of the term

3

OPTIONS

1. Call a special election for the next available
election, to be held no earlier than 114 days.

2. Adopt an application process to appoint someone.

3. Choose from the applicants from the Mayor’s former
seat.

4. Appoint a specific individual, at Council direction.

5. Provide other direction

4

3

4

96



CALLING A SPECIAL ELECTION

Call a special election for the next established
election date
Requirement: cannot be earlier than 114 days

from the date the special election is called
Established election dates in 2023: March 7, 2023

and November 7, 2023
Cost: $165,000
$10/registered voter (FY 2022-23 Registrar fees)
16,568 voters
If fees increase for FY 2023-24, cost could be higher
If other jurisdictions run special elections, could be lower

5

APPOINTMENT AFTER APPLICATIONS

No statutory requirements re process (must be 18,
resident of City)

Template process from last council vacancy
Applications + statement of qualifications
Council holds town hall style interview process and

narrows down the number of applicants
Next regular CC meeting Council makes the

appointment
If CC cannot agree on an appointment  special

election

6

5

6

97



APPOINTMENT FROM PRIOR APPLICANTS

Council can choose an individual from the list of
applicants to Mayor’s former seat, either from full
list or from 4 candidates that made it to the
second round

Can conduct new interviews and/or go straight
into deliberation and appoint a 5th Councilmember

7

OTHER OPTIONS

Hybrid of applicants from last vacancy and new
applicants

Mayor, with Council consent, can appoint a specific
individual

Provide other direction on the appointment process

8

7

8

98


	City Council Agenda
	Item 6 - Construction Contract for SR 12 Landscape Improvement Project
	Item 7 - Hwy 12 Caltrans Maintenance Agreement
	Item 8 - Accepting and Authorizing the Asphalt Rubber Cape Seal and Traffic Calming Project as Complete
	Item 9 - Approval of Minutes for October 27, 2022, November 15, 2022, and February 7, 2023
	Item 11 - Republic Services Garbage Liens
	Item 12 - Mid-year Budget
	Item 13 - Procedures for Filling Vacancy on City Council



